Public Document Pack
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services - Executive Members & Corporate Director Meetings Department
Friday, 20 August 2021 / 2.00 pm

AGENDA

1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest

3

Exclusion of the public from the meeting during consideration of item(s) # on the grounds
that it/they each involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
paragraph(s) # of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to information)(Variation) Order 2006

Items for Corporate Director decision
Any Other Business
4

Qtr1. Finance Update

Abby Barker

5

Continued Use of the DfT Transport PSVAR Exemptions (Pages 3 44)

Catherine Price

6

Restricted Byway no. 15.11316 & Footpath no 15.11312 Roecliffe
(pages 45 to 58)

Penny Noake

7

AWRP Verbal Update (no paper)

Michael Leah

8

National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and
local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy (Pages 59 70)

Allan McVeigh

9

Forward Highways Capital Programme (Pages 71 - 122)

Allan McVeigh

10

Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract - Automated Highway
(Pages 123 - 132)

Allan McVeigh

11

Nidderdale Greenway Extension (Pages 133 - 180)

Allan McVeigh

12

Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 (Pages 181 - 264)

Richard Marr

13

Date of future meetings

Friday 4 September 2021 at
2pm

Circulation:
Executive Members
Andrew Lee
Don Mackenzie

Officer attendees
Karl Battersby
Jane Connolly
Michael Leah

Page 1
OFFICIAL
OFFICIAL

Presenting Officers
Abby Barker
Catherine Price
Allan McVeigh

Richard Marr

Page 2
OFFICIAL
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 4
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Continued Use of Department for Transport PSVAR Exemptions
Report of the Assistant Director – Travel, Environmental and Countryside Services
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To consider further extensions to Department for Transport (DfT) exemptions to the
PSVAR regulations to enable the sale of spare seats on NYCC contracted home to
school transport services during 2021/22 academic year.

2.0

Background

2.1

Following a public consultation, in May 2020 a report was taken to The Executive in
relation to the sale of spare seats on NYCC contracted home to school transport
services. The report can be found at 06 PSVAR Report & Appendices.pdf
(northyorks.gov.uk)

2.2

The report set out four options in relation to the future of selling spare seats to pupils
not entitled to home to school transport and Post 16 pupils on vehicles that are 22
seats or more in size.

2.3

At that time members agreed that option 4 should be implemented in September
2020 and this meant that we took advantage of the Local Authority DfT Exemption 1’s
that we had applied for in January 2020.

2.4

The previous consultation undertaken between 14 February and 19 April 2020 and
detailed in the report, set the principle of adopting Option 4 making use of any
available Government exemptions for home to school transport going forward.

2.5

The Exemption 1’s were applied for specifically by Local Authorities and were issued
to us by DfT until December 2021. DfT advised at that time that they were likely to
extend the Exemption 1’s until December 2023.

2.6

During the 2020/21 academic year we have implemented the decision made by
members and sold passes on services where we had exemptions or where is was
legal to do so. This was a challenge to administer as Exemption 1 had very specific
criteria and in particular only permitted the sale of 20% of seats on each service. This
meant that we had to allow some pupils who had previously paid to travel free and
had to refuse travel to others even where we had a spare seat.

2.7

The Assistant Director TECS and Transport Board have continually reviewed the
position over the last 12 months and officers have been in correspondence with the
DfT to seek clarification as to what the position would be after December 2021.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page
Use 3
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/1

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

3.0

DfT Update Letter (Position from 1 August 2021)

3.1

On the 6 July 2021 Baroness Vere issued a letter to the bus industry regarding new
arrangements that the DfT have put in place in relation to exemptions from the
PSVAR from 1 August 2021. We were sent a copy of this letter for information and it
is attached as Appendix 1.

3.2

The letter sets out an offer to bus operators to apply for a further Exemption up to 31
March 2022 as set out below.
Supporting Essential Services: Short Term (August 2021 to 31 March 2022) In
order to enable essential HTS services to continue operating in the immediate term
we will consider applications for temporary exemptions (“Special Authorisations”) until
31 March 2022 for closed door home to school services, from August 2021, on the
same terms as exemptions offered in Summer 2020

3.3

The temporary exemptions that the letter refers to are extensions to the Exemption
3’s which are available to bus operators only and not LA’s. The Exemption 3 does not
have the same restrictions as the Exemption 1’s and allows a complete exemption
from the PSVAR without specific criteria like the previous 20% of seats.

3.4

The letter explains the importance of bus operators working towards a PSVAR
compliant fleet and network but also sets out plans for a possible medium term
exemption after March 2022. In addition a review of PSVAR which is being
undertaken during 2022. Further details are not yet available as to what plans may
be in place from 1 April 2022.

4.0

Proposals

4.1

Transport Board have considered the options available to the authority in relation to
the sale of spare seats on our services during 2021/22 academic year.
The options considered are;
A.
We don’t get any further temporary extensions to the exemptions and don’t sell
any passes on vehicles that aren’t compliant for September 2021 – At this late
stage we will be letting a lot of families down with no notice
B.

We don’t get any further temporary extensions to the exemptions and let all
pupils travel free from September 2021

C.

We ask bus operators to apply for the “Short Term” Exemption system which
allows us to charge up until 31 March 2022 and then we would have to allow
free travel for the summer term (unless something else changes before then or
some of our providers qualify for the “medium term” exemption mentioned in
the letter)

4.2

It was agreed at the meeting on 14 July 2021 that given the late notification of the
position by the DfT, the only practical option from September 2021 is C above and
that we should ask our bus operators to apply for the extension to exemptions offered
by the DfT.

4.3

As the exemptions must be applied for by the bus operators, we will work closely with
them to manage and monitor that the necessary exemptions are in place prior to
charging passengers to ensure continued compliance with PSVAR.
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
PageUse4of DfT PSVAR
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/2

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4.4

In the exemption application pack issued to bus operators on the 5 August 2021 the
following is a condition of them being issued with the exemption.
Confirmation
disabled
passengers
unable to use
non-compliant
vehicles will be
provided with
alternative
transport.

Applicant operators must confirm that passengers who cannot
access vehicles covered by an exemption because they do not
comply with PSVAR will be provided with alternative transport.
Where the service in question is commissioned by a third-party,
such as a school or local authority the applicant must obtain and
retain on file written confirmation that such alternative transport
will be provided. "Yes" must be selected in answer to this
question to confirm that such arrangements will be made.

4.5

We will therefore need to support each provider with a statement of our commitment
to adhere with the point above. During 2020/21 or the preceding five years, we have
not had any such requests from pupils with a disability.

4.6

From September 2021 all those who apply for Paid Travel Permits will have their
application assessed and where there is a spare seat available they will be allocated
using the relevant criteria and they will be charged until 31 March 2022. Unless
further exemptions are available, no charges will apply between 1 April and 31 July
2022 but pupils will still be able to travel until the end of the Summer Term 2022.

4.7

Due to the type of temporary exemptions available from 1 August 2021 point’s f. and
g. in Option 4, detailed in the May 2020 report are no longer applicable and all pupils
will be able to apply for and pay for a pass where available.

5.0

Legal Implications

5.1

The application of equalities legislation means the Council cannot charge for the use
of spare seats on home to school transport where the vehicle used is not either
compliant or otherwise exempt from Public Service Vehicle Accessibility Regulations.
Most vehicles used for home to school transport do not comply with the Regulations
but these further temporary Government exemption extensions mean that the Council
can take applications and charge for most spare seats.

5.2

The Council is subject to the public sector equality duty set out in Section 149 of the
Equalities Act 2010 (EqA2010) which requires public authorities to have due regard
to :

The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equalities Act 2010 (section
149(1)(a)).

The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it (section
149(1)(b)). This involves having due regard to the needs to:
o
remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
o
take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not
share it (section 149(4)); and
o
encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by
such persons is disproportionately low.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page
Use 5
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/3

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE



The need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149(1)(c)). This
includes having due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and to promote
understanding (section 149(5),

5.3

Section 29 of the Equalities Act 2010 imposes a duty to make reasonable
adjustments in providing services and public functions, which includes the provision
of home to school transport. This duty arises where people with disabilities are
placed at a substantial disadvantage.

5.4

Where the duty arises the Council must take such steps as is reasonable to avoid the
disadvantage or adopt a reasonable alternative method of providing the service. The
continued use of temporary exemptions is considered to be a reasonable and
proportionate way of implementing the service in a way to avoid and limit any
disadvantage.

5.5

The Council undertook extensive consultation prior to the May 2020 decision, the
decision proposed to be taken now is similar, the Council are asked to consider the
further extensions to the PSVAR to enable the sale of spare seats on the Council’s
contracted home to school transport services during the academic year 2021/22. The
Council therefore rely upon that consultation.

6.0

Equalities Implications

6.1

The equalities impact assessment that was undertaken in May 2020 has been
reviewed and revised as a result of the extension to the exemptions. This can be
found at Appendix 2 and a summary below.

6.2

Following a challenge to past practice of making spare seats on home to school
transport available to non-entitled and post 16 pupils for a fee, the Council has had to
review its practice. The initial response was to cease charging for the use of spare
seats in most cases, with a requirement that the provision of this discretionary
service be reviewed following clarification of the legal position.

6.3

It is now clear that the application of equalities legislation means the Council cannot
charge for the use of spare seats on home to school transport where the vehicle
used is not either compliant or otherwise exempt from Public Service Vehicle
Accessibility Regulations.

6.4

Most vehicles used for home to school transport do not comply with the Regulations
but recent temporary Government exemptions will enable the Council to reintroduce
charges for most spare seats if it chooses to do so.

6.5

Consultation has taken place on four options as to how the Council might respond.
None are ideal as they all either reduce the ability for pupils to travel on spare seats
or reduce the income the Council can receive for allowing them to do so. Some also
impact more on pupils with protected characteristics.

6.6

The proposed option mitigates these impacts by a combination of measures:

Restricting the future offer to new pupils for travel on spare seats to accessible
vehicles only

Charging for travel using spare seats where it is legal to do so – taking
advantage of any relevant Government exemptions

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
PageUse6of DfT PSVAR
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/4

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

6.7

It is desirable that home to school transport is provided using accessible vehicles but
this is not practicable in the short term and is not affordable. There is no legal
requirement to use accessible vehicles other than when needed to meet the needs of
a pupil, and the Council cannot therefore commit to using only accessible vehicles for
the foreseeable future. However, offering spare seats on non-accessible vehicles has
the potential to have a disproportionate impact on pupils with mobility needs and
needs to be considered carefully.

6.8

The Council cannot refuse transport using a spare seat to a pupil simply because
that vehicle in not capable of meeting the mobility need of the pupil. The Council has
a duty to consider what reasonable adjustments might be made to enable the pupil to
travel, which may include the replacement of the vehicle with an accessible one. This
would almost certainly involve additional cost and may even be impossible to achieve
within the constraints of the contract or the market. Selling of spare seats is a
discretionary service so any disproportionate impact could be mitigated simply by
withdrawing the service, or limiting it only to accessible vehicles. This provides equity
but is an extreme response. Instead it is proposed that spare seats on all vehicles
continue to be offered but it be made clear that the Council would welcome
applications from pupils with mobility issues and all reasonable adjustments will be
made to accommodate the request. Each case will have to be assessed on its merits
and will be subject to the normal appeals process if any pupil is denied transport for
whatever reason. This will satisfy the Council’s statutory functions and enable the
maximum number of pupils to benefit from the offer of a spare seat.

6.9

12 month review August 2021
The sale of passes has been continually monitored and reviewed throughout the year
to ensure that any adverse impacts on young people were being mitigated and
compliance with option 4 and the exemptions in place was happening.
The 12 month post implementation review highlighted the following points

With the implementation of option 4 last September we saw a rise in the number
of complaints received from parents of pupils who could not be sold a pass due
to the restrictions on the services. This was due to the number of people that we
had to turn down and we received many enquiries/complaints via MP’s and local
members particularly in the Autumn Term but also throughout the academic year.


The public do not understand why when there is a spare seat that their child can’t
pay for it and travel. This resulted in an increased number of parents appealing
to receive free home to school transport.



Some schools have found it difficult to manage their bus services and secure
compliant vehicles for their private contracts to enable pupils to continue their
studies



The last 12 months have been difficult to get a true picture of numbers of
passengers and issues arising due to the continually changing arrangement with
home to school transport as a result of the COVID pandemic and lockdowns etc.



The Council has not seen the anticipated adverse impact it envisaged on the
disability group of protected characteristics.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page
Use 7
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/5

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

6.10

The proposal extends the adoption of option 4 until July 2022 so monitoring will
continue as before and after a full review, the findings and impact in the first
assessment remain unchanged but the Council will need to continually review the
situation.

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

Due to the delayed notification from the DfT in relation to further exemptions, the
application process was only opened on 23 July so we do not have sufficient data
about pupil applications yet to work out the actual financial implications of the
proposal.

7.2

However, the table below shows the estimated annual income and potential lost
income for the Summer Term based on last year’s pupil numbers.

7.3

The figures assume all passes are full permits and not part week permits and does
not account for any low income families that do not pay the full amount.

Permit Rate 21/22
Estimated Number of Permits based on
2020/21
Full Academic Year Income
Autumn 21 and Spring 22 only
Income lost if can’t charge for Summer
Term 22
7.4

Post 16
Paid Permits TOTAL
£618
£550
439
240
199
£148,320
£98,880
£49,440

£109,450
£72,967
£36,483

£257,770
£171,847
£85,923

To sum the financial position up


If we collect income for the full year we will receive approximately £250K



If we can only collect income for two terms we will receive income of
approximately £171K



This leaves a possible shortfall of £85K against the CYPS Home to School
Transport budgeted position for 2021/22 if option C is agreed. This will be
included in the year end forecast.

7.5

The approximate annual income that we receive from the total sale of passes is
£550K. If we are not able to collect the summer term payment from the 400 pupils on
the services that we have exemptions on the income would be reduced to around
£465K during 2021/22 and this will need to be reflected in the forecast figures.

8.0

Climate Change Implications

8.1

Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse climate change
impacts arising from the recommendation. A Climate Change Impact Assessment is
included as Appendix 3 of this report. There are no adverse impacts as a result of
decision.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
PageUse8of DfT PSVAR
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/6

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9.0

Recommendations

9.1

It is recommended that The Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services
(BES), in consultation with the Corporate Director, Children and Young People Services
(CYPS), and the BES Executive Members agrees to:
A.
proceed with supporting bus operators in seeking further temporary DfT
exemptions to enable the continued sale of spare seats during 2021/22 academic
year and
B.
Allow the sale of seats for those routes/buses which we are satisfied have an
exemption in place

Michael Leah
Assistant Director - Travel, Environmental and Countryside Services

Report author: Catherine Price

Background documents: None

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page
Use 9
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/7

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1
Baroness Vere of Norbiton
Minister for Roads, Buses and Places
Great Minster House
33 Horseferry Road
London
SW1P 4DR
Tel: 0300 330 3000
E-Mail: baroness.vere@dft.gov.uk
Web site: www.gov.uk/dft

6 July 2021
Dear Trade Body Chief Executives,
Over the past year my Hon Friend, the Transport Accessibility and Rail
Minister, Chris Heaton-Harris, has written to transport industry representatives
on several occasions, expressing his deep dissatisfaction at operators’
continued failure to comply with the Public Service Vehicles Accessibility
Regulations 2000 (PSVAR) in the home-to-school (HTS) and rail replacement
(RR) sectors.
The Regulations have revolutionised disabled people’s access to local buses
and long-distance coaches, but it is unacceptable that, two decades after
their introduction, a lack of compliant coaches continues to prevent disabled
school pupils and railway passengers from travelling on the same services as
non-disabled people. It cannot be right that in 2021 disabled people can still
be required to use segregated services regardless of their wish, or otherwise,
to do so, and I am determined that this will change.
Local authorities, schools, colleges and transport operators must focus now
on how they can provide services inclusively rather than seeking to avoid
their legal obligations. It is my firm view, supported by our statutory advisors,
the Disabled Persons’ Transport Advisory Committee, that disabled people
must have the right to travel like anybody else, and that organisations
commissioning and operating services must play their part in making this
possible.
To this end, I am writing not only to explain our longer-term plans for ensuring
that bus and coach services are available to all, but also to ask the industry to
focus now on what it can do to ensure that services today are provided
inclusively.
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 10 Use of DfT PSVAR
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/8

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1

The Future of Bus and Coach Accessibility
In March the Government published its National Bus Strategy for England,
“Bus Back Better”, including a commitment to complete a review of PSVAR
by the end of 2023. This review will ensure that the accessibility of bus and
coach services continues to be informed by the needs and expectations of
disabled passengers for the foreseeable future. I know that you will be eager
to participate in the process and look forward to your support.
I am however also aware that PSVAR does not currently cover every service
that a disabled person might seek to use, and that the exclusion of vehicles
used for private hire work may have contributed to a lack of compliant
vehicles available for HTS and RR services. Disabled people should be able
to take coach holidays or to join their clubs and societies on days out without
having to procure alternative transport, potentially at higher rates, and I have
asked officials, as part of the review, to consider specifically how such
services could be brought within scope of the Regulations. I understand that
wheelchair lifts are sometimes removed from coaches when they cease to
provide Scheduled services and have asked my officials also to explore
whether this practice can be stopped, including in law.
Supporting Essential Services: Medium Term (from 2022 onwards)
HTS services are essential for ensuring children can travel to and from school
in safety and rail replacement services ensure passengers can reach their
destinations when services are disrupted. Whilst I recognise reluctantly that
exemption from some PSVAR provisions cannot be avoided until there are
sufficient compliant vehicles to meet demand, I am clear that such
exemptions must not incentivise operators to stop investing in their fleets, and
nor should they support delaying the making of accessibility improvements
where doing so now is feasible.
I have therefore asked officials to develop plans for medium-term exemptions
to begin in 2022, available only to operators which can demonstrate the steps
they have taken proactively to provide compliant services. Whilst eligibility
rules will be communicated in due course, and subject to consultation, I have
asked my officials to explore only providing exemptions for the wheelchair
requirements (Schedule 1 of the Regulations) and not for steps, gangways,
handrails, etc (Schedule 3), unless some of the requirements in Schedule 3
cannot reasonably be complied with in the time available. Operators may also
be expected to operate a minimum number of fully compliant vehicles in order
to be eligible for any exemption. All operators should begin planning now if
they anticipate requiring exemptions from 2022 onwards.
The 2022 exemptions will replace any exemptions issued to date.
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 11
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/9

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1

Supporting Essential Services: Short Term (August 2021 to 31st
March 2022)
In order to enable essential HTS services to continue operating in the
immediate term we will consider applications for temporary
exemptions (“Special Authorisations”) until 31st March 2022 for closed
door home to school services, from August 2021, on the same terms
as exemptions offered in Summer 2020.
Operators which may need to apply for these exemptions should
email the Department now, at
HometoSchoolExemptions@dft.gov.uk in order to be informed
when application arrangements are released.
Train Operating Companies will be informed of any further
arrangements for rail replacement services through the Rail Delivery
Group.
Supporting services accessible to everyone
Twenty one years after PSVAR were introduced it cannot be right that
disabled people still cannot travel as easily or confidently as nondisabled people, or without incurring additional cost. The exemptions
we are offering are essential to enable vital services to run but they
must not be used as a licence to discriminate. Train Operating
Companies will still be expected to provide rail replacement services
using compliant vehicles wherever possible, and I will write separately
to the Rail Delivery Group specifying my continuing expectations of
the rail industry and the requirements on them. Local authorities,
schools and colleges must also take responsibility for procuring
inclusive services. We will work with the Department for Education and
the Devolved Administrations to inform commissioners of HTS
services of our expectations, and to remind them of their legal
equalities’ duties, with which they remain responsible for complying
with.
I know that you recently met with my officials and I understand that
was a helpful and constructive meeting. I welcome the trade bodies’
efforts to consider how bus and coach services can meet the needs of
all their passengers including, for instance, taking proactive steps to
investigate more inclusive approaches for providing step-free access
to high-floor coaches. My officials stand ready to discuss the
application of PSVAR with you further, and I hope that you will
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
PageUse12
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/10

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1

continue to work with us, helping your members to understand our
expectations, harnessing their collective knowledge and expertise, and
thinking creatively about solutions to the challenges that disabled
people continue to face.
Breaking down the barriers that still prevent disabled people living
the lives they want to is the duty of each of us, rather than someone
else’s problem – and we must all do our bit to provide transport that
enables access and promotes independence, helping disabled
people to fulfil their potential.
I trust I can rely on your support to make this happen.

BARONESS VERE OF NORBITON

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page
Use of13
DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/11

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

Equality impact assessment (EIA) form:
evidencing paying due regard to protected
characteristics
(Form updated April 2019)
Home to School Transport – Use of Accessible Vehicles and Provision of Transport for
Non-Entitled and Post 16 Pupils.

If you would like this information in another language or
format such as Braille, large print or audio, please contact
the Communications Unit on 01609 53 2013 or email
communications@northyorks.gov.uk.

Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) are public documents. EIAs accompanying reports
going to County Councillors for decisions are published with the committee papers on our
website and are available in hard copy at the relevant meeting. To help people to find
completed EIAs we also publish them in the Equality and Diversity section of our website.
This will help people to see for themselves how we have paid due regard in order to meet
statutory requirements.
Name of Directorate and Service Area
Lead Officer and contact details
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the EIA

How will you pay due regard? e.g. working
group, individual officer
When did the due regard process start?

Business and Environmental Services –
Transport Waste and Countryside Services
Andy Holmes
2357
Ian Fielding Assistant Director, Transport
Waste and Countryside Services
Andy Holmes – Service Improvement Officer
As a working group
February 2020
Refresh August 2021 following receipt of
letter from DfT

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 14Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/12

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Section 1. Please describe briefly what this EIA is about. (e.g. are you starting a new
service, changing how you do something, stopping doing something?)
North Yorkshire County Council has a duty to provide home to school transport free of charge to
all entitled children up to the end of year 11. There are currently over 12,500 pupils entitled for
free home to school transport in North Yorkshire.
The Council also has a duty to assist in the provision of transport for 16-19 year old pupils to
travel to sixth form or college. This can be through the provision of transport (e.g. on a bus or by
taxi) or by making a financial contribution towards cost. Where the Council provides home to
school transport for post 16 pupils it is allowed to recover a contribution towards its costs.
Where the Council arranges transport for entitled pupils there may be spare seats on the
vehicles, which it has previously offered to non-entitled and post 16 pupils for a fee.
Spare seats have been allocated according to criteria that prioritise factors such as whether a
child has any special educational needs; whether siblings already travel on the vehicle; and the
stage the child is at in their education. The number of spare seats available on any home to
school service varies each year as the number of entitled pupils changes.
Allowing non-entitled and post 16 pupils to travel using spare seats on home to school transport
has made effective use of spare capacity in the service; provides a safe and effective service for
pupils not entitled for free transport; reduces congestion and also generates valuable income to
the Council. Using spare seats is also environmentally better and helps reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and improve air quality.
The County Council’s Executive considered a report on 3 September 2019 which highlighted a
legal challenge to the Council’s approach to the provision of home to school transport for nonentitled1 and post 16 pupils.
The challenge centred on the ability of non-entitled and post 16 pupils to ‘buy’ spare seats on
vehicles that were used for home to school transport provided by the Council, but which were
not accessible for people with mobility needs. It was alleged that this practice was contrary to
the requirements of the Public Service Vehicles Accessibility Regulations 2000 (PSVAR).
The Executive resolved on 3rd September 2019 to stop charging for the use of spare seats in
most cases in order to ensure legal compliance, and asked for further report be brought to the
Executive prior to the end of the 19/20 academic year with either:
a)
Proposals to reintroduce charges where suitable clarification or a change in law has been
provided that would enable the reintroduction of such charges or, in the event that clarification
or a change in law is not provided by that time;
b)
Long term proposals to address the application of PSVAR to home to school transport
including recommendations as to whether the Council ceases to provide transport using spare
seats on buses that do not comply with PSVAR or continues to offer them free of charge.
It is now clear that PSVAR does apply to home to school transport where provided using vehicles
with over 22 seats, but from January 2020 the Government has offered some further exemptions
for home to school services that carry fewer than 20% of fare paying passengers. These
exemptions apply until December 2021 with the potential of a further extension up to December
2023.

1

The term non-entitled in this report and related consultation refers to those pupils who are deemed not
eligible for free home to school transport as determined under the Education Act 1996

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 15
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/13

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
There is no specific legal obligation for the Council to require all vehicles used for home to school
transport to be accessible, and practice is that any entitled pupil that requires an accessible
vehicle is provided one. Entitled pupils with mobility needs are always provided with a suitable
vehicle that allows them to be transported in safety and comfort (including in their wheelchair if
appropriate). Unlike commercial bus service operators, the Council knows in advance whether
pupils routinely require accessible transport and it is provided when necessary. Prior to the recent
challenge the Council has not been pressed by parents, pupils or schools for most mainstream
school transport to be accessible.
When the Council puts home to school transport services out to tender, unless it is specified that
an accessible vehicle is required, operators are free to offer accessible or non-accessible
vehicles. Contracts are then awarded on the basis of the lowest cost to the Council (subject to
meeting minimum quality standards). Procurement in this way ensures a transparent and cost
effective service and provides for greatest competition between both small and large operators.
Most vehicles used on mainstream home to school transport are not currently accessible. The
Council is not under any obligation to procure accessible vehicles, provided the mobility needs
of any entitled pupil are met. However, it is recognised that there would be wider benefits in doing
so as it would help increase the numbers of accessible vehicles within the industry and therefore
improve the general accessibility of public transport.
The Council is currently working with operators to identify ways in which we can be more
innovative in our procurement of home to school services to help encourage the use of more
accessible vehicles. This will take time to establish and in the meantime using more accessible
vehicles on home to school transport will increase Council costs.
A recent tender for home to school transport indicated that the costs of PSVAR compliant
coaches would be nearly £12,000 more per vehicle than for a non-compliant coach. This would
scale up to an additional annual cost in excess of £2.7million if home to school services were
provided using only accessible vehicles across the whole of North Yorkshire. It is also highly
unlikely that operators would be able to secure enough vehicles to ensure all home to school
transport was provided using accessible vehicles within a timescale for this to be a realistic option
in the short term.
This level of additional cost would impact significantly on Council resources and it is therefore
proposed that the Council continues to allow operators to use non accessible vehicles for home
to school transport, unless otherwise required by law or to meet the mobility needs of pupils.
The requirement is now to determine if and when the Council will require the use of accessible
vehicles for home to school transport in future, and under what circumstances, if any, transport
will be provided for non-entitled and post 16 pupils.
August 2021
In July 2021 the Department for Transport (DfT) issued guidance to bus operators to advise that
in order to enable essential home to school services to continue in the short term, temporary
exemptions for closed door home to school services will continue from August 2021 until 31
March 2022, for all services.
Further Medium Term exemptions may be available for operators from April 2022 onwards, and
the Council’s position may need to be reviewed again as a result.
The exemptions available from August 2021 do not have the previous restriction of less than
20% of seats only being able to be sold to paying passengers. They are available for bus
operators to apply for any service they provide.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 16Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/14

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Providing exemptions are available for the service that a non-entitled or Post 16 pupil wishes to
purchase a seat on and there is a seat available we can offer a pass in line with the temporary
exemption timescales.

Section 2. Why is this being proposed? What are the aims? What does the authority
hope to achieve by it? (e.g. to save money, meet increased demand, do things in a better
way.)
The proposals are a response to the need to reconsider the way home to school services are
provided following a legal challenge. The aim is to be able to provide home to school transport
for a range of pupils in accordance with the Council’s legal duties, using accessible transport if
required and considering whether it is proportionate and cost effective in other cases, making
effective use of spare seats and ensuring that the Council complies with its equality duty and
makes best use of its resources.
August 2021
The above is still relevant and remains the same

Section 3. What will change? What will be different for customers and/or staff?
Further to a public consultation on options for the use of accessible vehicles and spare seats
on home to school transport, it is proposed that the Council continue to:
a)

Secure transport only for entitled pupils (i.e. the presumption is that post 16 and nonentitled pupils will make their own arrangements to travel to school (noting that Post 16
pupils may qualify for assistance from the Council - which may be by provision of
transport or payment of an allowance)
b)
Provide transport using the most proportionate and economic means of transport that is
capable of meeting the needs of the pupil - including public train and bus services and
taxis,
and that
c)
Where entitled pupils do not have mobility needs that require accessible transport then
the Council may fulfil those needs using vehicles that are not accessible.
d)
d)
Spare seats on vehicles procured for home to school transport may be offered
to non-entitled and post 16 pupils and allocated according to the following criteria in
order of priority:
I.
Pupils with special educational needs or disabilities
II.
Entitled Post 16 pupils
III. Previously travelled on vehicle
IV. Where siblings already travel
V.
Other non-entitled pupils (including non-entitled post 16 pupils) according to
distance
e)
A charge will be made for the use of spare seats by non-entitled and post 16 pupils
where the vehicle used is compliant with the requirements of PSVAR or otherwise
exempt
f)
Pupils with Paid Travel Permits currently travelling in spare seats on vehicles that are
not compliant with the requirements of PSVAR, or otherwise exempt, will be able to
continue to travel without charge for a period up to July 2021 - subject to the normal
provisions that the offer can be withdrawn at any time if the seat is required for an
eligible pupil, and on the understanding that a charge can be introduced with at least
one month’s notice if the vehicle either becomes exempt from PSVAR or is replaced
with another vehicle that is compliant or otherwise exempt.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 17
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/15

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
g)
h)
i)

Daily fares paid for the use of spare seats will only be taken where vehicles are
accessible and comply with PSVAR.
New applications for use of spare seats will only be considered where vehicles are
PSVAR compliant or otherwise exempt.
The Council may require a PSVAR compliant vehicle to enable it to offer spare seats to
non-entitled and post 16 pupils but will only do so where it is cost effective to do so.

The proposal is that these arrangements are effective from the start of the 2020/21 academic
year
August 2021
In July 2021 the DfT have advised that in order to enable essential home to school services to
continue in the short term, temporary exemptions for closed door home to school services will
continue from August 2021 until 31 March 2022, for all services.
From September 2021 all those who apply for Paid Travel Permits will have their application
assessed and where there is a spare seat available they will be allocated using the criteria in d.
above and they will be charged until 31 March 2022. Unless further exemptions are available,
no charges will apply between 1 April and 31 July 2022 but pupils can still travel until the end of
the Summer Term 2022.
Due to the type of temporary exemptions available from 1 August 2021 point’s f. and g. above
are no longer applicable and all pupils will be able to apply for and pay for a pass where
available.

Section 4. Involvement and consultation (What involvement and consultation has been
done regarding the proposal and what are the results? What consultation will be needed and
how will it be done?)
An extensive public consultation was open between 14 February and 19 April 2020. It was
publicised on the County Council’s consultation web pages and in addition nearly 3,000
Parents/Guardians of pupils who currently use the service and may be affected were sent
letters telling them of the proposed changes, and information was sent direct to schools asking
for their help to promote the consultation. Further promotion was carried out by direct contact
with service provider(s), through staff bulletins and press releases. A copy of the consultation
document is included in Appendix 1.
The primary purpose of the consultation was to seek views on the following issues:
•
The use of non-accessible vehicles for home to school transport
•
Whether and under what circumstances the Council should make any spare seats
available on home to school transport available to non-entitled and post 16 pupils.
•
The criteria to be used for allocating spare seats if the demand is greater than the
number of seats available
•
How the council should respond to consider the needs of people with disabilities when
considering the use of spare seats
The consultation also allowed people to provide other comments
The consultation explained that:
1.
There are often spare seats on home to school transport which the Council makes
available to other non-entitled and post 16 pupils. About 2,300 non-entitled or post 16
pupils currently travel to and from school using spare seats.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 18Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/16

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
2.

3.

4.

Under certain circumstances the Council can charge for the use of these spare seats.
The ability for the Council to make a charge is limited to where vehicles are accessible
and comply with, or are exempt from, the requirements of the Public Services Vehicles
Accessibility Regulations 2000 (PSVAR).
About 1,370 non-entitled or post 16 pupils are currently paying the Council
approximately £270,000 per year to travel using spare seats. In addition, for a limited
time the Council could lawfully charge a further 580 pupils which would generate an
additional annual income for the Council of about £260,000.
About 370 non-entitled and post 16 pupils currently travel on vehicles that are not
compliant or exempt from PSVAR and the Council cannot charge these pupils

The consultation document detailed 4 options
OPTION 1 – Transport only entitled pupils.
OPTION 2 – Charge where it is lawful to do so - but do not offer spare seats on vehicles where
it would unlawful to charge.
OPTION 3 – Charge where it is lawful to do so - and offer other spare seats for free
OPTION 4 - Combination of Option 2 and Option 3.
The consultation document identified Option 4 as the initial preferred option, subject to the
outcome of the consultation; i.e. to charge for the use of spare seats where it is lawful to do so,
but to allow other spare seats to be used for free up to the end of the 2020/21 academic year,
and only to pupils already travelling (which are almost all sixth form or college students).
The implication of this option is that almost all pupils currently being transported will continue to
be transported (at least until July 2021) and income to the Council from making a charge for
spare seats will increase by £260,000 p.a. (at current charging rates) until the Government’s
temporary exemptions expire or vehicles can be replaced with accessible ones.
In total 380 responses were received in response to the consultation. A summary of the
responses to the consultation is included as Appendix 2. The key points from the responses
are:

82% (310) of respondents felt that the Council should only use accessible vehicles to
transport pupils to and from school where required to meet the known needs of the pupils
being transported (18% (69) responding that they should be always used regardless of
cost and the needs of pupils)

85% (322) of respondents felt that spare seats should be offered to non-entitled and post16 pupils regardless of whether the Council can charge for the use of the spare seat.
13% responding felt that spare seats should be offered only when we can charge for the
use of the spare seat and 2% said spare seats should be never be offered




62% (234) of respondents felt that where the Council receives a request to use a spare
seat on school transport from a pupil with needs that require and accessible vehicle the
Council should provide an accessible vehicle if possible and within reasonable additional
cost. 28% (105) responded that the Council should replace the vehicle with an accessible
vehicle, or provide separate transport regardless of cost. 11% said we should decline to
provide transport unless alternative
When asked to prioritise a set of proposed criteria to use to allocate spare seats on
vehicles for home to school transport there were mixed views with little differences overall
between the order of preference as a proportion of overall scores. However, the ranking
was as follows:
o
Pupils with special educational needs or disabilities
o
Previously travelled on vehicle
o
Where siblings already travel
o
Entitled post 16 pupils
o
Distance

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 19
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/17

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2



There were 38 suggestions for alternative criteria with the most popular being:
o
Where public transport is not available
o
Non entitled Post 16 students
58% (216) of respondents preferred the proposed option (option 4) for the use of spare
seats – being a combination of Options 2 and 3 where the Council charge where is where
it is lawful to do so and offer other spare seats for free, but only until July 2021. Option 3
(charge where it is lawful to do so and offer other seats for free) was the next preferred
option by 28% (104) of respondents, with Option 2 (Charge where lawful to do so, but do
not allow other spare seats to be used) was preferred by 12% (44) of the respondents
and only 3% (11) preferred Option 1 (transport only entitled pupils).

The responses from the consultation are broadly supportive of the proposals but it is important
to highlight that the strength of opinion on Q2 about when the Council should offer spare seats
regardless of whether it can charge. Although an option for the Council, allowing the use of spare
seats without charging was not one of the options put forward in Q5 and was excluded on the
basis that offering spare seats is a discretionary service which it can legitimately charge for. The
Council has a fiduciary duty to taxpayers which means it should act prudently and responsibly in
the best interest of local tax payers. To not charge would mean passing over the opportunity to
generate significant income for the Council, and would result in requests for the use of spare
seats becoming unmanageable as a universal free service would mean numbers of applications
would likely far exceed the number of available seats.
Analysis of responses for all questions shows that do not materially differ depending on the
type of respondent except in a few cases:

Q2 - When should spare seats on home to school transport be offered to non-entitled
and post-16 pupils? 56% of responses from home to school operators felt that seats
should only be offered where the Council can charge, compared with an overall response
of 13% for this option.

Q3 - When asked about provision of transport for non-entitled and post 16 pupils with
mobility needs, responses from schools were split with 40% selecting the option that the
Council should “Decline to provide transport unless alternative arrangements can be
made without additional cost” compared to the overall response rate only 11%. The same
number of schools (40%) also selected the option that the Council should “Provide an
accessible vehicle if possible and within reasonable additional cost but do not replace
the vehicle with an accessible vehicle”. This was the overall preferred option for 62% of
respondents.


Q4 – Responses on the priority for allocating spare seats were mixed across the types
of respondent:
o
the majority of groups selected their 1st or 2nd priority to be “Pupils with special
educational needs or disabilities”, except:

Schools, who ranked it as their 4th priority,

Parents/guardians of both non-entitled and post 16 students who ranked this
as their 3rd priority
o
Schools, parents/guardians of non-entitled children, and younger persons selected
“previously travelled” as their first priority, with other groups having mixed views
across the range of options.
o
Service providers, parents/guardians of entitled children and post 16 pupils, chose
“distance” to be the least important criteria whereas non-users of the service,
younger persons and the disability group/forum ranked it as their 3rd priority.
Schools ranked ”distance” as their 2nd priority.
o
“Entitled post 16 pupils” is the first choice priority for parent/guardians of post 16
students, and second priority for non - users of the service, service providers and
the disability group/forum. It is the fourth or fifth priority for other groups

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 20Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/18

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
“Siblings already travel” is the second priority for parents/guardians of entitled and
non-entitled children, with other groups ranking this as their 3rd priority or less
Q5 - Which of the above options for the use of spare seats do you prefer? The overall
preference with 58% of respondents was Option 4, the proposed option with the majority
of respondents from all groups favouring this option except from:
o
The one response who identified as from a disability group/forum who selected
Option 2 (Charge where lawful to do so but do not offer spare seats on vehicles
where it would unlawful to charge.
o
The responses from schools which were divided equally (50%:50%) between
Option 4 (the preferred option) and Option 3 (charge where it is lawful to do so and offer other spare seats for free)
o
Responses from young people which were mixed, although Option 4 (the preferred
option) was the highest response at 38%.
o


It is also important to highlight that the responses to Q4 on how spare seats should be
allocated differs from existing practice where preference for allocating spare seats is given to
entitled post 16 pupils. The consultation did not highlight the difference between entitled and
non-entitled post 16 pupils, and especially that the consequence of not allocating an entitled
post 16 pupil with a spare seat is likely to be a higher cost to the Council arising from its
obligation to offer alternative assistance. The consultation also didn’t provide a choice between
non-entitled and entitled post 16 pupil which may have helped bring out this point.
It is therefore proposed that greater priority be given to entitled post 16 pupils than indicated by
the responses to the consultation, but that that it be second to the allocation to pupils with
special educational needs or disabilities (SEND).
Respondents were also invited to provide further comments about the issues raised in the
consultation. Comments were provided about issues relevant to the consultation but also about
matters related to home to school transport policy. All comments are detailed in the Appendix
but some themes can be identified within the responses that are commented on below.
August 2021
The previous extensive consultation undertaken between 14 February and 19 April 2020, and
the outcomes described above, have set the principle of adopting Option 4 making use of any
available Government exemptions for home to school transport. These temporary exemptions
are now being extended further by DfT and are available to 31 March 2022.
No further consultation is proposed as the previous consultation was extensive, is still up to
date and the principles largely remain as before and appropriate to the new exemptions and
proposed option recommended for members to endorse.

1

2

Theme
Home to school transport
should be accessible and
provided for all

Comment
The criteria for who is entitled and who is nonentitled is a matter of Council policy and not within
the scope of this report. It is desirable that all
vehicles used for home to school transport are
accessible, and the Council is working with operators
to help improve accessibility of the service, but it is
currently not practical or affordable to use only
accessible vehicles in the provision of home to
school transport.
The Council should provide
This is a matter of legislation and the Council policy
transport for post 16 pupils as abides with the law and is not within the scope of the
they are required to remain in matters under consideration however, the Council is
education
legally obliged to provide assistance to entitled post
16 pupils to travel to school but is not required to
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 21
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/19

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

3

Spare seats should be
offered/offered and charged
for.

4

The nature of the rurality of
North Yorkshire impacts on
the ability to get to school

5

The impact on the education
of pupils if changes are made

6

Reduction in the service will
lead to more vehicles on road
and increase environmental
damage

7

Affordability for parents

8

SEND pupils should have
access to transport/free
transport

provide transport. Assistance may include the offer
of transport where it is available but may also include
the offer of a parental allowance to help contribute
towards costs. Council policy is that where
assistance is provided the pupil is required to pay a
contribution towards costs of £490 p.a.(2019/20)
This is the proposal set out within the consultation

This is recognised as a driver of cost for both
parents and the Council. The rural nature of the
County means that proportionally more pupils are
eligible for free home to school transport, or
assistance with transport, than in more urban areas.
The limits of commercial bus services across much
of the County means that home to school transport
provision is largely reliant on taxis and coaches, and
it is this reliance on coaches that has impacted the
Council in respect of PSVAR, and created the need
for this consultation. However, regardless of rurality,
the Council continues to fulfil its duties to ensure
entitled pupils are provided home to school
transport.
The proposals within the consultation seek to
minimise the impacts on pupils by continuing to offer
spare seats for free until July 2021 for pupils
currently travelling. It is also proposed to use
Government exemptions from PSVAR to maintain
transport for as many pupils as possible for as long
as possible, but ultimately the ability to continue to
make spare seats available for non-entitled and post
16 pupils will depend on being able to secure
accessible vehicles in line with the resources
available.
It is acknowledged that this would be an undesirable
outcome if the Council were to stop making spare
seats available to non-entitled and post 16 pupils,
and is one of the factors behind the proposal to
continue to make spare seats available.
Affordability is a recognised issue and the Council’s
current policy is to offer a 50% reduction in charge
for households with a low income.
This is a matter of legislation and Council policy and
not within the scope of the matters under
consideration however, eligibility for free home to
school transport is determined according to multiple
criteria that include an assessment of a pupil’s ability
to safely walk to school. This will take into account
any relevant special educational need or disability
and means that transport is provided to meet the
specific needs of pupils.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 22Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/20

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
9

The Council has a statutory
duty under equalities
legislation to ensure it does
not discriminate against
pupils with disabilities

The Council’s duties and obligations under equalities
legislation are set out in Section 11 of this report.

Section 5. What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost
neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?
Please explain briefly why this will be the result.
The Council currently only charges for spare seats on commercial services or vehicles that are
less than 22 seats (and therefore exempt from PSVAR) or where daily fares are taken and
vehicles are known to be accessible and compliant with PSVAR. The Council does not
currently charge for spare seats on any non- accessible vehicles larger than 22 seats, or for
any SEND pupils.
Council income based on 2019/20 full year charges is currently approximately £410,000 p.a.
The proposals detailed in this EIA include for taking advantage of temporary additional
Government exemptions from PSVAR for vehicles over 22 seats where less than 20% of the
seating capacity of the vehicle is paying, and for reintroducing charges for SEND pupils.
These proposals would enable the further recovery of approximately £261k p.a. income at
2019/20 charging levels. These revenues are contingent on the ability to take advantage of the
additional temporary Government exemptions which apply until December 2021, but which
may be extended to December 2023. Without Government exemptions the additional income
will be approximately £93,000 p.a. at 2019/20 charging levels.
August 2021
The table below shows the estimated annual income and potential lost income involved in
getting the extended exemptions during 2021/22 academic year. The figures assume all
passes are full permits and not part week permits and does not account for any low
income families that do not pay the full amount.

Permit Rate 21/22
Estimated Number
of Permits based
on 2020/21
Full Academic Year
Income
Autumn 21 and
Spring 22 only
Income lost if can’t
charge for Summer
Term 22

Post 16

Paid Permits

TOTAL

£618
240

£550
199

439

£148,320

£109,450

£257,770

£98,880

£72,967

£171,847

£49,440

£36,483

£85,923

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 23
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/21

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Section 6. How
will this
proposal affect
people with
protected
characteristics?
Age

No
impact

Make
things
better

Make
things
worse

Why will it have this effect? Provide
evidence from engagement, consultation
and/or service user data or demographic
information etc.

X

Post 16 pupils are not entitled to free home
to school transport but may be entitled to
assistance from the Council depending on
their individual circumstances. Assistance
can include the provision of transport using
spare seats on Council provided services.
Since July 2019, where this has been on
vehicles with more than 22 seats that are
not compliant with PSVAR the Council has
waived the charge it would normally make
for providing this assistance. The proposal is
to reintroduce this charge where it would be
lawful to do so. Post 16 pupils will be
impacted proportionally more than younger
pupils as they are currently approximately
360 post 16 pupils that will now be charged
compared to approximately 220 younger
pupils.
August 2021
The Council has not seen the anticipated
adverse impact it envisaged for this decision
on this group of protected characteristics.

Disability

X

The proposal to continue with temporary
exemptions until March 2022 will not alter
the current position for the majority of pupils.
However there are a small number of pupils
travelling who were not being charged as it
was not lawful to do so. If they still wish to
travel, these pupils will be charged from
September 2021 to March 2022, unless
further exemptions are available for the
summer term. In which case charges will be
applied to the end of the school year. The
Council will carefully consider those that are
adversely affected and monitor how
mitigations can be taken to reduce this
impact.
Since July 2019 the Council has suspended
charges for home to school transport for all
non-entitled and post 16 SEND pupils even
where it would be lawful to charge. This was
on the basis that charging where it was
lawful to do so but allowing others using
spare seats would have a disproportionate
impact on SEND pupils as only 8% of SEND
pupils would benefit from free travel
compared to 31% of mainstream pupils.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 24Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/22

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Following consultation, the proposals are
now to reintroduce charges where it is lawful
to do so and using new Government
exemptions, and to limit the provision of free
spare seats to those already travelling, and
only until July 2021. The proposals now
mean the proportion of mainstream pupils
that will benefit from free travel is reduced to
11% which, is still higher than for SEND
pupils, but comparable. From July 2021
there will be no difference with all nonentitled and post 16 pupils being charged.
These adjustments are considered as
reasonable and proportionate.
The proposals also include for arrangements
in the event of a disabled pupil requesting to
travel to school using a spare seat on a nonaccessible vehicle. It is recognised that the
practice of offering spare seats on nonaccessible vehicles has a disproportionate
impact on people with disabilities in that they
may be prevented from accessing this offer
depending on any mobility need. The
consultation invited views on this point and
responses indicated support for the proposal
that, in these circumstances, the preferred
approach should be to secure a replacement
accessible vehicle but where this is not
possible or would entail unreasonable
additional cost then transport is not
provided.
In practice, the Council will need to consider
individual applications as to whether it can
offer the discretionary service to individuals
who benefit from the protection of the
Equality Act 2010, and what reasonable
adjustments might be necessary so that the
individual pupil can access the discretionary
service. It is not possible to legislate for
every eventuality and the Council must
recognise its duties under the Equality Act to
have due regard to the need to:
• eliminate
unlawful
discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited by the Act;
• advance equality of opportunity between
people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not
share it; and
• foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.
Decision makers need to be clear that they
have paid due regard, and that they have
considered mitigation and they have no
other option but to pursue this course of
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 25
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/23

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
action. It is therefore proposed that each
case be assessed on its merits against a
framework that acknowledges vehicles used
for home to school transport may not initially
be accessible. Where a pupil with mobility
needs applies for the use of a spare seat
that application will be considered against
the normal allocation criteria having regard
to the requirement for the Council to
consider what reasonable adjustments may
be necessary to ensure the protection of
those identified under the Equality Act.
August 2021
The Council has not seen the anticipated
adverse impact it envisaged for this decision
on this group of protected characteristics.
The proposal to continue with temporary
exemptions until March 2022 will not alter
the current position for this group and where
adverse impact is identified careful
consideration will be given to how
mitigations can be taken to reduce this
impact
Sex

X

Race

X

Gender
reassignment
Sexual
orientation
Religion or belief

X

Pregnancy or
maternity
Marriage or civil
partnership

X

X
X

X

Section 7. How
will this
proposal affect
people who…

No
impact

live in a rural
area?

X

Make
things
better

Make
things
worse

Why will it have this effect? Provide
evidence from engagement, consultation
and/or service user data or demographic
information etc.
This is recognised as a driver of cost for both
parents and the Council, and is a concern
highlighted by some respondents to the
consultation. The rural nature of the County
means that proportionally more pupils are
eligible for free home to school transport, or
assistance with transport, than in more urban
areas. The limited commercial bus services
across much of the County means that home
to school transport provision is largely reliant

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 26Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/24

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
on taxis and coaches, and it is this reliance on
coaches that has impacted the Council in
relation to PSVAR, and created the need for
this review and consultation.
However, regardless of rurality, the Council
continues to fulfil its duties to ensure entitled
pupils are provided home to school transport.
The proposals have no direct impact on
people living in rural areas other than they are
more likely to be users of home to school
transport.
August 2021
The Council has not seen the anticipated
adverse impact it envisaged for this decision
on this group of protected characteristics.
The proposal to continue with temporary
exemptions until March 2022 will not alter the
current position for this group of protected
characteristics and where adverse impact is
identified careful consideration will be given to
how mitigations can be taken to reduce this
impact
…have a low
income?

X

The proposal is to reintroduce charges which
were previously levied up to September 2019.
There will therefore be an impact on any
family with a low income that has been
benefiting from free transport since that date.
This is partially mitigated by the Council’s
policy of offering a 50% discount on the costs
of home to school transport for families with a
low income.
August 2021
The Council has not seen the anticipated
adverse impact it envisaged for this decision
on this group of protected characteristics.

…are carers
(unpaid family
or friend)?

X

The proposal to continue with temporary
exemptions until March 2022 will not alter the
current position for this group and where
adverse impact is identified careful
consideration will be given to how mitigations
can be taken to reduce this impact
There is a potential for young people who are
also carers to be charged or eventually
denied the opportunity to travel in a spare
seat on home to school transport under these
proposals.
NYCC offer support to young carers from 8
years of age tailored to the individual need
and which can include advice and
information, family support and support for the
NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 27
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/25

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
carer both in and out of school. Providing
advice and assistance on a home to school
transport issue would be included in the
scope of assistance provided under this
service. In addition, young carers who are
entitled to Post 16 transport assistance
already have their charge waived under the
established procedure, so they would not be
affected by re-introduction of charges for
spare seats.
August 2021
The Council has not seen the anticipated
adverse impact it envisaged for this decision
on this group of protected characteristics.
The proposal to continue with temporary
exemptions until March 2022 will not alter the
current position for this group and where
adverse impact is identified careful
consideration will be given to how mitigations
can be taken to reduce this impact
Section 8. Geographic impact – Please detail where the impact will be (please tick all that
apply)
North Yorkshire wide X
Craven district
Hambleton district
Harrogate district
Richmondshire
district
Ryedale district
Scarborough district
Selby district
If you have ticked one or more districts, will specific town(s)/village(s) be particularly
impacted? If so, please specify below.

Section 9. Will the proposal affect anyone more because of a combination of protected
characteristics? (e.g. older women or young gay men) State what you think the effect may
be and why, providing evidence from engagement, consultation and/or service user data
or demographic information etc.
Yes.
The proposals will impact more on post 16 SEND pupils who are currently not being charged
for home to school transport following suspension of charges in September 2019. The
proposals are to reintroduce those charges to bring them in line with Mainstream pupils.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 28Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/26

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
August 2021
The proposal to continue with temporary exemptions until March 2022 will not alter the current
position for this group of protected characteristics and where adverse impact is identified
careful consideration will be given to how mitigations can be taken to reduce this impact

Section 10. Next steps to address the anticipated impact. Select one of the
Tick
following options and explain why this has been chosen. (Remember: we have option
chosen
an anticipatory duty to make reasonable adjustments so that disabled people can
access services and work for us)
1. No adverse impact - no major change needed to the proposal. There is no
potential for discrimination or adverse impact identified.
2. Adverse impact - adjust the proposal - The EIA identifies potential problems or
missed opportunities. We will change our proposal to reduce or remove these
adverse impacts, or we will achieve our aim in another way which will not make
things worse for people.
3. Adverse impact - continue the proposal - The EIA identifies potential problems
X
or missed opportunities. We cannot change our proposal to reduce or remove
these adverse impacts, nor can we achieve our aim in another way which will not
make things worse for people. (There must be compelling reasons for continuing
with proposals which will have the most adverse impacts. Get advice from Legal
Services)
4. Actual or potential unlawful discrimination - stop and remove the proposal
– The EIA identifies actual or potential unlawful discrimination. It must be stopped.
Explanation of why option has been chosen. (Include any advice given by Legal Services.)
Options 1,2,3 have been discounted as follows:
OPTION 1 – Transport only entitled pupils This would mean removing the offer of transport
to all 2,300 non-entitled and post 16 pupils to travel using spare seats and the 420 travelling on
commercial services. This provides a robust response to the legal challenge and ensures
equity across those in receipt of transport however, it creates significant difficulties for the
2,700 non-entitles and post 16 pupils who are currently offered transport using spare seats or
on commercial services who would no longer be permitted to travel. This option would require
those affected pupils to find alternative means of transport leading to increased congestion and
emissions. It may impact on a parent’s choice of school for their child and would also result in
annual income to the Council reducing by over £410k p.a.
OPTION 2 – Charge where it is lawful to do so - but do not offer spare seats on vehicles
where it would unlawful to charge. Allowing for the recent Government exemptions, this
option would enable about 2,400 of the 2,700 non-entitled and post 16 pupils currently using
spare seats or travelling on commercial services to continue to travel, and would generate
additional income for the Council of approximately £260,000 per year at 2019/20 charges.
OPTION 3 – Charge where it is lawful to do so - and offer other spare seats for free. This
option reduces inconvenience for existing travellers and helps reduce congestion and
emissions by making best use of available seats. However, the obvious problem with this
option is that it results in some pupils being charged and others not - which could be perceived
as unfair. This option also has a disproportionate impact on pupils with special educational
needs or disabilities (SEND) as once Government exemptions expire there would be
approximately 30% non-entitled and post 16 mainstream pupils that would travel for free
compared to only 8% for SEND pupils. For these reasons it is not considered as a suitable long
term option

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 29
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/27

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
The proposed option:
OPTION 4 – Combination of Option 2 and Option 3. The proposed option mitigates the
negative impacts of Option 3 and makes it more equitable by limiting the availability of free
seats to those pupils already travelling, and offering free travel only for a limited period. This
interim option would be combined with a policy of not accepting any new applications to use
spare seats unless the vehicle concerned is compliant with PSVAR or otherwise exempt.
Under this option the proportion of mainstream and SEND pupils benefiting from free travel will
be more comparable at approximately 11% and 8% respectively. The proposal to not accept
any new applications for spare seats unless the vehicle is accessible means that the proportion
of mainstream pupils benefiting from free travel will reduce to approximately 7% in September
2020 as post 16 pupils finish their education. Free travel is time limited under this option until
July 2021 meaning any perceived unfairness in charging most pupils but letting some travel for
free is short term, with those benefiting being mostly post 16 pupils in the final year of their
education.
This option therefore provides the most equitable outcome and provides a reasonable and
proportionate solution.
The Council is subject to the public sector equality duty set out in Section 149 of the Equalities
Act 2010 (EqA2010) which requires public authorities to have due regard to


The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Equalities Act 2010 (section 149(1)(a)).
 The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it (section 149(1)(b)). This involves having due
regard to the needs to:
o remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
o take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that
are different from the needs of persons who do not share it (section 149(4)); and
o encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public
life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.
 The need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149(1)(c)). This includes having due
regard to the need to tackle prejudice and to promote understanding (section 149(5),
In the consultation which has taken place on the options as to how the Council might address
issues in home to school transport and it is appreciated that none are ideal. They all either impact
more on pupils with protected characteristics, reduce the ability for pupils to travel on spare seats
or reduce the income the Council can receive for allowing them to do so. The proposed option
mitigates these impacts by a combination of measures:
 Restricting the future offer to new pupils for travel on spare seats to accessible vehicles only
 Charging for travel using spare seats where it is legal to do so – taking advantage of any
relevant Government exemptions
 Allowing free travel using spare seats on vehicles where the council cannot charge to those
pupils currently travelling, and for a maximum period up to the end of the 2020/21 academic
year
Section 29 of the Equalities Act 2010 imposes a duty to make reasonable adjustments in
providing services and public functions, which includes the provision of home to school transport.
This duty arises where people with disabilities are placed at a substantial disadvantage.
Where the duty arises the Council must take such steps as is reasonable to avoid the
disadvantage or adopt a reasonable alternative method of providing the service. The measures
set out in the proposals are considered to be a reasonable and proportionate way of
implementing the service in a way to avoid and limit any disadvantage, In considering the
responses to the options in the consultation the Council has balanced and compared the
alternatives and is seeking to provide an outcome which provides a service as close as possible
to that enjoyed by pupils who do not have a disability.
– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 30Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/28

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
The duty regarding reasonable adjustments is continual and will be revisited through the periodic
reviews identified in this EIA.
August 2021
The implementation of option 4 in September 2020 set the principle of making use of any DfT
exemptions for closed home to school transport services. The DfT has now made available
extensions to the exemptions for these services to 31 March 2022.
Whilst the new exemption offer does mean that all pupils can now be charged for a pass, the
principles behind adopting option 4, are still the same and appropriate and there is little change
to the current position.

Section 11. If the proposal is to be implemented how will you find out how it is really
affecting people? (How will you monitor and review the changes?)
Service demand will be monitored through applications over time, together with monitoring of
numbers of appeals.
This will be done through a 6 and 12 month post implementation review.
August 2021
The sale of passes has been continually monitored and reviewed throughout the year to ensure
compliance with option 4 and the exemptions in place.
With the implementation of option 4 last September we saw a rise in the number of complaints
received from parents of pupils who could not be sold a pass due to the restrictions on the
services. This was due to the number of people that we had to turn down and we received many
enquiries/complaints via MP’s and local members particularly in the Autumn Term but also
throughout the academic year.
The public do not understand why when there is a spare seat that their child can’t pay for it and
travel. This resulted in an increased number of parents appealing to receive free home to school
transport.
Some schools have also fed back that they have found it difficult to manage their services and
secure compliant vehicles for their private contracts.
The last 12 months have been difficult to get a true picture of numbers of passengers and issues
arising due to the continually changing arrangement with home to school transport as a result of
the COVID pandemic and lockdowns etc.
The proposal extends the adoption of option 4 until July 2022 so monitoring will continue as
before.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 31
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/29

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Section 12. Action plan. List any actions you need to take which have been identified in this
EIA, including post implementation review to find out how the outcomes have been achieved in
practice and what impacts there have actually been on people with protected characteristics.
Action
Lead
By when
Progress
Monitoring
arrangements
Determine
IPT
30 June 2020
Complete
operating
procedure to
consider
application to
travel using
spare seat from
non-entitled or
post 16 pupil
requiring
accessible
vehicle
Advise all
IPT
30 June 2020
Complete
stakeholders of
revised process
and procedures
for allocating and
charging for
spare seats
6 month post
IPT
6 months after
Reviewed
implementation
implementation:
review
12 month post
IPT
12 months after
implementation
implementation:
Reviewed
review
Continue to
IPT
Ongoing with
review situation
exemption
on an ongoing
position review in
basis
December 2021
Section 13. Summary Summarise the findings of your EIA, including impacts,
recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal advice, and next steps.
This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.
Following a challenge to past practice of making spare seats on home to school transport
available to non-entitled and post 16 pupils for a fee, the Council has had to review its practice.
The initial response was to cease charging for the use of spare seats in most cases, with a
requirement that the provision of this discretionary service be reviewed following clarification of
the legal position.
It is now clear that the application of equalities legislation means the Council cannot charge for
the use of spare seats on home to school transport where the vehicle used is not either compliant
or otherwise exempt from Public Service Vehicle Accessibility Regulations.
Most vehicles used for home to school transport do not comply with the Regulations but recent
temporary Government exemptions will enable the Council to reintroduce charges for most spare
seats if it chooses to do so.
Consultation has taken place on four options as to how the Council might respond. None are
ideal as they all either reduce the ability for pupils to travel on spare seats or reduce the income
the Council can receive for allowing them to do so. Some also impact more on pupils with
protected characteristics.

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 32Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/30

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
The proposed option mitigates these impacts by a combination of measures:
 Restricting the future offer to new pupils for travel on spare seats to accessible vehicles
only
 Charging for travel using spare seats where it is legal to do so – taking advantage of any
relevant Government exemptions
 Allowing free travel using spare seats on vehicles where the council cannot charge to
those pupils currently travelling, and for a maximum period up to the end of the 2020/21
academic year
It is desirable that home to school transport is provided using accessible vehicles but this is not
practicable in the short term and is not affordable. There is no legal requirement to use accessible
vehicles other than when needed to meet the needs of a pupil, and the Council cannot therefore
commit to using only accessible vehicles for the foreseeable future. However, offering spare
seats on non-accessible vehicles has the potential to have a disproportionate impact on pupils
with mobility needs and needs to be considered carefully.
The Council cannot refuse transport using a spare seat to a pupil simply because that vehicle in
not capable of meeting the mobility need of the pupil. The Council has a duty to consider what
reasonable adjustments might be made to enable the pupil to travel, which may include the
replacement of the vehicle with an accessible one. This would almost certainly involve additional
cost and may even be impossible to achieve within the constraints of the contract or the market.
Selling of spare seats is a discretionary service so any disproportionate impact could be mitigated
simply by withdrawing the service, or limiting it only to accessible vehicles. This provides equity
but is an extreme response. Instead it is proposed that spare seats on all vehicles continue to
be offered but it be made clear that the Council would welcome applications from pupils with
mobility issues and all reasonable adjustments will be made to accommodate the request. Each
case will have to be assessed on its merits and will be subject to the normal appeals process if
any pupil is denied transport for whatever reason. This will satisfy the Council’s statutory
functions and enable the maximum number of pupils to benefit from the offer of a spare seat.
August 2021
There was 6 and 12 month implementation reviews undertaken, to consider and ensure that any
adverse impacts on young people are mitigated. The key points that came out of the review are
described in Section 11 above.
In an environment where there continues to be insufficient suitable vehicles to achieve 100%
PSVAR compliance, the DfT has made available temporary exemptions for closed Home to
School services, to allow additional time for the market to react.
In the short term, temporary exemptions for closed door home to school services will continue
from September 2021 until 31 March 2022, for all services.
The summary position previously described above remains the same as a result of the exemption
extension but the Council will need to continually review the situation and in particular, having
regard for the availability of vehicles as a result of COVID 19 and the DfT review of the PSVAR
described in Baroness Vere’s letter.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 33
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/31

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 34Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/32

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 35
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/33

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

– 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 36Use of DfT PSVARNYCC
Exemptions on Home to School Transport/34

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 37
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/35

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

Section 14. Sign off section
This full EIA was completed by:
Name: Andy Holmes
Job title: Service Improvement Officer
Directorate: BES
Signature: Andy Holmes
Completion date: 06 May 2020
Reviewed in August 2021 by
Name: Catherine Price
Job Title : Contract & Commissioning Manager
Directorate : BES
Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Ian Fielding
Date: 06 May 2020
Review Authorised by Assistant Director (signature) : Michael Leah
Date: 04 August 2021

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
PageUse38
of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/36

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 3

Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 39

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal

Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

Continued Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport Contracts
To continue to use exemptions provided by DfT to allow the sale of spare seats to
Non Entitled and Post 16 pupils on existing bus services provided as part of our
statutory duty in relation to home to school transport
Business and Environmental Services
IPT
Catherine Price
Catherine Price
July 2021

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/37

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 3

Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative
options were not progressed.
N/A
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible.
The continued use of the exemptions provided by the DfT in relation to PSVAR enables the Council to continue to sell bus passes to school
pupils/student to enable them access their education during the 2021/22 academic year.

Page 40

This will bring income to the Home to school transport budget for at least 2 terms (possibly 3 pending further advice in relation to exemptions
from DfT expected in early 2022)
Whilst we do not yet know how many applications we will receive and be in a position to offer passes to the income received is expected to be
in the region of
£350K

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/38

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 3

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer
term positive impact. Please
include all potential impacts
over the lifetime of a project
and provide an explanation.

Explain why will it have this effect and
over what timescale?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)

How will this proposal impact
on the environment?

Where possible/relevant please
include:
 Changes over and above business
as usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Page 41

Emissions
from travel

X

Emissions
from
construction
Emissions
from
running of
buildings
Other

X

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing
use of single use plastic
Reduce water consumption

X

Minimise
greenhouse gas
emissions e.g.
reducing emissions
from travel,
increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

Explain how you
Explain how you
plan to mitigate any plan to improve any
negative impacts. positive outcomes
as far as possible.

X

X

X
X

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/39

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 3

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer
term positive impact. Please
include all potential impacts
over the lifetime of a project
and provide an explanation.

Explain why will it have this effect and
over what timescale?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)

How will this proposal impact
on the environment?

Where possible/relevant please
include:
 Changes over and above business
as usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Page 42

Ensure resilience to the effects of
climate change e.g. reducing flood
risk, mitigating effects of drier,
hotter summers

X

Enhance conservation and
wildlife

X

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and
special qualities of North
Yorkshire’s landscape

X

Other (please state below)

X

Explain how you
Explain how you
plan to mitigate any plan to improve any
negative impacts. positive outcomes
as far as possible.

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/40

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 3
Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal
meets those standards.
N/A

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts,
including any legal advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.

The bus services that non entitled pupils will access as a result of this decision will be running regardless of the decision for entitled pupils who
we have a statutory duty to provide transport for. It is considered a good use of resource to sell spare seats on these services than to force
passengers to find an alternative way to travel which may result in many more vehicles on the road at school times each day.

Page 43

Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:
Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

Catherine Price
Contract and Commissioning Manager
Integrated Passenger Transport
Business and Environmental Services
Catherine Price
28 July 2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Michael Leah, Assistant Director, Travel, Environmental and Countryside
Services
Date: 4/8/2021

NYCC – 20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Use of DfT PSVAR Exemptions on Home to School Transport/41

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
North Yorkshire County Council
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe
Modification order 2021
Report of the Assistant Director – Travel, Environmental & Countryside Services
1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

To advise the Corporate Director of Business and Environmental Services (BES)
of the proposed submission to the Secretary of State (SoS) of an opposed
Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO).

1.2

To request the Corporate Director, in consultation with the Executive Member for
Access, to authorise that North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) in its
submission of the opposed Modification Order to the SoS will support
confirmation of the Order.

2.0

Background

2.1

The application for the DMMO to upgrade an existing public footpath to a Restricted
Byway was submitted to the County Council in 2003.

2.2

The application was supported by a range of historical documentary evidence and
user evidence.

2.3

An informal consultation was carried out and objections were received. It was
determined that the evidence met the required standard to make an Order. A copy
of the decision report is included as Appendix A

2.4

The Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) was made on 16 February 2020
and was advertised, attracting objections which remain outstanding. The County
Council cannot confirm a DMMO where there are outstanding objections; the Order
must be forwarded to the Secretary of State (SoS) for resolution.

3.0

Representation made by the local member

3.1

No formal representations were received from the local councillor in response to
the consultations regarding the Order.

4.0

Financial implications

4.1

As the evidence submitted consists only of documentary evidence, not user
evidence, it is probable that the Order would be resolved by written
representations.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/1

Page 45
OFFICIAL

4.2

There would be an unavoidable cost to the Authority in preparing a submission to
the SoS, and responding to any queries raised by the SoS. These costs would
relate to officer time which would be met by the respective staffing budgets.

5.0

Equalities Implications

5.1

It is the view that the recommendations do not have an adverse impact on any of
the protected characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010.

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

The opposed Modification Order would be determined by an Inspector appointed
by the SoS, and, as stated above, determination will most likely be by way of written
representations.

6.2

The Inspector, on the basis of the evidence and the legal criteria will decide
whether or not to confirm the opposed Modification Order. If he/she decides to
confirm the Order, the routes will be amended on the Definitive Map and statement
in accordance with the details within the Modification Order.

7.0

Climate Change Implications

7.1

The proposal is to alter the status of routes already recorded as public routes within
the County Council’s records. The confirmation of this order would have no
positive or negative impact on climate change.

8.0

Current Decision to be made

81

In submitting an opposed Order to the SoS the County Council needs to express
whether, on the basis of the available evidence, it;

supports confirmation of the Order,

believes the Order should not be confirmed, or

considers the evidence is either so finely balanced, or is particularly unclear
and wishes to take a neutral stance.

8.2

The current decision to be made is which stance the County Council is to take
within its submission of this opposed DMMO to the SoS.

8.3

One landowner has submitted an objection to the sealed order which relates to the
suitability of the route for the use intended, questioning the widths in the Order and
challenges the user evidence.

8.4

In the absence of any evidence countering the historical documentary evidence in
support of the Order there is no reason for the Authority not to support the
confirmation of the Modification Order.

8.5

The user evidence may be subject to a successful challenge but the historical
evidence is sufficiently cogent and compelling to support confirmation of the Order.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/2

Page 46
OFFICIAL

9.0

Recommendation

9.1

That the Director authorises the Authority to support confirmation of the Order
within its submission of the opposed Modification Order to the Secretary of State.

Michael Leah
Assistant Director: Travel, Environmental & Countryside Services
Author of report: Ron Allan
Background papers: File Ref HAR/2003/01/DMMO

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/3

Page 47
OFFICIAL

Location Plan

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/4

Page 48
OFFICIAL

Page 49
PLAN 2
NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/5

OFFICIAL

North Yorkshire County Council
Corporate Director - BES
20 August 2021
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe
Modification order 2021

AUTHORISATION
I approve / do not approve the recommendation set out above
………………………………………………………………………………………………….
ANY ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATION or COMMENT:
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Karl Battersby
Corporate Director - BES
Signed: ……………………………….…Date: ………………….………

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/6

Page 50
OFFICIAL

Appendix A

North Yorkshire County Council
Report to the Assistant Director – Transport, Environment and Countryside
Services
04 May 2021
Application for a Definitive Map Modification Order to upgrade Footpath no.
15.113/12 (part) at Becklands Lane, Roecliffe to a Restricted Byway
1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

To advise the Assistant Director of an opposed application for a Definitive Map
Modification Order to upgrade Footpath no. 15.113/12 (part) at Becklands Lane,
Roecliffe to a bridleway, and of further evidence that the route may have higher
rights. A location plan is attached to this report as Plan 1. The route is shown in
detail as A - G on Plan 2.

1.2

To request the Assistant Director to authorise the making of a Definitive Map
Modification Order to record the Footpath no. 15.113/12 (part) at Becklands
Lane, Roecliffe as a restricted byway along the application route, on the basis of
the discovery of evidence, during investigation into the application, of existing
higher rights than that of bridleway. In addition, to record a section of Thorns
Lane as restricted byway on the basis of the same evidence.

2.0

Scheme of delegation

2.1

Within the County Council’s scheme of delegation, it is delegated to the Assistant
Director – Transport, Environment and Countryside Services to exercise the
functions of the Council under Part III of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 in
relation to the power to make and advertise Definitive Map Modification Orders,
including where an objection has been received from any person or body.

3.0

The application
Applicant:
Date of application:
Type of Application
Parish:
Local Member:
Application supported by:

British Horse Society
17/11/2003
Definitive Map Modification Order
Roecliffe
Cllr Robert Windlass (at date of consultation)
14 Evidence of Use Forms

List of documentary evidence:

1841 Inclosure Award and Map
1844 Hobsons Map
1852 Tithe Map
1852 Map
1940 Map 2nd War revision
1949 WRCC Parish Schedule
Bacons ½ inch Road Map
Roecliffe Meadows Map

Applicant’s grounds for making To correct alleged error in recording of status.
the application

Page 51

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/7

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

4.0

Relevant legal criteria

4.1

In deciding whether to make a Modification Order to add a route to the Definitive
Map, the County Council must be satisfied that, in accordance with Section 53 of
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the evidence discovered by the County
Council, when taken into consideration with all other relevant evidence, is sufficient
to show that a public right of way “subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist” along
a claimed route.

4.2

Where evidence exists which suggests that a route already recorded on the
Definitive Map should be shown there but with a different status, the threshold of
evidence required is higher, and the test to be met is whether on the “balance of
probabilities” a particular status of public right of way subsists along the route in
question.

4.3

The proposal herein described is to add the section shown A – B on Plan 2 to the Definitive
Map as Restricted Byway, and to upgrade the existing footpath (as it was recorded at the
time of the application being submitted) and as shown B – C - D – E – F – G on Plan 2 to
a restricted byway.

4.4

Diversion Order 2012. In 2012 the owners of the land, Reed Bordall, required a
diversion of the existing footpath from between points C - D – E to an alignment
between points C – H - E to allow for development and security of the Reed Bordall
Site.

4.5

To facilitate the diversion of the route which was subject of the application for the
DMMO, an agreement was reached with Reed Bordall that the Authority would
process a Diversion Order for the footpath on the understanding that the landowner
was prepared to enter into a conditional Creation Agreement to dedicate rights over
C – H – E to match any proven rights over C – D – E, to be implemented only in
the event a DMMO was made and was confirmed. As part of the mutual agreement
the Authority agreed to attempt to extinguish any rights that became proven to exist
over C – D – E.

4.6

A conditional Creation Agreement was signed by both Reed Bordall and NYCC to
this effect, and is held on the case file. The Diversion Order was unopposed, and
was successfully confirmed and completed.

4.7

At the conclusion of this process, if the Modification Order is made, and is
confirmed without amendment then the Creation Agreement will be implemented,
and there will be a restricted byway along the route A-B-C-H-E-F-G.

4.8

This would leave a section of restricted byway between points C-D-E which will be
attempted to be stopped up by way of an application to the Magistrates Court.

4.9

Thorns Lane is not currently recorded with any public status within the County
Council’s records. The original application did not include the section of Thorns
Lane (formerly known as Junction Road), between Points A – B on Plan 2, as it
seems that this was considered to already be highway by the applicant. However,
as a result of the research carried out officers believe that there is comparable
evidence to indicate highway status along the section A – B, and that this section
should also be included in the Order if one is to be made.

Page 52

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/8

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

5.0

Evidence

5.1

As part of the earliest processes towards the production of the Definitive Map
Parish Councils were required to record the routes they believed to be public rights
of way within their parish onto maps and within written schedules.

Evidence item
1841 Inclosure Map
and award

1844 Hobsons Map

1852 Tithe Map and
Schedule

1846 Railway
Deposited Plans

1940 Map 2nd war
revision

Parish Schedule
1949

Summary
Describes Becklands Lane,
Bowlands Lane and
Junction Road (now called
Thorns Lane) as ‘private
carriage and occupation
ways’ which were to be
maintained by the people of
Roecliffe.

Assessment
This route is described as to be
maintained in effect at public
expense therefore must be
considered to be public
highways. Routes laid out as
bridleroads are referred to as
such therefore this is good
evidence that Becklands Lane,
Bowlands Lane and Junction
Road were of a higher status
than bridleway.
This is a very small scale map,
Commercially available
and the fact that the application
map which shows the
route is shown is good evidence
application route
that the route was of a relatively
substantial nature at that time.
It is unlikely that a bridleway
Both Becklands Lane and
would have been described in
Junction Road allocated
the Tithe Award as a road,
number 160 which is
therefore, read in conjunction
described as a “road in the
new enclosure” in the Tithe with the Inclosure Award of just
11 years earlier this is
Award 1852
supportive evidence of public
highway of a higher status than
a bridleway.
The terminology within the
Indicates a section of the
route as a ‘Public Highway’, schedule makes no distinction
between the status of the main
the term also used to
village street and the application
describe the main road
through the village to Ripon. route, providing good evidence
that the application route was of
the same status as the village
street, being a public vehicular
thoroughfare.
Shows the application route Open to interpretation, but is
but no key or title.
supportive that the route had a
substantial physical appearance
at the time of the survey for the
preparation of the map.
The Parish Schedules were This is good evidence that by
1949/50 the route was still
part of the first stage of the
physically passable in a vehicle
preparation of Definitive
and that the public still made
Maps. Within the Schedule
occasional use of the route by
the route is described as a
vehicle. The Parish Council
“Private carriageway used
acknowledge the Inclosure
by the public when Bar
Award and record the status of
Lane becomes flooded”.

Page 53

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/9

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

Draft Statement
1953

Shows that by this stage in
the process the description
of the majority of the route
had been amended to read
‘bridle road and footpath’
(the footpath section is not
part of application route).
The British Transport
Commission objected to the
route being shown at all as
a public route, but by 1955
BTC admitted existence of
footpath rights, and BTC
and the PC agreed the
route to be recorded as FP
within the next stage of the
process.
Roecliffe Meadows
Commercially available
Map
base map which shows the
application route
Bacons ½ inch Road Commercially available
Map
map which shows the
application route
Evidence of Use
11 Qualifying user evidence
forms indicating use by
horse during the relevant 20
year period (the application
date being taken as the
date of challenge) and
dating as far back as 1959.
Details of any evidence which counters the
application evidence
Old correspondence Correspondence dated
1953-55 held in Parish File
detailing status of route at
time the Definitive Map was
being prepared. Although
the route was initially
referred to as a ‘private
carriageway’ by the PC, the
recording was later
amended to footpath
following an objection from
British Transport
Commission, and was
accepted by Parish Council.

6.0

the route as shown in the
Inclosure Award.
The PC had initially correctly
recorded the status of the route
but for practical reasons, agreed
to bridleway and then when
pressed, agreed to the route
being recorded as FP. Whilst
the agreed status may have
been more desirable to the BTC
the existing status, initially
recorded and acknowledged by
the PC, should not have been
disregarded.

Provides no evidence towards
the status of the application
route.
Indicates that the route was of a
substantial nature to be shown
at such a small scale.
Adds evidential weight to the
application, and demonstrates
the public use of the route on
horseback prior to 2003, the
date of the application.

Indicates that the British
Transport Commission did not
want the route crossing the
railway at all but later accepted
pedestrian rights. The Parish
Council accepted this status for
practical reasons despite being
aware of the content of the
Inclosure Award, but also noting
that the locals had not
specifically identified the route
was being used by horses at
that time. This explains why the
route was recorded on the
definitive map as a public
footpath only, but also
demonstrated disregard of the
historic evidence.

Objections to the application

Page 54

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/10

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

6.1

Two objections were received in response to the informal consultation on the
proposal to add a bridleway along the short section of Thorns Lane and Becklands
Lane.

6.2

Landowner 1, states that Thorns Lane is gated with the gates being locked each
night and therefore disputes that Thorns Lane has acquired Highway status.

6.3

Landowner 2 states that Thorns Lane cannot have acquired highway status
because a gate across the track is locked on a nightly basis for security.

7.0

Conclusions regarding the evidence and objections to the application

7.1

The overall weight of the historical evidence combined with the user evidence can
be considered to present a strong case that the application route and Thorns Lane
should be recorded as a restricted byway.

7.2

The inclusion of the route in the Inclosure Award and described as a private
carriageway and occupation way, and within the Railway Deposited Plans as a
‘highway’ is clear evidence of a highway status above that of footpath.

7.3

The objection based on the presence of a barrier on Thorns Lane can only be
considered in the relation to the modern user evidence. Three users state that they
passed through a gap at the side of the barrier on horseback which indicates that
the barrier cannot be considered to be an effective challenge or obstruction to use
of the route by horse riders. This cannot therefore be considered to be an effective
rebuttal of the user evidence along Thorns Lane.

7.4

The objections have no effect on the evidential weight of the historical evidence
which in itself is sufficient to demonstrate that on the balance of probabilities that
the application route was, and therefore still is, a highway with a status greater than
footpath status, but where there is no convincing evidence of vehicular rights.

7.5

Whilst the level of evidence required for the majority of the application route needs
to meet the test whether ‘on the balance of probability’ public restricted byway
rights exist, the level of evidence supporting the section of Thorns Lane, needs
only to meet the criteria that the route is ’reasonably alleged’ to exist‘, as this
section of route has no recorded status at the moment.

7.6

Officers are satisfied that the relevant tests have been met respectively.

8.0

Representation made by the local member

8.1

None

9.0

Financial implications

9.1

In the event that an Order were to be made and was then opposed, there may be
financial implications for the authority in covering any cost associated with any
subsequent public inquiry. Such costs cannot be avoided where the Planning
Inspectorate decides that a public inquiry should be held to resolve an application.
If an Inquiry were to be held the Authority may need to appoint external advocacy.

10.0

Equalities implications

Page 55

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/11

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

10.1

There is a statutory requirement to investigate applications for Definitive Map
Modification Orders, regardless as to whether the outcome would benefit or
prejudice owners, occupiers or members of the general public, and as such it is
considered that equality and diversity issues are not relevant to the outcome of the
process. In any event it is considered that the outcome would have no impact on
the protected characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010.

11.0

Recommendation

11.1

It is therefore recommended that: the Assistant Director, Transport,
Environment and Countryside Services, authorises the making of a Definitive
Map Modification Order for the route shown as A B-C-D-E-F-G on Plan 2 of this
report to be recorded on the Definitive Map as a Restricted Byway. Further,
that in the event that the Order is made and is confirmed also authorises that
an application to the Magistrates’ Court is made to extinguish the newly proven
public rights between points C – D – E.

Author of Report: Ron Allan
Background Documents:
DMMO Case file - HAR-2003-01-DMMO Roecliffe (Becklands Ln)

Page 56

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/12

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

Plan 1

Page 57

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/13

OFFICIAL

Appendix A

Plan 2

Page 58

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Restricted Byway no. 15.113/16 & Footpath no 15.113/12 Roecliffe Modification order 2021/14

OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 6
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the
North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To inform the Corporate Director, BES, in consultation with County Councillor Don
Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, of the second nationwide review of Flood
Risk Management Plans (“FRMP2”) and to seek approval for the North Yorkshire
Specific Priorities for the next plan period, in North Yorkshire County Council’s role
as Lead Local Flood Authority.

1.2

To seek approval of the Corporate Director, BES, in consultation with County
Councillor Don Mackenzie to commence a review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk
Strategy to align with the introduction of the new FRMP.

2.0

Background information

2.1

The Flood Risk Regulations 2009 (FRR 2009) transposed the EU Floods Directive
into English and Welsh law and continue to apply now that we have left the European
Union. They set out a process for preparing, reviewing and updating flood risk
management plans (FRMPs) over a six year planning cycle. The planning cycle
starts with a preliminary flood risk assessment and the identification of flood risk
areas following ministerial guidance, followed by flood risk and hazard mapping and
finally FRMPs.

2.2

The first planning cycle ran from 2009-2015, with the first FRMPs published in
England in 2016 (these contain measures for the period 2015-2021). The current
FRMPs are published on GOV.UK.

2.3

The second cycle of planning runs from 2016-2021. The EA must review and update
revised FRMPs at least every six years. Second cycle FRMPs will contain measures
for the period 2021-2027.

2.4

The national flood and coastal erosion risk management (FCERM) strategy says:
"Flood risk management plans (under the Flood Risk Regulations 2009) describe
current and future risk of flooding from rivers, the sea, surface water, groundwater
and reservoirs, including specific actions to manage risk. The first cycle of plans for
2015 to 2021 were developed in partnership with the Environment Agency, lead local
flood authorities and water and sewerage companies. The second cycle of flood risk
management plans will set out specific actions between 2021 and 2027 and
encourage authorities to start to take an adaptive approach to strategic flood risk
planning using the 2018 UK climate change projections".

Page 59

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/1

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

2.5

The statutory obligation in the FRR 2009 requires the Environment Agency and lead
local flood authorities (LLFAs) to prepare FRMPs for the flood risk areas (FRAs)
identified in the preliminary flood risk assessment (PFRA) stage of the planning
cycle. For the second cycle of FRR 2009 obligations there are both FRAs for river
and sea flooding and surface water flooding.

2.6

There are no FRA for river and sea flooding or FRAs for surface water flooding
identified in North Yorkshire in the 2017 PFRA. The dispersed and rural nature of
communities in North Yorkshire means that the flood risk in any specific community is
relatively low, in comparison to other authorities nationally or even regionally, so it is
not appropriate to introduce any FRA’s as part of this review.

3.0

Next steps

3.1

Whilst there is no FRA in North Yorkshire, NYCC officers have nevertheless been
encouraged to work with the Environment Agency to identify measures for both
FRMPs and River Basin Management Plans (RBMP)s that deliver multiple benefits
for people, places and nature as part of this process.

3.2

The measures proposed for North Yorkshire as a result of these collaborative officer
workshops with the EA are as follows.
1.
Continue to work with the local communities, to increase their understanding
and preparedness of flooding in North Yorkshire
2.
Continue to use investigations of sources of flooding collaboratively to inform
future capital and revenue programming in North Yorkshire
3.
Continue to deliver targeted modelling studies in North Yorkshire
4.
Enhance the flood forecasting system, using the latest evidence and modelling
in North Yorkshire
5.
Continue to identify opportunities to improve flood resilience in North Yorkshire
6.
Work with communities, landowners and businesses to inform of the
maintenance responsibilities relating to flood risk assets in North Yorkshire
7.
Continue to update and refresh the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy in
North Yorkshire
8.
Work in partnership with Risk Management Authorities (RMAs) and other
organisations to explore flood risk improvement options that also have
environment and socio economic benefits in North Yorkshire
9.
Improve the understanding of catchment wide flood mechanisms and
management opportunities in North Yorkshire

3.3

These are based on the existing 2016 North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy and the
agreed approach to identifying and programming schemes and are also
complementary to the Environment Agency’s priorities and work. The actions have
been rationalised from the previous, but have been significantly reduced to give a
more targeted and it is considered that they better reflect the direction of work of both
the Environment Agency and NYCC in its capacity as LLFA.

3.4

During Summer 2021 public consultation on the draft FRMPs goes live for three
months, and the review is due to be completed by 22 December 2021

3.5

There is an opportunity to align the measures in FRMPs with the implementation of
other plans and strategies such as local flood risk management strategies. The
present North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy was published in 2016 and it is
consequently considered an appropriate time to commence work to review the
strategy, to bring it into line with developments in flood risk management.

Page 60

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/2

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

4.0

The North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy

4.1

The present North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy is available on the NYCC website at
the following link: https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/flood-and-water-management

4.2

The main changes to the flood risk management picture since the introduction of the
strategy are as follows:

The present national FRMP2 review

Review and publication of the national EA strategy in 2019, with an increased
emphasis on increasing resilience

The introduction of the NYCC flood prioritisation criteria in 2018

The Publication of a total of twelve formal section 19 investigation reports,
following flood events in North Yorkshire, which have informed the priority
locations for flood works in the NYCC LLFA programme.

4.3

It is therefore considered that the FRMP2 provides a timely opportunity to review and
refresh the existing strategy. This will include working with other Risk Management
Authorities, to review the existing strategy and update the associated action plan,
with a view to opening consultation early in 2022 and publishing in April 2022.

4.4

This report seeks approval for the commencement of this work, to inform a draft
document which will be presented to the Corporate Director, BES, in consultation
with County Councillor Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, for consideration,
prior to publication for public consultation. The adoption of the strategy will be the
subject of an Executive decision and then formal adoption via a meeting of the
County Council.

5.0

Equalities implications

5.1

A Full Equalities Impact Assessment is included in Appendix Two.

5.2

The Assessment finds that the proposals will have no heightened effect upon any
protected characteristic or combination of protected characteristics.

6.0

Financial implications

6.1

It is proposed to undertake the review using existing resource in the Development
Management Team.

6.2

The review will focus on ensuring the strategy reflects present policy and direction of
flood risk management work in North Yorkshire.

6.3

Working practices associated with the delivery of flood risk management have refined
significantly since the introduction of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and
processes and policies supporting how work is delivered in North Yorkshire are now
well established. It is consequently not expected that the review will radically amend
business as usual for NYCC.

6.4

A further report will be brought to the Corporate Director, BES, in consultation with
County Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, to seek approval
for the publication of the consultation version of the refreshed strategy prior to its
formal adoption. This report will highlight any financial implications arising for NYCC.

6.5

There are therefore no financial implications at this stage of the process arising from
this report, except for staff time which can be met from existing resources within the
directorate.

Page 61

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/3

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

Flood Risk Regulations 2009 (FRR 2009)

7.2

The statutory obligation in the FRR 2009 requires the Environment Agency and lead
local flood authorities (LLFAs) to prepare FRMPs for the relevant flood risk areas
(FRAs) identified in the preliminary flood risk assessment (PFRA) stage of the
planning cycle. The EA is required to undertake its first review of the FRMP by 22nd
December 2021 and following that at intervals of no more than 6 years.

7.3

The are no relevant flood risk areas identified by NYCC as the LLFA following the
preliminary flood risk assessment in 2017 and therefore no requirement for a local
FRMP to have been produced.

7.4

The LLFA is under a duty to cooperate with the EA in exercising any functions under
the FRR 2009 which includes its review of the FRMP.

7.5

Flood & Water Management Act 2010 (FWMA 2010)

7.6

Section 9 of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 requires the LLFA for an
area in England to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a strategy for local flood risk
management in its area (a “local flood risk management strategy”).

7.7

“Local flood risk” is defined as flood risk from surface runoff, groundwater, and
ordinary watercourses.

7.8

The LLFA must consult other risk management authorities that may be affected by
the strategy, and the public in the production of its strategy, and publish a summary
of the strategy.

8.0

Climate Change Implications

8.1

A Climate Change Impact Assessment is included as Appendix Two of this report.

8.2

The report relates to the review of both the national FRMP2, and the North Yorkshire
Flood Risk Strategy. As this will set the strategic direction and priorities for flood
mitigation, it is expected that it will offer positive benefits to resilience and future
climate change projections. It will be undertaken in a considerate way towards
opportunities for offering secondary water quality and environmental benefits. Overall
the proposals are anticipated to have a positive impact upon climate change.

8.0

Recommendations

8.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Director, BES, in consultation with County
Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access, approves:
I.
The measures for North Yorkshire to be included in the FRMP2
II.
The progression of work to refresh the existing North Yorkshire Flood Risk
Strategy

BARRIE MASON
Assistant Director - Highways and Transportation
Author of Report: Emily Mellalieu
Background Documents:

North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy
National FRMP

Page 62

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/4

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
Initial equality impact assessment screening form
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’)
This form records and equality screening process to determine the relevance of
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate
or proportionate.
Directorate
Service area
Proposal being screened
Officer(s) carrying out screening
What are you proposing to do?
Why are you proposing this? What
are the desired outcomes?

Business and Environmental Services
Highways and Transportation
National Review of the Flood Risk Management
Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North
Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy
Emily Mellalieu
Agree to North Yorkshire priorities to be included
in the national FRMP2 and to commence work to
refresh the NY flood risk strategy accordingly.
The FRMP2 is a statutory review being
undertaken by the Environment Agency. There is
no statutory duty on NYCC to be part of this work
as there is no active Flood risk area in NY,
however setting priorities demonstrates the LLFA
commitment to proactive flood risk management.
No

Does the proposal involve a
significant commitment or removal
of resources? Please give details.
Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by
the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed characteristic
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions:
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected
characteristics?
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as
important?
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates
to?
If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep
for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic

Yes

Age
Disability
Sex (Gender)
Race
Sexual orientation
Gender reassignment
Religion or belief
Pregnancy or maternity
Marriage or civil partnership
NYCC additional characteristic

No

Don’t
know/No info
available

No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/5

Page 63

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
People in rural areas
People on a low income
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
Does the proposal relate to an area
where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g.
disabled people’s access to public
transport)? Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant
effect on how other organisations
operate? (e.g. partners, funding
criteria, etc.). Do any of these
organisations support people with
protected characteristics? Please
explain why you have reached this
conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)
Reason for decision

Signed (Assistant Director or
equivalent)
Date

No
No
No
No.

No

EIA not
Continue to
relevant or
X
full EIA:
proportionate:
The report has not identified any issues, which
would adversely impact upon any protected
characteristic. The work is related to the
environment given that it is related to flood risk
so would not have the potential to impact more
severely on any group or characteristic.
Barrie Mason
09/08/2021

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/6

Page 64

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2

Climate Change Impact Assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 65

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal
Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of
the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy
To include local measures affecting North Yorkshire to be included in the national
FRMP2 and to commence work to review the existing North Yorkshire Flood Risk
Strategy.
BES
Network Strategy
Emily Mellalieu
D Hugill
22/07/2021
NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/7

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2
Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not
progressed.

Page 66

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

Minimise greenhouse
gas emissions e.g.
reducing emissions from
travel, increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N/A The FRMP2 is part of a national statutory process undertaken by the Environment Agency. NYCC in its capacity as Lead Local Flood Authority
has a statutory responsibility to produce and update a flood risk strategy addressing local flood risk.
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?
Cost neutral. This will be undertaken using existing officer resource.

Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Emissions
from travel

X

n/a

n/a

Emissions
from
constructio
n
Emissions
from

X

As above

n/a

X

As above

n/a

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/8

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

APPENDIX 2

Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Page 67

running of
buildings
Other

X

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing
use of single use plastic
Reduce water consumption
Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

X
X
X

X
Ensure resilience to the effects of
climate change e.g. reducing flood
risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter
summers

As above

n/a

As above

n/a

As above

n/a

Flood mitigation projects can have positive
secondary impacts on water quality.

n/a

Flood risk mitigation is aimed to increase
resilience to flood events which are projected to
increase with the changing climate

n/a

Partnership working with
responsible organisations
to maximise shared
benefits
To ensure projects and
modelling/feasibility
consider the impacts of
climate change and
include future expected
rainfall patterns.

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/9

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

Page 68

Enhance conservation and wildlife

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
l
t)

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

APPENDIX 2

Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

X

Sympathetically delivered actions can have a
positive impact.

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and special
qualities of North Yorkshire’s
landscape

X

Other (please state below)

X

All projects will consider the character of the
location in which they are delivered.

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

n/a

Positive partnership
engagement through
catchment management
arrangements.

n/a

As above

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those
standards.
Working near watercourses. SuDS guidance

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/10

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.
The report relates to the review of both the national FRMP2 and North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy. As this will set the strategic direction and priorities for
flood mitigation it is expected that it will offer positive benefits to resilience and future climate change projections. It will be undertaken in a considerate way
towards opportunities for offering secondary water quality and environmental benefits. Overall the proposals are anticipated to have a positive impact upon
climate change.
Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:

Page 69

Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

Emily Mellalieu
Development Management Team Leader
H&T Network Strategy
BES
E Mellalieu
22/07/2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason
Date: 09/08/2021

NYCC –20 August 2021 - Executive Members
National Review of the Flood Risk Management Plans (FRMP2) and local review of the North Yorkshire Flood Risk Strategy/11

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Forward Highways Capital Programme
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To seek agreement from the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental
Services (BES), in consultation with County Councillor Don Mackenzie Executive
Member for Access,

for adding new schemes to the forward highways capital programme.

for additions to the Highways Capital Works Programme for Structural
Highway Maintenance for 2021/22 identified since the last Highways Capital
Programme report dated 21 August 2020

2.0

Background

2.1

The Highways Capital Programme (HCP) is made up of Street Lighting, Bridges and
Structures, Integrated Transport and Structural Highway Maintenance. They are each
subject to their own prioritisation methods based upon an assessment of the problem
that is being addressed.

2.2

The Corporate Director BES in consultation with BES Executive Members considered
a report on 23 April 2021 where the provisional headline allocations and distribution
of the 2022/23 budget for the various works categories were agreed. These headline
allocations remain provisional as the Department for Transport is yet to confirm the
capital funding award for 2022/23. It is anticipated that this will be confirmed following
the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) which is anticipated to take place in
Autumn this year. We are aware that the Department for Transport are making the
case to HM Treasury for increased levels of Highways Capital funding for local
authorities, which will form part of the CSR decision making process.

2.3

Delivery of the 21/22 HCP is well underway, with a significant proportion of schemes,
either completed or in progress. There remains some works to start on site, however
plans for these are well advanced. Officers are working closely with colleagues at
North Yorkshire Highways to manage programme delivery and to understand what
schemes may need to be moved in to 22/23 as a result of any potential “overheating”
in the 21/22 programme and any associated financial implications.

2.4

Due to a reduction in funding against our planning assumptions for 21/22, the
Corporate Director BES in consultation with BES Executive Members considered a
report on 26 March 2021, which outlined the funding settlement received for 21/22
and the implications on the 21/22 programme and, as a result, a total of £12M of
capital schemes were moved from 21/22 delivery in to future years, alongside in year
budget reductions of £1.4M.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
Automated 71
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/1

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

2.5

Work is ongoing to understand what varying funding scenarios will mean for the
22/23 annual programme, taking in to consideration the £12M of slipped schemes
and any in year slippage.

3.0

Revised Programme Process

3.1

Given the uncertainty around funding for 22/23 and to improve the efficiency of
programme planning and delivery, we are implementing a revised process for HCP
development. This is a three phase rolling process as outlined below covering a
period of at least three years’ worth of delivery.

3.2

Phase one, the forward programme. Following approval at this meeting, new
schemes will sit within a forward programme. This is effectively a long list of
approved schemes that do not have a specific delivery date or year assigned to
them. Any slipped schemes from 21/22 are included in the forward programme. It is
important to note that inclusion within the forward programme does not guarantee
delivery in a specific financial year.

3.3

Phase two, the annual programme. Once a more firm indication of future years
funding is known, an annual programme is developed, which will be made up of
selected schemes from the forward programme to the value of available funding. It is
envisaged that this will be confirmed in late autumn for schemes to be delivered the
following financial year. Schemes not included within the annual programme will
remain on the forward programme. An update will be provided to the Corporate
Director (BES) and BES Executive Members following confirmation of the 22/23
annual programme.

3.4

Phase three, the delivery programme. Once schemes are conformed for delivery
within a financial year as part of the annual programme, the delivery programme is
developed. This will be an operational programme with scheme start and finish dates
included. Monitoring of in year programme delivery will carried out against the
delivery programme.

3.5

This revised process allows us to develop a bank of “on the shelf delivery ready”
schemes in advance, allowing more efficient scheme delivery and the ability to
respond more quickly to any changes in funding. It also provides more flexibility and
improves forward visibility of future work for North Yorkshire Highways, allowing them
to work more closely and efficiently with their wider supply chain.

4.0

Schemes for addition to the Forward Programme

4.1

Appendices 1-8 provides information on the schemes that are being added to the
forward programme, broken down by Highways Area and Bridges & Structures.

4.2

Schemes are added to the forward programme through using data collected through
asset condition surveys alongside consideration of sites identified by operational
teams as requiring future maintenance activity.

4.3

In total £50M of schemes have been added to the forward programme. Alongside
the £12M of slipped schemes from 21/22, the total value of the forward programme is
£62M. This is equivalent to in the region of 3 years’ worth of schemes for delivery.

4.4

The forward programme appendices 9 and 10 identify allocations for carriageway and
footway patching by hierarchy for each highways area. Work is ongoing to develop
this patching programme and details of the patching sites to be delivered in 22/23 will
be confirmed as part of the update to the Corporate Director (BES) and Executive
– 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
72Highway AssetNYCC
Automated
Data Collection and Processing Contract/2

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Members on the 22/23 annual programme in December 2021 following the outputs
from the CSR.
4.5

For the purposes of budget and programme management, surface dressing schemes
within the annual programme will be combined in to area specific budget lines based
on network hierarchy. A full surface dressing delivery programme will be developed,
allowing for oversight of scheme delivery.

5.0

Schemes for addition to the 21/22 Capital Programme

5.1

The following schemes within the forward programme have been identified for full or
partial delivery within the current financial year. These sites are as follows

Melmerby Green Lane, budget allocation of £60K this year for advanced
patching works.

Heck and Pollington Lane, budget allocation of £31k this year for advanced
patching works.

A1(M) Junction 47, budget allocation of £373K to fund additional works
required in slip roads. It is proposed that some or all of this funding is covered
from unallocated superintendence reserves. Officers would seek to make the
decision over precisely how it would be funded later, when there was a greater
level of certainty over other variables, which might influence the split between
LTP funding and superintendence fees.

6.0

Next Steps

6.1

Design work is underway on schemes within the forward programme. It is the
intention to design all schemes within the forward programme, so that they are
available for delivery as and when funding allows.

6.2

Alongside this, various funding scenarios for 22/23 are being developed based on
historic funding settlements. This will allow a draft annual 22/23 programme to be
developed ahead of the 22/23 funding settlement from DfT being confirmed. Clearly
the longer we have to wait for funding to be confirmed, the more challenging
developing final 22/23 annual and delivery programmes becomes.

6.3

As outlined earlier in this report, following confirmation of the 22/23 funding
settlement, a report will be presented to the Corporate Director (BES) and Executive
Members to outline the schemes to be taken forward from the forward programme in
to the 22/23 annual programme. This will include an overview of patching sites
planned for delivery in 22/23.

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

Given the lack of certainty regarding funding for 22/23 and subsequent years, the
approach of developing a forward programme allows for flexibility in developing
annual programmes, to match confirmed funding levels. Schemes included within
the forward programme will be delivered across multiple financial years, dependent
upon available funding.

7.2

The contents of this report make no changes to the BES Capital Plan expenditure
limits.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
Automated 73
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/3

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

8.0

Equalities Implications

8.1

Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse equality impacts
arising from the recommendation. The allocation of funding is based on the “manage,
maintain and improve” (MMI) hierarchy set out in Local Transport Plan 4; which has
been the subject of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA). This concluded that the
introduction of fewer improvement schemes may have a greater impact on people
with mobility difficulties or without access to a private vehicle as there will be fewer
new facilities provided e.g. pedestrian crossings, dropped kerbs, bus stop
accessibility improvements; however, it is also considered that prioritising
maintenance, particularly for footways, through the MMI hierarchy is likely to produce
a net benefit for people with the same protected characteristics; particularly in terms
of age and disability.

8.2

Furthermore, the local accessibility budget has been agreed and introduced. This has
achieved a positive equality impact as it provides flexibility for funding for
improvement schemes such as dropped kerbs which reduces any impact the MMI
has on people with mobility difficulties or those without access to private vehicles.
This also ensures the recommendation does not have an adverse impact on any of
the protected characteristics identified in the Equalities Act 2010. Taking into account
the local accessibility budget and the positive outcome of the EIA in the Local
Transport Plan 4. With regards to the MMI hierarchy it is considered that there are no
adverse impacts arising from the allocation of funding based on the MMI and
subsequent recommendation. Therefore, an Equalities Impact Assessment is not
required. The Authority will continue to consider and pay due regard to the Public
Sector Equality Duty throughout the allocation of funding for the Capital Programme.
See Appendix 11.

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

The County Council as Local Highway Authority has a wide range of statutory duties
imposed by a variety of legislation relating to highways and transportation and also
has a wide range of duties imposed by legislation in its capacity as Lead Local Flood
Authority, Street Authority and Local Traffic Authority. This includes a duty under s41
of the Highways Act 1980 to maintain highways maintainable at the public expense
and a duty under s122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to secure the
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including
pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off
the highway. Under s16 of the Traffic Management Act 2004, the County Council is
also required to manage its road network to secure the expeditious movement of
traffic in that network.

9.2

The forward programme has been developed and prioritised in line with the County
Councils duties and responsibilities under the above and other legislation, including
the Transport Act 2000 and the Flood and Water Management Act 2010.

10.0

Climate Change Impact

10.1

A climate change impact assessment has been carried out, see Appendix 12 This
has identified that the development of a forward programme will help to improve
efficiency of delivery, reducing waste and emissions through improved coordination
and planning of works.

– 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
74Highway AssetNYCC
Automated
Data Collection and Processing Contract/4

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

11.0

Recommendation

11.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental
Services (BES), in consultation with County Councillor Don Mackenzie Executive
Member for
Access,

approve the schemes listed in Appendix 1-10 for inclusion within the Highways
Capital Forward Programme

approve the schemes listed in section 5.1 to be included in the current year’s
programme including the additional funding required for the completion of the
A1(M) Junction 47 scheme.

BARRIE MASON
Assistant Director - Highways and Transportation
Author of Report: James Gilroy

Background documents: None

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
Automated 75
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/5

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 1
Area 1 (Richmondshire) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward
Programme.
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

B6275 Hang Bank
R&R

R&R

Aldbrough St John

£150,000

3b

U217 Skeugh Head
Lane, Angram R&R

R&R

Angram

£80,000

4b

C107 Brokes R&R
R&R

R&R

Brokes

£20,000

4a

A6055 Scorton
Crossroads R&R

R&R

Brompton On Swale

£70,000

3a

U1228 River Lane BoS
R&R

R&R

Brompton On Swale

£6,000

4b

A6136 Camp Centre
To White Shops R&R

R&R

Catterick Garrison

£300,000

3a

A6136 Colburn Lane
To White Shops R&R

R&R

Catterick Garrison

£300,000

3a

A6108 Runs Bank To
Halfpenny House R&R

R&R

Downholme

£15,000

3a

U429 Fremington to
White House R&R

R&R

Fremington

£50,000

4b

U248 Satronside (top
half) R&R

R&R

Gunnerside

£100,000

4b

C32 Rayns Bridge
R&R

R&R

Hawes

£15,000

4a

B6270 Ravenseat
R&R

R&R

Keld

£169,000

3b

B6270 Hoggarths
Bridge to County
boundary R&R

R&R

Keld

£500,000

3b

A684 Leyburn To
Wensley R&R

R&R

Leyburn

£210,000

3a

A6108 Harmby Main
Road R&R

R&R

Leyburn

£80,000

3a

U1065 Marrick R&R

R&R

Marrick

£139,000

4b

C125 Bushy Park
landslip R&R

R&R

Marske

£30,000

4a

C35 Middleham R&R

R&R

Middleham

£200,000

4a

Scheme Name

– 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
76Highway AssetNYCC
Automated
Data Collection and Processing Contract/6

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 1
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U888 Preston under
Scar R&R

R&R

Preston Under Scar

£20,000

4b

C34 Redmire R&R

R&R

Redmire

£50,000

4a

U432 Back Lane,
Reeth R&R

R&R

Reeth

£25,000

4b

A6108 King Street
Roundabout & Victoria
Road R&R

R&R

Richmond

£80,000

3a

A6108 Darlington
Road, Richmond R&R

R&R

Richmond

£200,000

3a

U943 Quakers Lane
Richmond R&R

R&R

Richmond

£22,000

4b

U975 Green Howards
Road R&R

R&R

Richmond

£20,000

4a

U1303 Richmond
Market Place R&R

R&R

Richmond

£120,000

4b

U1309 New Road,
Richmond R&R

R&R

Richmond

£160,000

4b

U969 Gallowfields
Trading estate R&R

R&R

Richmond

£30,000

4b

U207 Litherskew R&R

R&R

Sedbusk

£60,000

4b

U1058 Hargill
Swinithwaite R&R

R&R

Swinithwaite

£35,000

4b

U925 Westfield Lane
Thoralby R&R

R&R

Thoralby

£42,000

4b

A684 Wensley To
Leyburn R&R

R&R

Wensley

£210,000

3a

A684 Wensley To
Leyburn R&R

R&R

Wensley

£170,000

3a

C35 Gale Bank,
Wensley R&R

R&R

Wensley

£20,000

4a

U924 Eshington Lane
Thoralby R&R

R&R

West Burton

£55,000

4b

C6 Middleton Tyas
Lane Footway

Footway

Middleton Tyas

£10,424

FW3,4,5

A6136 Catterick Road
Drainage

Drainage

Catterick Garrison

£60,000

3a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
Automated 77
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/7

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 1
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

A6136 Catterick Road
Drainage

Drainage

Catterick Garrison

£40,000

3a

U260 Langthwaite To
Feetham Road Special

Special

Feetham

£20,000

4b

B6270 Guning Lane
To Gunnerside Special

Special

Gunnerside

£60,000

3b

B6271 Reeth To
Healaugh Special

Special

Reeth

£20,000

3b

Richmond Cobbles
Special

Special

Richmond

£100,000

C32 Hawes To
Thwaite Special

Special

Simonstone

£5,000

4a

C33 Hawes To
Thwaite Special

Special

Simonstone

£5,000

4a

C34 Hawes To
Thwaite Special

Special

Simonstone

£5,000

4a

C35 Hawes To
Thwaite Special

Special

Simonstone

£5,000

4a

C36 Hawes To
Thwaite Special

Special

Simonstone

£5,000

4a

C37 Cliff Gate Road
Special

Special

Thwaite

£5,000

4a

C38 Cliff Gate Road
Special

Special

Thwaite

£5,000

4a

Various Middleham
Area Retexturing

Special

Middleham

£50,000

Various

B6270 Ravenseat To
Boundary Landslip

Landslips

Keld

£65,000

3b

U931 Temple Lane
Landslip

Landslips

West Burton

£45,000

4b

C228 Melmerby To
Penhill Farm Road
Cattle Grid

Cattle Grid

Melmerby

£60,000

4b

Scheme Name

– 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
78Highway AssetNYCC
Automated
Data Collection and Processing Contract/8

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Area 2 (Hambleton) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward
Programme.
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C426 Bedale Road,
Aiskew R&R

R&R

Aiskew

£150,698

3b

U1677 Aldwark R&R

R&R

Aldwark

£48,856

4b

U1887 Appleton
Wiske R&R

R&R

Appleton Wiske

£25,798

4b

B6285 Bedale Market
Place & North End
R&R

R&R

Bedale

£105,726

3b

U1479 Wycar R & R
R&R

R&R

Bedale

£58,026

4b

U1809 Boltby R&R

R&R

Boltby

£39,893

4b

U1808 Boltby R&R

R&R

Boltby

£110,391

4b

U1448 Swainby
Lane R&R

R&R

Burneston

£164,686

4b

U1961 Dalton R&R

R&R

Dalton

£44,695

4b

C147 Danby Wiske
R&R

R&R

Danby Wiske

£57,090

4b

C421 Area 2 Thirsk
Road Easingwold
R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£120,739

3b

C421 Long Street,
Easingwold R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£343,439

3b

C86 Uppleby R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£96,728

4a

U1646 East & West
Avenue R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£80,000

4b

U1625 Knott Lane
R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£94,272

4b

U1639 Back Lane
R&R

R&R

Easingwold

£106,802

4b

U2199 East Cowton
R&R

R&R

East Cowton

£81,505

4b

U1509 Exelby R & R
R&R

R&R

Exelby

£96,143

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
Automated 79
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/9

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C101 Felixkirk R&R

R&R

Felixkirk

£38,833

4a

U1911 Girsby R&R

R&R

Girsby

£87,680

4b

U2221 Howe R&R

R&R

Howe

£41,430

4b

C100 Tollerton Road,
Huby R&R

R&R

Huby

£523,936

3b

U1687 Huby R&R

R&R

Huby

£177,765

4b

U1842 Kildale R&R

R&R

Kildale

£90,964

4b

U1858 Kirkby-inCleveland R&R

R&R

Kirkby-In-Cleveland

£124,785

4b

U1840 Nether
Silton R&R

R&R

Nether Silton

£72,674

4b

A167 Friarage
Street R&R

R&R

Northallerton

£58,363

3a

B1333 Area 2
Romanby Road R&R

R&R

Northallerton

£22,444

3b

U2607 Quaker Lane
R&R

R&R

Northallerton

£86,756

4a

C27 Osmotherley
R&R

R&R

Osmotherley

£60,835

4a

U2208 Pickhill R&R

R&R

Pickhill

£329,561

4b

U2204 Scruton R&R

R&R

Scruton

£110,966

4b

A167 Darlington
Road, Northallerton
R&R

R&R

Skipton-On-Swale

£258,399

3a

A61 Skipton-on-Swale
R&R

R&R

Skipton-On-Swale

£165,347

3a

U1830 South
Kilvington R&R

R&R

South Kilvington

£73,007

4b

U3383 South
Otterington R&R

R&R

South Otterington

£57,123

4b

B1448 Topcliffe Road,
Sowerby R&R

R&R

Sowerby

£150,796

3b

A172 Ingleby Cross
R&R

R&R

Staddle Bridge

£137,178

2

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
80
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/10

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1878 Stearsby R&R

R&R

Stearsby

£170,930

4b

B1363 Jack Lane,
Stillington R&R

R&R

Stillington

£242,802

3b

U1698 Stillington R&R

R&R

Stillington

£60,342

4b

C100 Area 2 Suttonon-the-Forest R&R

R&R

Sutton-On-The-Forest

£250,971

3b

A170 Sutton Bank
R&R

R&R

Sutton-UnderWhitestonecliffe

£294,074

2

U1871 Scugdale R&R

R&R

Swainby

£151,548

4b

A19 Mile House to
Blakey Lane R&R

R&R

Thirsk

£172,804

2

A19 Fleet Bank corner
R&R

R&R

Thirsk

£284,622

2

A61 Long Street
Thirsk R&R

R&R

Thirsk

£150,541

3a

A61 Thirsk town
centre R&R

R&R

Thirsk

£138,196

3a

A168 Thirsk Northallerton R&R

R&R

Thornton-Le-Beans

£703,304

3a

C87 Tollerton R&R

R&R

Tollerton

£178,223

4a

A167 Topcliffe to
Dalton Lane R&R

R&R

Topcliffe

£67,881

3a

U2215 Green Hills
Lane SD

SD

Ainderby Steeple

£11,389

4b

U1529 Thiefgate
Lane SD

SD

Binsoe

£12,778

4b

U1814 Paradise
Road SD

SD

Boltby

£14,715

4b

B1356 Brandsby
Village SD

SD

Brandsby

£7,368

3b

U1887 Olivers Bank
SD

SD

Brandsby

£8,406

4b

C4 Brompton Lane
SD

SD

Brompton

£15,733

4a

U1908 Long Lane SD

SD

Brompton

£23,187

4b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/11

Page 81

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

B6285 Burneston
Hargill SD

SD

Burneston

£13,469

3b

C99 Catton Village SD

SD

Catton

£19,562

4a

U1718 Chapmans
Lane SD

SD

Chapmans Lane

£13,604

4b

U1511 Halfpenny
Houses To Sargeant
Plantation SD

SD

Charlgot

£5,837

4b

C170 Crayke Lane SD

SD

Crayke

£10,122

4b

C147 Mounstrall Lane
SD

SD

Danby Wiske

£37,684

4b

U2228 Crowfoot Lane
SD

SD

Danby Wiske

£6,592

4b

C178 Road From
Rising Sun House To
Oak Trees SD

SD

Easingwold

£14,250

4b

C9 East Harlsey To
Somerset House
Farm SD

SD

East Harsley

£28,762

4b

C91 Gaol Lane To
Farlington SD

SD

Farlington

£17,622

3b

C91 Farlington To
District Boundary SD

SD

Farlington

£31,560

3b

B1257 Great
Broughton To Clay
Bank SD

SD

Great Broughton

£34,395

3b

A684 Road From
North End To White
Cross SD

SD

Great Crakehall

£41,213

3a

A684 Road From
White Cross To
Crakehall SD

SD

Great Crakehall

£23,287

3a

B6271 Brockholme To
Red House SD

SD

Great Langton

£35,115

3b

C132 Bowbridge Lane
SD

SD

Hackforth

£8,889

4b

C132 Tickergate Lane
SD

SD

Hackforth

£12,824

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
82
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/12

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C100 Tollerton Road
SD

SD

Huby

£27,233

3b

U1582 Highthorne
Lane SD

SD

Husthwaite

£6,776

4b

U2201 Church Lane
SD

SD

Hutton Bonville

£7,816

4b

U1891 Ingleby Cross
Scarth Lees Diversion
SD

SD

Ingleby Cross

£11,117

4b

U1896 High Lane SD

SD

Kirby Sigston

£9,988

4b

U1743 Delf Lane SD

SD

Knayton

£18,325

4b

C156 Leake Lane SD

SD

Leak Lane

£11,748

4b

C92 Moor Lane SD

SD

Newton On Ouse

£37,968

3b

C91 West Lane SD

SD

Stillington

£18,267

3b

B1363 Main Street SD

SD

Stillington

£7,751

3b

B1364 Stillington
Road SD

SD

Sutton On The Forest

£44,878

3b

B1365 Main Street SD

SD

Sutton On The Forest

£20,082

3b

B1367 York Road SD

SD

Sutton On The Forest

£48,895

3b

C100 York Road SD

SD

Sutton On The Forest

£27,250

3b

A170 Sutton Road SD

SD

Sutton Under
Whitestone

2

A170 Sutton Nursery
To Sutton Bank SD

SD

Sutton Under
Whitestone

2

C36 Hackforth Road
SD

SD

Little Crakehall

£21,650

4a

U1714 High Moor
Lane SD

SD

Newton On Ouse

£35,022

4a

U1716 New Road SD

SD

Newton On Ouse

£23,295

4b

C150 Deighton Lane
SD

SD

Northallerton

£29,472

4a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/13

Page 83

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C27 Road From
Quarry Lane To
Coalmire Lane SD

SD

Osmotherly

£18,944

4a

C2 Appleton Wiske To
Worsall Toll Bar SD

SD

Picton

£20,651

4a

C31 Crossways Wood
To High Pond And
District Boundary SD

SD

Thrin

£39,613

4a

C185 Tholthorpe To
Waaf Farm SD

SD

Thrintoft

£21,245

4a

U1720 Corban Lane
To Newlands SD

SD

Shipton By
Beningbrough

£5,328

4b

U1881 Skewsby Brow
Wood To Whenby SD

SD

Skewsby

£17,860

4b

U1876 Road From
Snargate Farm To
Bonnygate Lane SD

SD

Stearsby

£13,725

4b

U1701 Skeugh Lane
SD

SD

Stillington

£3,980

4b

C168 Newsham Road
SD

SD

Thirsk

£26,046

4b

A168 Crosby Grange
Track To Thornton Le
Street SD

SD

Thornton-Le-Moor

£8,501

3a

A168 Thirsk Road To
Crosby Grange Track
SD

SD

Thornton-Le-Moor

£98,788

3a

A168 Thirsk Road SD

SD

Thornton-Le-Moor

£34,128

3a

U2203 Thrintoft Moor
Lane SD

SD

Thrintoft

£30,643

4b

U1664 Derrings Lane
SD

SD

Thrintoft

£6,999

4b

C169 Upsall Road SD

SD

Upsall

£7,085

4b

B6271 Moor Lane SD

SD

Yafforth

£20,730

3b

Mount Road Footway

Footway

Northallerton

£4,875

4b

The Close Footway

Footway

Romanby

£27,294

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
84
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/14

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 2
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

A6055 Leeming Lane
Special

Special

Ainderby Quernhow

£50,000

4b

U1987 Roseberry
Crescent Special

Special

Great Ayton

£50,000

4b

U1988 Wheatlands
Special

Special

Great Ayton

£50,000

4b

U1724 Overton To
District Boundary
Special

Special

Overton

£45,000

4b

B1365 West Green
Special

Special

Stokesley

£50,000

4b

A172 Thirsk Road To
Cricket Field Traffic
Circus Landslip

Landslip

Stokesley

£75,000

2

U1873 Track From
Piper Road To
Scugdale Landslip

Landslip

Swainby

£40,000

6

U1842 Percy Cross
Rigg Cattle Grid

Cattle Grid

Kildale

£15,000

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/15

Page 85

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 3
Area 3 (Scarborough) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward
Programme.
Treatment
Type

Town

A165 Road From High Killerby To Cayton Bay
Roundabout R&R

R&R

Cayton

U803 Overdale R&R

R&R

Eastfield

A1039 Muston Road R&R

R&R

Scheme Name

U388 Grange Avenue R&R

R&R

C75 Carr Lane R&R

R&R

A165 Moor Road R&R

R&R

Budget
£305,132

Hierarchy

£350,782

3a
3b

Filey

£174,787

3b

Filey

£174,707

4b

Folkton

£80,000

4a

Hunmanby

£61,300

3a

£40,000

4a

C221 Leaholm Lane R&R

R&R

Leaholm

A171 Scalby Road R&R

R&R

Scalby

£331,137

C247 Green Lane R&R

R&R

Scarborough

£215,000

2
3b

C237 Woodland Ravine R&R

R&R

Scarborough

£310,000

3b

U314 New Queen Street R&R

R&R

Scarborough

£71,436

4a

Scarborough

£89,080

4b

Scarborough

£136,607

4b

£50,000

4b

U548 Royal Avenue R&R

R&R

U577 Holbeck Road R&R

R&R

U550 Garth End Road R&R

R&R

West Ayton

£170,971

3a

A171 Helredale Road R&R

R&R

Whitby

A170 Stepney Hill R&R

R&R

Woodlands

£86,027

U776 Barrowcliffe Road R&R

R&R

Woodlands

£126,000

3a
3b

U268 Woodgate R&R

R&R

Woodlands

£40,000

4b

B1410 The Carrs SD

Briggswath

£26,000

3b

B1261 Main Street SD

SD
SD

£6,000

3b

U2243 Dandby Dale To Castleton SD

SD

Danby Dale

£98,364

3b

U2244 Burtree Lane To Plum Tree Farm SD

SD

Danby Dale

£13,185

4b

U2392 Tofts Lane To North End Farm SD

SD

Danby Dale

£5,220

4b

U801 Westway SD

SD

Eastfield

£33,716

3b

U802 Eastway SD

SD

Eastfield

£32,016

3b

A169 Breckon Howe To Eller Beck Bridge SD

SD

Goathland

£176,000

3b

C70 Broxa Lane SD

SD

Hackness

£36,300

4b

C226 Back Lane SD

SD

Hawkser

£24,750

4b

U2343 Hall Farm Road SD

SD

Hawkser

£10,200

4b

U287 Sands Road SD

SD

Hunmanby

£24,480

4b

U285 Hunmanby Industrial Estate SD
B1261 Killerby Lodge Farm To Public House
SD

SD

Hunmanby

£13,432

4b

C367 Hunmanby Road To Goslin Slack SD

SD

Reighton

£10,078

3b

B1447 Station Road SD

SD

Robin Hoods Bay

£36,400

3b

A171 Scaling Dam Farm To High Street SD

SD

Roxby

£29,260

3a

B1410 The Carrs SD

SD

Ruswarp

£40,300

3b

U2340 Golden Grove SD

SD

Ruswarp

£15,680

4b

C73 Eastgate SD

SD

Seamer

£6,120

3b

C73 Stoney Haggs Road SD

SD

Seamer

£34,100

3b

A170 High Street Snaiton SD

SD

Snainton

£37,884

2

Cayton

SD
Lebberston

£45,600

3b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
86
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/16

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 3
Treatment
Type

Scheme Name

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U2341 Beacon Way SD

SD

Sneaton

£20,800

4a

U2346 Raikes Lane SD

SD

Sneatonthorpe

£18,900

4b

C225 Sneaton Thorpe Lane SD

SD

Sneatonthorpe

£33,825

4b

C225 Stainsacre Lane To Raikes Lane SD

SD

Stainsacre

£19,800

4b

C225 Stainsacre Lane SD

SD

Stainsacre

£28,350

4b

U2339 Summerfield Road SD

SD

Stainsacre

£8,610

4b

A171 Stainsacre Lane SD

SD

Whitby

£23,800

3a
2

U692 Beech Walk Footway

Footway

Eastfield

£23,398

C250 Coldyhill Lane Footway

Footway

Scalby

£31,681

2

B1460 Castle Road Footway

Footway

Whitby

£27,845

2

Bank Top Lane To Cockpit Hill Footway
C145 Stonebeck Gate Lane To Fryup Lodge
Drainage

Footway

Runswick Bay

£20,000

4

Drainage

Fryup

£15,000

4b

C214 Kitter Lane To Broomhouse Drainage

Drainage

Hutton Mulgrave

£15,000

4b

U2260 New Road Drainage

Drainage

Fryup

£17,000

4b

U2276 Mounter Beck To Jacobs Well Drainage

Drainage

Newton Mulgrave

£25,000

4b

U2307 Egton Road Drainage

Drainage

Aislaby

£12,000

4b

C207 Post Office To Kirk Gate Drainage

Drainage

Hackness

£15,000

4b

A169 Coach Road Drainage
C70 Troutsdale Low Hall To Moor Road
Drainage

Drainage

Sleights

£40,000

3b

Drainage

Troutsdale

£20,000

4b

C367 Bridlington Street Drainage

Drainage

Hunmanby

£15,000

3b

U563 Deepdale Avenue Drainage

Drainage

Scarborough

£10,000

4b

A171 Scalby Road Drainage

Drainage

Scalby

£6,000

2

A171 Scalby Road Drainage

Drainage

Scalby

£12,000

2

U820 Esplanade Drainage
F367 Footway From Foreshaw Road To Cliff
Top Specials
C82 Broom House Lane To Egton Cliff
Specials

Drainage

Scarborough

£2,500

4a

Specials

Filey

Specials

Egton Bridge

U742 Royal Albert Drive Specials

Specials

C209 Broxa Hill Landslip

Landslip

Scarborough
Broxa

£100,000

3b
4b

Landslip

Aislaby

£30,000

4b

Ugthorpe

£50,000

4b

Castleton

£50,000

3b

U2307 Aislabyside Landslip
U2281 Road From Redmire Farm To The
A171 Guisborough Road Cattlegrid

Cattlegrid

C20 Sandy Lane To Westerdaleside Cattlegrid

Cattlegrid

£40,000
£40,000
£90,000

0
4a

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/17

Page 87

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Area 4 (Ryedale) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward Programme.
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

B1257 Appleton Lane To
Amotherby Lane R&R

R&R

Amotherby

£59,602

3a

U466 Mill Lane R&R

R&R

Birdsall

£51,512

4b

U477 Penhowe Lane
R&R

R&R

Burythorpe

£76,936

4b

U464 Lang Hill R&R

R&R

Burythorpe

£106,658

4b

C72 Butterwick To
Fosters Wold Plantation
R&R

R&R

Butterwick

£52,754

4b

U1865 Whinny Lane R&R

R&R

Claxton

£103,235

4b

C60 Bransdale Road To
Cockayne R&R

R&R

Cockayne

£211,646

4a

B1258 West Knapton To
Snainton Road R&R

R&R

Ebberston

£252,354

3b

C60 Fadmoor Bank R&R

R&R

Gillamoor

£34,233

4a

C60 Fadmoor Bank To
Westside Road R&R

R&R

Gillamoor

£44,477

4a

C60 Westside Road R&R

R&R

Gillamoor

£29,969

4a

C60 Bransdale Road R&R

R&R

Gillamoor

£42,216

4a

U117 Kirby Mills Road
R&R

R&R

Keldholme

£88,722

4b

C65 Kirby Misperton To
Little Barugh R&R

R&R

Kirby Misperton

£68,568

4a

U112 Swineherd Lane
R&R

R&R

Kirkbymoorside

£71,703

4b

U112 Young Bank Lane
R&R

R&R

Kirkbymoorside

£28,244

4b

C65 Barugh Lane R&R

R&R

Little Barugh

£117,039

4a

U3550 David Lane R&R

R&R

Lockton

£85,360

4b

U3550 Pasture Road
R&R

R&R

Lockton

£78,627

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
88
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/18

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C172 Castle Howard
Road R&R

R&R

Malton

£87,916

4a

U386 Wise House Lane
R&R

R&R

Old Malton

£58,050

4b

A170 Keld Head R&R

R&R

Pickering

£145,559

2

A170 Westgate R&R

R&R

Pickering

£66,195

2

A169 Saltergate Bank
R&R

R&R

Pickering

£135,000

3b

C66 Undercliffe To
Newbridge R&R

R&R

Pickering

£169,994

3b

U225 Outgang Lane R&R

R&R

Pickering

£52,276

4b

U3447 Daleside Road
R&R

R&R

Rosedale Abbey

£81,919

4b

U1768 Horse Course
Lane R&R

R&R

Settrington

£38,815

4b

A170 Thirsk To
Scarborough Road
Sproxton R&R

R&R

Sproxton

£81,300

2

U456 West Street R&R

R&R

Swinton

£57,511

4b

U458 Low Lane R&R

R&R

Swinton

£6,896

4b

U500 Martin Holme R&R

R&R

Thixendale

£139,160

4b

C351 Thixendale To
Fimber Road R&R

R&R

Thixendale

£299,768

4b

C88 Byland Road To
Abbey House R&R

R&R

Wass

£186,991

3b

U175 New Lane SD

SD

Aislaby

£9,427

4b

C173 Road From
Amotherby To Easthorpe
SD

SD

Amotherby

£18,322

4b

C88 Main Street SD

SD

Ampleforth

£21,962

3b

U125 Appleton Lane SD

SD

Appleton Le Street

£4,593

4b

U1848 Steelmoor Lane
SD

SD

Barton Le Willows

£11,899

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/19

Page 89

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1848 Steelmoor Lane
SD

SD

Barton Le Willows

£482

4b

C93 Stamford Bridge To
Buttercrambe Bridge SD

SD

Buttercrambe

£5,970

4a

C176 Bossall To Sand
Hutton Road SD

SD

Buttercrambe

£16,330

4b

C176 Bossall To Carr
Plantation SD

SD

Buttercrambe

£6,377

4b

U1867 Bossall To
Buttercrambe Road SD

SD

Buttercrambe

£30,905

4b

C356 Butterwick To
Foxholes SD

SD

Butterwick

£16,173

4a

U2002 Kirk Balk Lane SD

SD

Claxton

£9,275

4b

C172 Coneysthorpe To
Hepton Hill SD

SD

Coneysthorpe

£12,847

4a

C89 Coulton Road SD

SD

Coulton

£7,672

4a

U640 Coulton Lane SD

SD

Coulton

£24,042

4b

C63 Cropton Lane SD

SD

Cropton

£6,335

4a

C63 Cropton Lane SD

SD

Cropton

£23,827

4a

C63 Cropton To Lower
Askew SD

SD

Cropton

£11,021

4a

C201 High Street SD

SD

Cropton

£3,488

4b

C201 High Lane SD

SD

Cropton

£30,214

4b

B1258 West Knapton To
Snainton Road SD

SD

Ebberston

£15,553

3b

C181 Ruffin Lane SD

SD

Eddlethorpe

£11,121

4a

C181 Moor Lane SD

SD

Flaxton

£9,291

4a

C181 Main Street SD

SD

Foston

£16,333

4a

B1249 Road From Cotes
Road To Gantondale
House Hotel SD

SD

Foxholes

£8,829

3b

C93 Buttercrambe Road
SD

SD

Gate Helmsley

£12,308

4a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
90
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/20

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C193 Kirkby Lane SD

SD

Gillamoor

£24,335

4a

C61 Gillamoor Bank SD

SD

Gillamoor

£12,842

4b

C61 Gillamoor Bank To
Lund Road SD

SD

Gillamoor

£8,951

4b

B1363 Burnt Gill SD

SD

Gilling East

£19,750

3b

U639 Moor Lane SD

SD

Gilling East

£16,330

4b

U1863 Barton Lane SD

SD

Harton

£11,326

4b

C190 Hawnby To
Mcdougall Plantation SD

SD

Hawnby

£8,595

4a

U8 Peak Scar Road SD

SD

Hawnby

£11,232

4a

U2 Village Streets SD

SD

Hawnby

£1,154

4b

U1 Hawnby To Lane
House SD

SD

Hawnby

£339

4b

U1 Hall Lane To Square
Corner SD

SD

Hawnby

£28,911

4b

U1 Hall Lane SD

SD

Hawnby

£4,876

4b

U1 Lane House To Hall
Lane SD

SD

Hawnby

£9,913

4b

C97 Helmsley To Harome
Road SD

SD

Helmsley

£24,998

4a

U26 Hag Lane SD

SD

Helmsley

£12,728

4b

U1800 Long Hill SD

SD

Helperthorpe

£17,922

4b

C61 Barton Le Willows To
Howsham SD

SD

Howsham

£9,433

4a

C61 High Lane SD

SD

Howsham

£24,869

4a

U516 Low Lane SD

SD

Howsham

£2,517

4b

C64 Moor Lane SD

SD

Hutton Le Hole

£14,244

4a

C64 Hutton Le Hole To
Lastingham SD

SD

Hutton Le Hole

£13,724

4a

C61 Lowna Road SD

SD

Hutton Le Hole

£11,411

4b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/21

Page 91

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C356 Low Road SD

SD

Kirby Grindalythe

£27,241

4a

C181 Main Street SD

SD

Langton

£3,201

4a

C181 Cordike Lane SD

SD

Langton

£19,517

4a

C64 Front Street SD

SD

Lastingham

£13,897

4a

C64 Ings Lane SD

SD

Lastingham

£11,251

4a

C177 Mook Street SD

SD

Leppington

£17,204

3b

U489 Leppington Lane
SD

SD

Leppington

£5,985

4b

B1248 York Road SD

SD

Malton

£25,545

3a

C197 Marton Road SD

SD

Marton

£4,813

4a

C197 Gallowheads Lane
SD

SD

Marton

£26,832

4a

U177 Middleton Carr
Lane SD

SD

Middleton

£9,774

4b

U173 Low Moor Road SD

SD

Newton On Rawcliffe

£23,887

4b

U174 Bradley Road SD

SD

Newton On Rawcliffe

£2,256

4b

U241 Ruddings Road SD

SD

Newton On Rawcliffe

£8,917

4b

B1248 Hogg Lane SD

SD

North Grimston

£3,982

3b

B1248 Norton To Beverly
Road SD

SD

North Grimston

£9,625

3b

C181 North Grimston To
Langton Crossroads SD

SD

North Grimston

£26,997

4a

U469 Woodhouse Farm
Road SD

SD

North Grimston

£15,014

4b

U470 Luddith Road SD

SD

North Grimston

£25,155

4b

U465 Stonepit Lane SD

SD

North Grimston

£4,766

4b

C180 Leysthorpe To
Nunnington SD

SD

Nunnington

£14,272

4a

C180 Station Road SD

SD

Nunnington

£19,175

4a

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
92
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/22

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C180 Station Road SD

SD

Nunnington

£3,930

4b

U11 Wethercote Lane SD

SD

Old Byland

£15,652

4b

C88 Oswaldkirk To
Ampleforth SD

SD

Oswaldkirk

£5,122

4a

A169 Malton Road SD

SD

Pickering

£15,468

3a

A169 Malton Road SD

SD

Pickering

£32,835

3a

C197 Marton Lane SD

SD

Pickering

£24,118

4a

C197 Street Lane SD

SD

Pickering

£15,568

4a

C66 Yatts Road SD

SD

Pickering

£33,481

4a

U171 Swainsea Lane SD

SD

Pickering

£7,429

4b

U2265 Heygate Bank SD

SD

Rosedale Abbey

£5,722

4b

U3453 Hancow Road SD

SD

Rosedale Abbey

£33,970

4b

C176 Sand Hutton To
Black Dike Plantation SD

SD

Sand Hutton

£14,561

3b

C176 Sand Hutton To
Black Dike Plantation SD

SD

Sand Hutton

£4,580

3b

C93 Sand Hutton To
Claxton Road SD

SD

Sand Hutton

£4,161

4a

C93 Stamford Bridge
Road SD

SD

Sand Hutton

£35,736

4a

U1788 Scarlet Balk Lane
SD

SD

Settrington

£7,840

4b

U1788 Town Street SD

SD

Settrington

£6,618

4b

U1789 Chapel Road SD

SD

Settrington

£1,898

4b

C90 Strensall To Sheriff
Hutton Road SD

SD

Sheriff Hutton

£21,520

3b

B1258 Welldale Beck To
High Street SD

SD

Snainton

£7,016

3b

C63 Moor Lane SD

SD

Spaunton

£9,684

4a

A170 Thirsk To
Scarborough Road SD

SD

Sproxton

£94,209

2

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/23

Page 93

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

B1249 Staxton Hill To
Binnington Ness SD

SD

Staxton

£28,230

3b

U645 New Road SD

SD

Terrington

£5,566

4b

U649 Main Street SD

SD

Terrington

£546

4b

U650 The Square SD

SD

Terrington

£1,981

4b

U649 Main Street SD

SD

Terrington

£3,749

4b

U650 Mowthorpe Lane
SD

SD

Terrington

£11,756

4b

U267 Hurrell Lane SD

SD

Thornton Dale

£2,577

4b

U267 Hurrell Lane SD

SD

Thornton Dale

£17,288

4b

U280 Longlands Lane SD

SD

Thornton Dale

£3,007

4b

U285 Fox Lane SD

SD

Thornton Dale

£7,964

4b

C181 Thornton Le Clay
To Thornton Moor SD

SD

Thornton Le Clay

£16,915

4a

C181 Thornton Le Clay
To Foston Road SD

SD

Thornton Le Clay

£16,133

4a

U658 Moor Lane SD

SD

Thornton Le Clay

£16,478

4b

U658 Skegmer Lane SD

SD

Thornton Le Clay

£14,096

4b

C66 New Bridge To
Blansby Park Lane SD

SD

Thornton Le Dale

£18,470

4a

C92 Common Lane SD

SD

Warthill

£9,122

4b

C92 Common Lane SD

SD

Warthill

£26,895

4b

C92 Holtby To Warthill
Road SD

SD

Warthill

£5,494

4b

C177 Gally Gap To Four
Lane Ends SD

SD

Westow

£62,399

3b

B1258 Malton Road SD

SD

West Knapton

£56,136

3b

C181 Dark Lane To
Badger Bank SD

SD

Westow

£26,608

4a

C358 Dark Lane SD

SD

Westow

£7,625

4a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
94
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/24

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U533 Shepherdfields
Lane SD

SD

Whitwell On The Hill

£8,468

4a

C181 Foston To Whitwell
Hill SD

SD

Whitwell On The Hill

£11,798

4a

C231 Flatts Lane SD

SD

Wombleton

£17,616

4a

B1258 Castlegate Malton
Footway

Footway

Malton

£32,000

U596 Malton Lane
Drainage

Drainage

Allerston

£7,500

4b

C189 Cold Kirby Road
Drainage

Drainage

Cold Kirby

£10,000

4a

B1363 Black Hill Drainage

Drainage

Gilling East

£5,000

3b

U81 Mill Street Drainage

Drainage

Harome

£10,000

4b

C67 Mill Bank Road
Drainage

Drainage

Lockton

£35,000

4a

U3447 Daleside Road
Drainage

Drainage

Rosedale Abbey

£20,000

4b

U510 Ings Lane To
Beverley Gate Drainage

Drainage

Staxton

£20,000

4b

U468 Birdsall To Station
Road Wharram Specials

Specials

Birdsall

£5,000

4b

U3448 Daleside Road
Specials

Specials

Rosedale East

£7,000

4b

C349 Main Street
Specials

Specials

Scagglethorpe

£10,000

4a

U1760 Town Street
Specials

Specials

Scampston

£5,000

4b

C67 Chestnut Avenue
Specials

Specials

Thornton Dale

£15,000

4a

B1248 Wharram Le Street
To Hogg Lane Specials

Specials

Wharram Le Street

£5,000

4a

A170 Aislaby To Wrelton
Cliff Road Specials

Specials

Wrelton

£54,000

2

U464 Lang Hill Landslips

Landslips

Burythorpe

£30,000

4b

U418 Bazeleys Lane
Landslips

Landslips

Norton

£30,000

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/25

Page 95

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 4
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U130 Rosedale Chimney
Bank Landslips

Landslips

Rosedale Abbey

£20,000

4b

B1248 Wharram Le Street
To Hogg Lane Landslips

Landslips

Wharram Le Street

£15,000

4a

C60 Westside Road
Cattle Grid

Cattle Grid

Gillamoor

£15,000

4a

U28 East Moor To
Cockayne Cattle Grid

Cattle Grid

Helmsley

£15,000

4a

U28 East Moor To
Cockayne Cattle Grid

Cattle Grid

Helmsley

£15,000

4a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
96
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/26

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 5
Area 5 (Craven) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward Programme.

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

U804 Arncliffe R & R

R&R

Arncliffe

£12,000

A59 Edmondson Lane to
Bull Inn R&R

R&R

Broughton

£61,000

U2421 Cowling R&R
Package

R&R

Cowling

£41,000

U1920 Gargrave R & R

R&R

Gargrave

£47,000

A6068 Main Street R&R

R&R

Glusburn

£312,000

A6068 Colne Road R&R

R&R

Glusburn

£193,000

U2381 Green Lane
Glusburn R&R

R&R

Glusburn

£45,000

U1899 Hanlith R&R

R&R

Hanlith

£46,000

B6480 Clapham Road
High Bentham R&R

R&R

High Bentham

£734,000

B6480 Main Street R&R

R&R

High Bentham

£117,000

U672 Nutgill High
Bentham R&R

R&R

High Bentham

£132,000

B6255 Hawes Road &
Backgate Ingelton R&R

R&R

Ingleton

£190,000

U715 Ingleton R&R

R&R

Ingleton

£10,000

B6160 Kettlewell to Wind
Bank Barn R&R

R&R

Kettlewell

£622,000

U745 & U746 Lawkland
R&R

R&R

Lawkland

£130,000

A65 Anley Crag Plantation
to Heath Farm R&R

R&R

Long Preston

£117,000

U2355 Skipton Road R&R

R&R

Low Bradley

£34,000

U2355 Liidget Road R&R

R&R

Low Bradley

£35,000

U696 Masongill R&R

R&R

Masongill

£55,000

B6265 Raikes Lane to
Sandy Beck R&R

R&R

Rylstone

£622,000

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/27

Page 97

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 5

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

Settle R&R

R&R

Settle

£101,000

A6131 Keighley Road
R&R

R&R

Skipton

£45,000

C131 Carleton Road R&R

R&R

Skipton

£86,000

C249 Main Street R&R

R&R

Sutton

£75,000

U2298 Thorlby R&R

R&R

Thorlby

£67,000

B6265 Station Road to
Threshfield Bridge R&R

R&R

Threshfield

£14,000

B6265 Station Road R&R

R&R

Threshfield

£14,000

U2287 Embsay Patching

Patching

Embsay

£38,000

U2258 Grassington
Patching

Patching

Grassington

£12,000

U670 Butts Lane, High
Bentham patching

Patching

High Bentham

£12,000

C387 Keasden Patching

Patching

Keasden

£26,000

C394 Stainforth & Halton
Gill SD

SD

Halton Gill

£135,000

C401 Halton West SD

SD

Halton West

£41,150

U758 Wigglesworth &
Halton West SD

SD

Halton West

£49,700

B6255 Ingleton to
Ribblehead SD

SD

Ribblehead

£203,670

A59 A6069 Thorlby
roundabout SD

SD

Skipton

£77,227

A6069 Otley Road,
Skipton SD

SD

Skipton

£56,306

A56 County boundary to
Cam lane SD

SD

Thornton In Craven

£39,375

C131 Thornton in Craven
SD

SD

Thornton In Craven

£112,036

B6478 Wigglesworth SD

SD

Wigglesworth

£61,039

C119 Main Street Footway

Footway

Austwick

£7,761

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
98
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/28

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 5

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

C33 Church Street
Footway

Footway

Gargrave

£11,458

C387 Wenning Bank
Bridge To A65T
Underpass Clapham
Footway

Footway

Clapham

£60,018

C404 Gatecliffe Brow To
Back Lane Hetton
Footway

Footway

Hetton

£13,480

U1906 Sowarth Field
Settle Footway

Footway

Settle

£45,272

B6479 Dog Hill Brow To
Oxgang Laithe Stainforth
Footway

Footway

Stainforth

£31,894

A629 Skipton Western
Bypass Drainage

Drainage

Skipton

£40,000

A629 Skipton Western
Bypass Drainage

Drainage

Skipton

£40,000

C249 Ellers Road
Drainage

Drainage

Sutton In Craven

£50,000

C249 Ellers Road
Drainage

Drainage

Sutton In Craven

£50,000

C401 Laundry Lane
Skipton Special

Special

Ingleton

£150,000

U2172 Sharphaw Avenue
Skipton Special

Special

Skipton

£42,480

U2117 Roughaw Road
Skipton Special

Special

Skipton

£52,440

U2149 Greatwood Avenue
Skipton Special

Special

Skipton

£24,000

U2181 Whinny Gill Road
Skipton Special

Special

Skipton

£37,560

U2173 North Parade
Skipton Special

Special

Skipton

£18,000

B6160 Bolton Road
Landslip

Landslip

Draughton

£30,000

C385 Bentham Road
Landslip

Landslip

Ingleton

£40,000

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/29

Page 99

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 6
Area 6 (Harrogate) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward Programme.

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

A59 A6 York Road
R&R

R&R

Goldsborough

£75,000.00

2

U745 Station Ave To
Nth Park Rd R&R

R&R

Harrogate

£180,000.00

3a

U533 A6 Station Ave
To Nth Park Rd R&R

R&R

Harrogate

£300,000.00

3a

U510 A6 Montpellier
Road R&R

R&R

Harrogate

£80,000.00

3b

A61 Sharow R&R

R&R

Hutton Conyers

£120,000.00

2

C166 A6 Melmerby
Green Lane R&R
(includes patching in
2021/22)

R&R

Hutton Moor

£510,000.00

3b

B6163 A6 Briggate
R&R

R&R

Knaresborough

£160,000.00

3b

C269 A6 Park Row
R&R

R&R

Knaresborough

£75,000.00

3b

A658 Leathley R&R

R&R

Leathley

£300,000.00

2

A658 North Rigton
R&R

R&R

North Rigton

£300,000.00

2

C422 Ripon Market
Place East R&R

R&R

Ripon

£250,000.00

3a

Ripon Minster Road /
St Mary's Gate R & R

R&R

Ripon

£364,812.50

4a/4b

C262 A6 Spofforth
R&R

R&R

Spofforth

£65,000.00

3b

A61 A6 Baldersby To
Skipton Bridge
Patching

Patching

Baldersby

£150,000.00

3a

A6040 York Place
Patching

Patching

Harrogate

£200,000.00

2

A6040 York Place
Patching

Patching

Harrogate

£200,000.00

2

A61 A6 Leeds Road
Patching

Patching

Harrogate

£435,000.00

3a

Dallowgill Patching
and R&R

Patching and
R&R

£865,150.00

4b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
100
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/30

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 6

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

Harrogate Harewood
Road Patching and
R&R

Patching and
R&R

Harrogate

£167,637.02

4b

Harrogate Coppice
Way Patching and
R&R

Patching and
R&R

Harrogate

£302,167.94

4b/5

Harrogate Dragon
Road Patching and
R&R

Patching and
R&R

Harrogate

£112,470.15

4b/5

Ripon Priest Lane
Patching and R&R

Patching and
R&R

Ripon

£244,911.23

4b

B6265 Eavestone
Road to Bishopton SD

SD

£399,321.25

3a

Nidd & Brearton SD

SD

£175,488.30

4a/4b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Birstwith

£16,154.97

3b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Birstwith

£17,490.08

3b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Birstwith

£11,187.43

3b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Birstwith

£17,195.09

3b

Blubberhouses Meagill
Lane Surface Dressing
SD

SD

Blubberhouses

£86,356.08

4a

Copt Hewick Area
Surface Dressing SD

SD

Copt Hewick

£93,015.00

4a/4b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Darley

£15,162.72

3b

C256 Darley to
Birstwith SD

SD

Darley

£6,000.58

3b

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Grewelthorpe

£5,554.00

3b

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Grewelthorpe

£22,639.76

3b

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Grewelthorpe

£3,943.02

3b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/31

Page 101

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 6

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

Harrogate Grantley
Drive SD

SD

Harrogate

£65,313.00

4b

Harrogate Arthurs
Avenue SD

SD

Harrogate

£55,272.87

4a/4b

Harrogate Albany
Avenue SD

SD

Harrogate

£169,946.24

4b/5

Harrogate Arthington
Avenue SD

SD

Harrogate

£50,386.50

4b/5

Harrogate Camwal
Road SD

SD

Harrogate

£81,570.15

4b/5

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Kirkby Malzeard

£12,326.47

3b

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Kirkby Malzeard

£19,164.67

3b

Main Street Little
Ouseburn Surface
Dressing SD

SD

Little Ouseburn

£37,049.65

4a

C31 Kirkby Malzeard
to Nutwith Common
SD

SD

Swinton

£28,655.38

3b

Whixley Village
Surface Dressing SD

SD

Whixley

£122,522.75

4a/4b

C288 Wighill Church to
Tadcaster Boundary
SD

SD

Wighill

£13,787.05

3b

C288 Wighill Church to
Tadcaster Boundary
SD

SD

Wighill

£16,067.56

3b

C288 Wighill Church to
Tadcaster Boundary
SD

SD

Wighill

£17,681.95

3b

U143 Harrogate
Knapping Hill Footway

Footway

Harrogate

£20,000.00

2

Various Schemes
Drainage

Drainage

Various

£100,000

B6163 Blands Hill
Special

Special

Calcutt

£40,000

3b

U124 Cambridge
Street Special

Special

Harrogate

£350,000

4a

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
102
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/32

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 6

Scheme Name

Treatment Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

A59 Skipton Road
Special

Special

Killinghall

£25,000

2

A1(M) Junction 47

Special

Goldsborough

£373,000

2

U2964 Belford Lane
To Glebe Farm
Landslip

Landslip

Dallowgill

£80,000.00

4b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/33

Page 103

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7
Area 7 (Selby) Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward Programme.
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U953 Camela Lane
Barlow R&R

R&R

Barlow

£66,746

4b

B1222 Mount Pleasant
To Track Stillingfleet
Clough R&R

R&R

Cawood

£3,500

3b

A19 Eggborough
Bypass R&R

R&R

Eggborough

£95,000

3a

C340 Heck & Pollington
Lane R&R (includes
21/22 Patching
Allocation)

R&R

Great Heck

£182,789

4b

U1077 Heck Lane
Hensall R&R

R&R

Hensall

£44,463

4b

U1080 Betteras Hill
Hillam R&R

R&R

Hillam

£93,224

4b

U1087 Lowfield Road
Hillan R&R

R&R

Hillam

£43,326

4b

U760 King Rudding
Lane 1 R&R

R&R

Riccall

£132,057

4b

U760 King Rudding
Lane 2 R&R

R&R

Riccall

£44,352

4b

U758 Back Lane Riccall
R&R

R&R

Riccall

£27,144

4b

U1130 Abbots Road
Selby R&R

R&R

Selby

£37,725

4a

U1133 Armoury Road
Selby R&R

R&R

Selby

£24,800

4b

B1222 Bishopdike Road
R&R

R&R

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£100,000

3b

U1094 Gorse Lane 1
Sherburn In Elmet R&R

R&R

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£41,515

4b

U1094 Gorse Lane 2
Sherburn In Elmet R&R

R&R

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£9,433

4b

C321 Low Street To
South Milford By-Pass
R&R

R&R

South Milford

£4,500

3b

A659 YORK ROAD Wighill Crossroads R&R

R&R

Tadcaster

£20,043

3a

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
104
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/34

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

C288 Wighill Lane R&R

R&R

Tadcaster

£26,826

3b

C289 Oxton Lane
Tadcaster R&R

R&R

Tadcaster

£47,842

4a

U1038 Rawfield Lane
SD

SD

Fairburn

£35,122

4b

A163 Market Weighton
Road W SD

SD

North Duffield

£38,454

3a

C317 Menthorpe to
Bowthorpe Lane SD

SD

North Duffield

£11,667

4b

C371 Menthorpe Lane
SD

SD

North Duffield

£24,481

4b

A63 Hull Road SD

SD

Osgodby

£37,783

2

U1244 Highfield Villas
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,818

4b

U1245 West View SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£512

4b

U1246 East View SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£493

4b

U1272 Rose Avenue SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,119

4b

U1273 Rose Crescent
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£898

4b

U1243 New Lane SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£4,467

4a

U1274 Beechwood
Close SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,924

4b

U1275 Beechwood
Glade SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,290

4b

U1392 Beechwood Croft
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,119

4b

U1257 Eversley Mount
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£5,014

4b

U1258 Eversley Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£854

4b

U1276 Eversley Garth
Crescent SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£3,976

4b

U1279 Deighton Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,610

4b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/35

Page 105

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1280 Eversley Court
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£4,340

4b

U1281 Park Avenue SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£6,799

4b

U1284 Elmete Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£4,978

4b

U1277 Low Garth Road
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£6,901

4b

U1278 Low Garth Link
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,669

4b

U1502 Athelstans Court
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,288

4b

U1285 Carr Avenue SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,623

4b

U1282 Tomlinson Way
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£4,561

4b

U1283 Foster Walk SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,371

4b

U1247 Garden Lane SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£5,876

4b

U154 Garden Close SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,113

4b

U1567 The Fairway SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£6,351

4b

U1567 Pasture Way SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,785

4b

U1568 Showfield Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,151

4b

U1569 Carousel Walk
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,854

4b

U1570 Prospect Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£585

4b

U1579 Fairway Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,068

4b

U1577 Fairfield Link SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,206

4b

U1578 Fairfield Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,156

4b

U1580 The Coppice SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£761

4b

U1649 Pasture Court
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,522

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
106
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/36

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1648 Pasture Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,579

4b

U1658 Pasture Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£4,531

4b

U1685 Moorbridge Croft
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£924

4b

U1684 Bond Ings Rise
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£641

4b

U1603 Pasture View SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£3,070

4b

U356 Copperfield Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£3,711

4b

U1268 Wolsey Croft SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,676

4b

U1266 Wolsey Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£701

4b

U1265 Wolsey Gardens
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£626

4b

U1260 Cardinal Close
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,684

4b

U1512 Church View SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,146

4b

U1513 Church Mews
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£909

4b

U3441 Corn Mill Court
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£373

4b

U1267 Croftway SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,146

4b

U1259 Rudstone Grove
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,146

4b

U1262 Beech Grove SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£3,339

4b

U1638 Appletree Way
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,476

4b

U1735 Moor Lane SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,947

4b

U1412 Pinfold Avenue
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,691

4b

U1413 Pinfold Close SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£760

4b

U1504 Pinfold Court SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,237

4b

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/37

Page 107

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7

Scheme Name

Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1503 Pinfold Garth SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£5,112

4b

U1534 Pinfold Way SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,057

4b

U1251 Moor Road SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£1,156

4b

U1254 Springfied Road
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£12,190

4b

U1253 Meadow View
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£3,498

4b

U1270 Hungate Road
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,317

4b

U1255 Duffield Crescent
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,737

4b

U1252 North Drive SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£7,080

4b

U1263 North Crescent
SD

SD

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£2,488

4b

C316 Monk Lane SD

SD

Selby

£8,927

4b

C316 Lordship Lane SD

SD

Selby

£79,902

4b

U1605 Skipwith
Common Road SD

SD

Skipwith

£5,699

4b

C317 Dyon Lane SD

SD

South Duffield

£8,015

4b

U1313 Springfield Court
SD

SD

South Milford

£776

4b

C316 Pinfold Hill SD

SD

Wistow

£1,378

4b

C322 Brayton Lane
Footway

Footway

Brayton

£5,593

2

A19 Doncaster Road
Footway

Footway

Brayton

£4,743

2

C411 Selby Road
Footway

Footway

Riccall

£24,310

3,4,5

U1130 Abbots Road
Footway

Footway

Selby

£75,332

2

A1238 Leeds Road
Footway

Footway

Selby

£17,850

3,4,5

U1209 The Ruddings
Footway

Footway

Selby

£15,912

3,4,5

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
108
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/38

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7
Treatment
Type

Town

Budget

Hierarchy

U1272 Rose Avenue
Footway

Footway

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£24,098

2

C321 Milford Road
Footway

Footway

South Milford

£7,905

FW 3,4,5

C306 Toulston Grange
To County Boundary
Footway

Footway

Toulston

£31,110

FW 3,4,5

A19 Barlby New ByPass Drainage

Drainage

Barlby

£50,000

2

C312 Main Street
Drainage

Drainage

Church Fenton

£70,000

4a

C290 Colton Lane
Drainage

Drainage

Colton

£19,000

4a

C333 Lunn Lane
Drainage

Drainage

Kellington

£50,000

4a

U873 Stocking Lane
Drainage

Drainage

Kellingley

£70,000

4b

U1104 New Road
Drainage

Drainage

Little Smeaton

£100,000

4b

U1494 Green Lane
Drainage

Drainage

North Duffield

£25,000

4b

U788 Dam Lanee
Drainage

Drainage

Saxton

£25,000

4b

A162 South Milford To
Sherburn In Elmet
Drainage

Drainage

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£299,998

3a

C304 York Road
Drainage

Drainage

Skipwith

£30,000

3b

C321 Milford Road
Drainage

Drainage

South Milford

£100,000

3b

A19 Barlby New ByPass Special

Special

Barlby

£25,000

2

U912 Moat Way Special

Special

Brayton

£37,000

4b

C341 Main Street To
Long Lane Special

Special

Great Heck

£25,000

4a

A63 Hull Road Special

Special

Hemingbrough

£31,000

2

A63 Selby Bypass
Special

Special

Selby

£35,000

2

Scheme Name

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/39

Page 109

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 7
Treatment
Type

Town

U1140 Ousegate
Special

Special

Selby

A162 Sherburn In Elmet
By-Pass Special

Special

Sherburn-In-Elmet

£299,998

3a

C321 Milford Road
Special

Special

South Milford

£60,000 £100,000

3b

U2885 From Junc With
C288 To End Of Cul De
Sac Special

Special

Tadcaster

£25000

4b

Scheme Name

Budget

Hierarchy
3b

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
110
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/40

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 8
Bridges & Structures Schemes for inclusion in the Highways Capital Forward
Programme.
Reference

Name

Scheme Budget

District

223

Long Gill West

£

100,000

Richmondshire

293

Yore New

£

450,000

Richmondshire

314
531
599

Rievaulx
Cockayne
Stell Bank

£
£
£

400,000
80,000
100,000

Ryedale
Ryedale
Hambleton

626

Jacksons

£

75,000

Ryedale

1080

Duchess of Kent

£

300,000

Harrogate

1232

Fell Beck

£

120,000

Harrogate

1697

Swetton

£

90,000

Harrogate

1715

Toad Hole

£

120,000

Harrogate

1716

Rossaw

£

60,000

Harrogate

1927

Cam Gill Road Creep

£

75,000

Craven

Various

Road Footbridges

£

75,000

Various

Various

Public Rights of Way

£

30,000

Various

Various

Network Rail

£

30,000

Various

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/41

Page 111

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 9
Proposed Carriageway Patching Allocations

Highway
Area

Carriageway
Hierarchy

Carriageway Patching
Allocation for 2022/23*

2
Area 1

Area 2

Area 3

Area 4

Area 5

Area 6

Area 7

£0

3a

£378,150

3b

£157,981

4a

£155,344

4b

£339,271

2

£33,583

3a

£56,461

3b

£168,967

4a

£413,499

4b

£971,484

2

£16,891

3a

£37,387

3b

£126,621

4a

£188,847

4b

£610,632

2

£28,225

3a

£13,418

3b

£143,333

4a

£610,444

4b

£949,380

2

£62,041

3a

£21,383

3b

£130,804

4a

£86,171

4b

£300,562

2

£212,553

3a

£160,545

3b

£165,192

4a

£543,070

4b

£795,446

2

£23,303

3a

£48,476

3b

£72,396

4a

£141,008

4b

£281,973

*Dependent on funding. This value will be amended based on the final received funding
settlement.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
112
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/42

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 10
Proposed Footway Patching & Slurry Sealing Allocations
Highway Area
Area 1

Area 2

Area 3

Area 4

Area 5

Area 6

Area 7

Footway Treatment

Allocation for
2022/23*

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

10,424

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

43,366

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

8,079

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

18,890

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

81,934

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

28,317

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

23,630

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

93,564

14,729

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

10,160

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

11,594

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

47,181

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

20,095

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

10,685

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

44,065

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

9,368

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

32,494

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

135,173

Cat 1,1a 2 Footway Patching

£

9,252

Cat 3,4,5 Footway Patching

£

17,283

Cat 3,4, 5 Slurry Sealing

£

71,896

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/43

Page 113

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 11
Forward Highways Capital Programme
Initial equality impact assessment screening form
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’)
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate
or proportionate.
Directorate
Service area
Proposal being screened
Officer(s) carrying out screening
What are you proposing to do?
Why are you proposing this? What are
the desired outcomes?

Does the proposal involve a
significant commitment or removal of
resources? Please give details.

Business and Environmental Services
Highways and Transportation
Agree the inclusion of schemes in to the
Highways Capital Forward Programme
James Gilroy
Deliver a programme of highways capital
works.
To maintain, and where appropriate, improve
the highway asset infrastructure and to comply
with the County Councils duties and
responsibilities under the relevant legislation
(as detailed in the Report).
The commitment is to deliver the schemes
within the forward programme across
forthcoming years in line with funding awarded
form the Department of Transport.

Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed
characteristics?
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions:
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected
characteristics?
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as
important?
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates
to?
If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep
for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic
Yes
No
Don’t know/No
info available

Age

Disability

Sex (Gender)

Race

Sexual orientation

Gender reassignment

Religion or belief

Pregnancy or maternity

Marriage or civil partnership
NYCC additional characteristic
NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Page
114
Automated
Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/44

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 11
People in rural areas
People on a low income
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
Does the proposal relate to an area
where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g.
disabled people’s access to public
transport)? Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant
effect on how other organisations
operate? (E.g. partners, funding
criteria, etc.). Do any of these
organisations support people with
protected characteristics? Please
explain why you have reached this
conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)
Reason for decision

Signed (Assistant Director or
equivalent)
Date




Yes. Physical accessibility of the highway
network for people with mobility difficulties.

No.
Highway Capital Maintenance is a specific
annual programme of works which doesn’t
rely on the activities of other organisations.


Continue to
EIA not
full EIA:
relevant or
proportionate:
The allocation of funding is based on the
“Manage, Maintain and Improve” (MMI)
hierarchy set out in Local Transport Plan 4,
which has been the subject of an Equality
Impact Assessment (EIA). This concluded
that the introduction of fewer improvement
schemes may have a greater impact on
people with mobility difficulties or without
access to a private vehicle as there will be
fewer new facilities provided e.g. pedestrian
crossings, dropped kerbs, bus stop
accessibility improvements; however, it is
also considered that prioritising maintenance,
particularly for footways, through the MMI
hierarchy is likely to produce a net benefit for
people with the same protected
characteristics; particularly in terms of age
and disability.
Barrie Mason
09/08/21

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/45

Page 115

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 12
Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 116

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.
Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal

Automated Highway asset data collection and processing contract.
To seek agreement from the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental
Services (BES), in consultation with County Councillor Don Mackenzie Executive
Member for
Access,
 for adding new schemes to the forward highways capital programme.
 for additions to the Highways Capital Works Programme for Structural
Highway Maintenance for 2021/22 identified since the last Highways Capital
Programme report dated 21 August 2020

Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment

BES
Highways and Transportation
James Gilroy

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/46

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 12
Date impact assessment started

05.08.2021

Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not
progressed.
No.
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible.

Page 117

It is hoped that the forward programme will help to reduce costs. Adding schemes to the forward programme does not have an immediate financial cost,
however it provides the ability for operational teams to develop more efficient programmes of work when identifying schemes for delivery within an annual
programme.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/47

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Page 118

Minimise greenhouse
gas emissions e.g.
reducing emissions from
travel, increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Emissions x
from travel
Emissions x
from
constructio
n
Emissions
from
running of
buildings
Other

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing
use of single use plastic
Reduce water consumption

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

Appendix 12
Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

More efficient planning and coordination of
future highway works, will help to reduce
emissions form construction vehicles.
More efficient planning and coordination of
future highway works, will help to reduce
emissions form construction vehicles.
x

x
A more longer-term programme will potentially
increase the potential for in-situ materials
recycling on highway schemes, helping to
reduce waste sent to landfill.

X

x
NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/48

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Page 119

Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and special
qualities of North Yorkshire’s
landscape

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Improving road surface quality

x

Ensure resilience to the effects of
x
climate change e.g. reducing flood
risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter
summers
Enhance conservation and wildlife

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

Appendix 12

Delivery of drainage schemes to help reduce
surface water flood risk.elivery of drainage
Imporvement of bridge stock to enhance
resilience.
x

x

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/49

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Page 120

Other (please state below)

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

Appendix 12
Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

x

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those
standards.

N/A

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.
The development and implementation of the forward programme will assist in planning of future highways capital maintenance schemes helping to improve
efficiency and reduce waste.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/50

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Appendix 12
Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:
Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

James Gilroy
Team Leader Highway Asset Management
Highways and Transport
BES
J Gilroy
04.08.2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason
Date: 09/08/21

Page 121
NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Automated Highway Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract/51

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway Asset Survey
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To seek authorisation from the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental
Services (BES), in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access,

to establish a procurement framework for the provision of automated
highway asset data collection and processing

to call off a contract from this framework for the supply of automated highway
asset data collection and processing in North Yorkshire.

2.0

Background

2.1

The County Council carries out annual Course Visual Inspection Surveys (CVIS) on
its Category 4a, 4b and 5 roads, accounting for over 6000km of our network. These
surveys are designed to establish the condition of the highway network, with the
results being used to help prioritise future maintenance activities.

2.2

Traditionally these surveys have been carried out manually, with two network
surveyors travelling in a vehicle conducting a driven survey. In 2018 the County
Council began working with Vaisala Limited (Vaisala) on the trial and development of
Road AI, a system designed to automate CVIS. This trial was part funded by the
Department for Transport. The trial identified that the system was able to meet
required standards for carriageway condition surveys.

2.3

2.4

Funding for the trial ended in March 2020. Covid-19 and the restrictions placed on
working practices severely compromised the ability of the Highway’s Asset
Management Team to undertake traditional CVIS. Due to Road AI only requiring one
surveyor, and the unprecedented circumstances the Council faced, a short-term
agreement was put in place with Vaisala, authorised through a Director’s
recommendation. This agreement expires on the 31st May 2022.
The use of an AI based system has provided many benefits, including

reducing the time needed to complete CVI surveys,

ability to redeploy surveying team on other non-carriageway surveys tasks

providing an updated annual video survey of the County’s carriageway network,
helping during remote working.

providing a wider range of condition data to assist with investment decisions

3.0

Proposed Way Forward

3.1

We are seeking to establish a new compliant contract for an automated highways
asset survey and data capture system from 2022. As the market has developed
significantly since the trial with Vaisala commenced in 2018, it is proposed that an
open procurement process is undertaken.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /1

Page 123

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

3.2

In order to open up procurement opportunities for other local highway authorities,
particularly those bordering or close to North Yorkshire, we are seeking to establish a
single supplier framework that other contracting authorities would be able to access
and call off from.

3.3

Once the framework is established, the County Council would call off a contract for
the provision of required services from this Framework in North Yorkshire.

4.0

Financial Implications

4.1

It is anticipated that the annual cost of an AI based system would be between £50K£100K. The system would be funded from the LTP Capital Programme Budget and
has been accounted for in future capital budget planning.

4.2

The contents of this report make no changes to the BES Capital Plan expenditure
limits.

5.0

Equalities Implications

5.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment screening form is attached as Appendix 1. It is the
view of Officers that the proposal will have no adverse equality impact on any of the
protected characteristic groupings.

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

The proposal is to carry out an OJEU compliant procurement process in accordance
with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015nd The Public Procurement (Amendment
etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2020

7.0

Climate Change Impact

7.1

A climate change impact assessment has been carried out, see Appendix 2. It has
identified that the use of an AI based system has the ability to reduce carbon
emissions by reducing vehicle mileage and helping the Council to more effectively
manage and maintain its carriageway network.

8.0

Recommendation

8.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Director, BES and the BES Executive Member for
Access
i.
authorise the establishment of a procurement framework for the provision of
automated highway asset data collection and processing
ii.
authorise officers to call off a contract from this framework for the supply of
automated highway asset data collection and processing in North Yorkshire

BARRIE MASON
Assistant Director - Highways and Transportation
Author of Report: James Gilroy
Backing Documents: None

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /2

Page 124

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
Automated Highway asset data collection and processing contract.
Initial equality impact assessment screening form
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’)
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate
or proportionate.
Business and Environmental Services
Directorate
Service area

Highways & Transportation

Proposal being screened

Procurement of an Automated Highway asset
data collection and processing contract.

Officer(s) carrying out screening

James Gilroy

What are you proposing to do?

Establishment of a procurement framework for
the provision of automated highway asset data
collection and processing and the call off of a
contract from this framework
Improve the efficiency of the carriageway
condition surveys.
No – the procurement would not involve a
significant commitment or removal of resources.

Why are you proposing this? What
are the desired outcomes?
Does the proposal involve a
significant commitment or removal
of resources? Please give details.
Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by
the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed characteristic
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions:
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected
characteristics?
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as
important?
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal
relates to?

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant
adverse impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA
should be carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your
Equality rep for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic

Yes

No

Don’t know/No
info available











Age
Disability
Sex (Gender)
Race
Sexual orientation
Gender reassignment
Religion or belief
Pregnancy or maternity
Marriage or civil partnership
NYCC additional characteristic

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /3

Page 125

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 1
People in rural areas
People on a low income
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
Does the proposal relate to an area
where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g.
disabled people’s access to public
transport)? Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant
effect on how other organisations
operate? (e.g. partners, funding
criteria, etc.). Do any of these
organisations support people with
protected characteristics? Please
explain why you have reached this
conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)
Reason for decision

Signed (Assistant Director or
equivalent)
Date




No, the proposals do not negatively affect any
groups of people.

No, the proposal will have no effect on how
other organisations work.


Continue to
EIA not
full EIA:
relevant or
proportionate:
The procured system will provide carriageway
condition data based on objective technical
criteria. Condition survey results will contribute
towards the identification and prioritisation of
proposed carriageway maintenance schemes.
Barrie Mason
09/08/21

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /4

Page 126

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2
Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk
Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment

Page 127

However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal

Automated Highway asset data collection and processing contract.

Brief description of proposal

To seek authorisation from the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental
Services (BES), in consultation with the BES Executive Member for access,



Directorate
Service area
Lead officer

to establish a procurement framework for the provision of automated
highway asset data collection and processing
to call off a contract from this framework for the supply of automated
highway asset data collection and processing in North Yorkshire.

BES
Highways and Transportation
James Gilroy
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /5

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

03.08.2021

Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not
progressed.
Revert back to manual completion of CVI surveys was considered, however the benefits of using an AI based system are significant in terms of data sharing,
efficiencies and the ability to complete the required surveys quicker.
What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?

Page 128

Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible.
Whilst there is some capital-funded expenditure, an AI based system can help to reduce costs through improved efficiency in scheme design & development,
reduced vehicle mileage. The potential exists to roll out access to the collected video data across the Council, particularly in the Customer Service Centre to
assist with managed customer contacts and queries.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /6

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Page 129

Minimise greenhouse
gas emissions e.g.
reducing emissions from
travel, increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Emissions x
from travel
Emissions x
from
constructio
n
Emissions
from
running of
buildings
Other

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing
use of single use plastic

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

APPENDIX 2
Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Reduced mileage to complete CVI surveys
Reducing the need for site visits
Helping the council to more effectively manage
and maintain its carriageway network.
Improved information will allow the
Council to improve coordination of works
to improve delivery efficiency.
x

x
x

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /7

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Page 130

Reduce water consumption
Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

APPENDIX 2
Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

x
Reduced vehicle mileage

x

Ensure resilience to the effects of
x
climate change e.g. reducing flood
risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter
summers

AI technology can help to improve carriageway
condition monitoring, helping to identify climate
change impacts on the carriageway network.
AI technology can also be used to assess flood
locations etc to help with future planning and
response

Enhance conservation and wildlife

x

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /8

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

x

Other (please state below)

x

Page 131

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and special
qualities of North Yorkshire’s
landscape

Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

No impact
(Place a X in the box below where

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where

APPENDIX 2
Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those
standards.
N/A

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /9

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

APPENDIX 2
Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.
It has identified that the use of an AI based system has the ability to reduce carbon emissions by reducing vehicle mileage and helping the Council to more
effectively manage and maintain its carriageway network.

Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:

Page 132

Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

James Gilroy
Team Leader Highway Asset Management
Highways and Transport
BES
J Gilroy
03.08.2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason
Date: 09/08/21

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Asset Data Collection and Processing Contract – Automated Highway /10

OFFICIAL ‐ SENSITIVE

Agenda Item 9
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Nidderdale Greenway Extension
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation
1.0

Purpose Of Report

1.1

To seek approval from the BES Corporate Director in consultation with County
Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access for NYCC’s involvement in
the proposed governance framework to progress an extension to the existing
Nidderdale Greenway cycle route.

2.0

Background

2.1

The Nidderdale Greenway opened in 2013 as a multi-user route between Harrogate
and Ripley, with the route subsequently extended further through Hollybank Wood
and Clint. The Community Development Agency, Nidderdale Plus, later
commissioned Sustrans to undertake a scoping study to consider the potential for
extending the route further to Pateley Bridge.

2.2

The scoping study, produced by Sustrans, was in-part funded from a variety of
sources, including an NYCC member’s environmental locality budget contribution.
NYCC officers were not aware the study was taking place and had no input into its
production.

2.3

A significant proportion of the route is off-highway. The study is attached as
Appendix 1.

3.0

Opportunities

3.1

In terms of usage, the route’s purpose is largely recreational, but with the proposals
to extend further into the Dale and connecting in with settlements along the route,
including Pateley Bridge, its value as a traffic free utility cycling and walking route, is
likely to increase.

3.2

In addition to the wider benefits of cycling to physical and mental wellbeing, the
potential exists for the route’s extension to benefit the local economy from cycle
tourism related activity.

4.0

Challenges

4.1

Land: Much of the land on which the route is proposed, is privately owned, crossing
multiple landowner interests and from whom consent would be required. Currently,
43% of the planned route (8.5 km) is public footpath, requiring upgrade to bridleway
status, with another 40% (7.9 km), having no existing route status at all. The
remaining 17% of the route is either publicly maintainable highway (12% or 2.3 km),
public bridleway (5% or 1 km) or in use by the public, but with no recorded rights
(<1% or 0.2 km).

Page 133NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members

Nidderdale Greenway Extension/1

4.2

Funding: The feasibility study suggests a cost estimate figure of £6.6M for the
extension, which includes for 10% contingency. This is considered light for a 21 km
route, requiring not inconsiderable engineering, particularly alongside the River Nidd.
The study though does recommend, prior to bidding for capital funds, agreeing an
appropriate level of optimism bias. It is also worth noting, the study cost estimate
does not include for land purchase/landowner compensation costs.

4.3

Community views: Feedback from stakeholders suggests a level of parish council
support, but that there has otherwise been a cautious response to the proposals. In
a similar way, the Nidderdale AONB has already taken an earlier report to its Joint
Advisory Committee and it considers a sustainable route to be a good opportunity for
the Dales, whilst at the same time, sounding a note of caution around materials and
surfacing and highlighting the need for meaningful community input and engagement.

4.4

NYCC input: From a practical perspective, whilst there may be some resource
implications for Highways and Transportation teams, as the majority of the route is
off-highway, the largest service demands are likely to be felt in the Countryside
Access team, given the current nature of the route and the need to change its status.

4.5

More widely, NYCC has made clear in meetings with stakeholders that it would not
be in a position to lead on the project, but, subject to BES Corporate Director
approval in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access, the Council
would be happy to lend limited support through involvement on a project board or
steering group. This offer has been welcomed.

4.6

Further, following informal discussions with stakeholders, including Sustrans,
Harrogate District Cycle Action (HDCA), Nidderdale AONB and others, the
consensus appears to be that organisations other than NYCC, will essentially
perform the heavy lifting, around leading on funding bids, landowner negotiations,
community engagement, detail design and further business case development and
works tendering.

4.7

Nevertheless, as NYCC has expertise in these areas and in consideration also of the
statutory duties and responsibilities of the Highway Authority, there are a number of
key questions, currently remaining unanswered, around who would take on future
maintenance liability and general route management, or which organisation would
take on accountable body status for any grant award, there may be calls further down
the line for the Council to expand its role in the project. Following the recent Local
Government Reorganisation announcement, whilst it is more likely that it will be for
the new unitary council to consider at least some of these issues, these are also
material considerations for the County Council now.

5.0

Proposed Next Steps

5.1

What the precise governance arrangements will be for the project is as yet unknown,
but the immediate next steps, following the recent publication of the feasibility study
is for Harrogate Borough Council and NYCC to seek approval for involvement in the
project via a proposed steering group to oversee the project.

5.2

For the project to develop at pace, a funding stream is needed with ideally, a
dedicated project officer, but in the meantime, given the challenges associated with
development of the project, the feasibility study recommends delivery, section by
section, which seems a sensible approach.

Page 134

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/2

6.0

Equalities

6.1

Consideration has been given to the potential for any equality impacts arising from
the recommendations. It is the view of officers that at this stage the recommendations
do not have an adverse impact on any of the protected characteristics identified in
the Equalities Act 2010. A copy of the Equality Impact Assessment screening form is
attached as Appendix 2.

7.0

Finance

7.1

There are considered to be no financial implications associated with the initial
proposal for NYCC to have a role on the proposed steering group apart from the cost
of officer time which will be absorbed by the service within existing budgets. There is
no funding for any work on this project in NYCC’s budget.

7.2
7.3

There is the potential for there to be financial implications for NYCC in the future,
depending how the project progresses and / or some involvement in accessing and
managing funding streams. A report setting out any financial implications for NYCC
will be brought forward in the future, at an appropriate time once implications are
known, for a decision before any costs are incurred or additional involvement
required.

8.0

Legal

8.1

There are considered to be no legal implications arising from the proposal for NYCC
to have a role on the proposed steering group. Further consideration of legal
implications will be required as the project evolves.

9.0

Climate Change

9.4

A climate change impact assessment has been carried out, see Appendix 3. There is
no negative impact associated with NYCC involvement in the governance framework
for the Nidderdale Greenway. In addition, there are expected benefits of the project
as a whole following construction and potential modal shift.

10.0

Recommendation

10.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Director Business and Environmental
Services in consultation with the BES Executive Member for Access approves:
i.
The participation by NYCC in the project steering group and supporting
governance framework for the proposed extension to the Nidderdale
Greenway.

BARRIE MASON
Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation

Author of Report: Allan McVeigh

Background Documents: None

Page 135NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members

Nidderdale Greenway Extension/3

Appendix 1

Extending the Nidderdale Greenway:
G
N
A feasibility study
I
K
From Ripley to Pateley Bridge and Wath
Sustrans in conjunction with Greenways and Cycleroutes Ltd
July 2021

J
R
v
O
e
W FT_R
DRA

Page 136
NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/4

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Contents
Acknowledgements.......................................................................................3
Foreword.......................................................................................................3
1. Introduction...............................................................................................4
2. Planning related issues.............................................................................6
3. Background to route design......................................................................8
4. Detailed description of each section of the route.....................................9
Wath to Pateley Bridge – 2.5km..........................................................10
Pateley Bridge to Glasshouses – 2km................................................11

Dacre Banks to Darley – 2.56km.........................................................17
Darley to Birstwith – 4.9km.................................................................21
Birstwith to Hampsthwaite – 1.9km....................................................24
Hampsthwaite to Ripley – 3km...........................................................26

Revision Description
H
Draft H for comment

Author
RD, AS

Check

Date
Jun 2021

5. Route delivery and preliminary costings.................................................27
6. Business case.........................................................................................30
7. Next steps...............................................................................................31
8. Future funding.........................................................................................32

Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0.
Front cover images: Nidderdale Greenway Sources: Sustrans Media Library
Back Cover Images: Top left and right Source: John Grimshaw. Bottom Source: Sustrans
Media Library
Photos, sketches and maps within the study have been provided by John Grimshaw unless
stated otherwise.
2

9.Conclusion...............................................................................................32
Appendices................................................................................................33
1. NCN Design Principles.....................................................................33
2. Business case..................................................................................35

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/5

- Binding Margin -

Page 137

Glasshouses to Dacre Banks – 4.06km..............................................13

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Acknowledgements

Page 138

- Binding Margin -

Sustrans gratefully acknowledges
the technical assistance provided
by John Grimshaw of Greenways
& Cycleroutes Limited with the
preliminary design for the route
proposed here, and the route
planning work and landowner
discussions undertaken by Sustrans
volunteers David Hall and Malcolm
Margolis BEM.

Figure 1. View along River Nidd
3

Our thanks also go to the many
landowners and others who
engaged with David and Malcolm
for the purpose of producing this
feasibility study.
Thanks too to those who helped to
make this study possible through
numerous donations and grants.

Foreword
The Nidderdale Greenway, opened
in 2013, is a marvellous active travel
and green tourism asset to Harrogate
and Nidderdale. We welcome this
report which shows how it could be
extended into the heart of the AONB.
Much of the work described in it was
completed before the Coronavirus
pandemic struck and the Government
lockdown on March 23rd 2020. We
have all been shocked by the loss
of life and livelihoods caused by the
virus, globally and locally. The impact
on society has been profound and
reflecting on the way we live and travel
has never been more critical.

steering group of able volunteers and
community leaders to consult more
widely on the proposals and to oversee
the key stages of development.
Councillor Philip Ireland, Harrogate
Borough Council
Councillor Stanley Lumley, North Yorkshire
County Council

Extending the Greenway will contribute
significantly to local authority targets
on health, mobility, tourism, the green
economy and the local ecology.
Many people, including landowners,
businesses and community
representatives were consulted during
the preparation of this report helping
to define the recommended route.
We commend this report to all those
committed to protecting the character
of the Dale whilst extending a resource
important to the future wellbeing
of its communities. The report will
be used to draw together a project

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/6

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

1. Introduction

The old railway’s seven-arched
viaduct is a spectacular way to cross
the Nidd Gorge north of Harrogate
town centre on the existing route,
while Ripley Castle and village lie at
the eastern edge of the Nidderdale
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB).
Since the scoping work, Sustrans
has been commissioned to carry out
the following tasks for the Ripley Hampsthwaite - Birstwith - Darley Dacre Banks - Pateley Bridge - Scar
House section:
•
4

Route options appraisal

•

Contact and understanding with
landowners

•

Outline design and cost estimate

•

Identification of next steps and
future funding opportunities

•

Stakeholder and wider community
engagement

•

A report summarising all of the
above

Whilst there has been positive
discussion with Yorkshire Water
about the use of the access road from
Lofthouse to Scar House Reservoir,
and some consideration of options by
Gouthwaite Reservoir, this report does
not cover extending the Greenway
beyond Wath.
A number of the above tasks include
joint working with Nidderdale Plus,
and Sustrans have been asked to
work under the auspices of the
Nidderdale Strategic Partnership.
Since beginning this work, Sustrans
has completed its review of the
National Cycle Network and published
its Paths for everyone Sustrans review
of National Cycle Network Review
2018 report.
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/pathsforeveryone

Background to the Project
The existing Greenway between
Harrogate and Ripley was completed
in 2013 following many years of
determined and persistent effort by
Harrogate Borough Council, local
activity groups, North Yorkshire
County Council and sustainable
transport charity Sustrans. This
created a traffic free disused railwaybased path for walkers, cyclists,
joggers and people using wheelchairs
or mobility scooters with a parallel
horse track to share. It forms part of
National Cycle Network Route 67.

Figure 2. Nidderdale Greenway interpretation
board Source: Malcolm Margolis

Phase 1 of the Greenway has proved
very popular. A Route User Intercept
Survey undertaken by Sustrans over
four days in early September 2018
produced the following result:-

•

59% cyclists | 31% pedestrians
| 10% other users (wheelchair
users, joggers etc.)

•

41% females | 59% males

•

Annual usage estimate for 2018 of
196,000 users

This first section of the Greenway
through Nidderdale, an Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB),
gives us a glimpse of the substantial
benefits that can be gained by the
development of traffic free travel.
There is now an appetite to extend
the route further into Nidderdale,
enhancing its appeal as a leisure
route and helping to connect the
communities along the way for a
range of utility journeys of a generally
shorter distance.
Helpfully, the disused railway between
Clint and Scar House Reservoir is
protected in the Borough Council’s
Local Plan as a sustainable and
improved Transport Corridor, and so
has been studied for its suitability and
potential availability for the scheme.
Where the railway has been lost
to later development, or no longer
provides the best link between
communities an alternative route has
been suggested.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/7

- Binding Margin -

Page 139

Following the success of the four
mile long multi-user Nidderdale
Greenway between Harrogate and
Ripley in North Yorkshire which
opened in 2013 (and a later extension
through Hollybank Wood to Clint),
the community development agency
Nidderdale Plus proposed that
Sustrans undertook scoping work to
assess the potential for continuing
the Greenway to Pateley Bridge. The
report for this work recommended a
route that followed the River Nidd and
used more sections of the disused
railway where practicable.

Appendix 1

88

te 6

ou
Nr

NC

Wath

NCN
88

6
oute
CN r

rout
e

688

7

N

N

NC

Page 140

The alignment of the
route proposed in this
feasibility study can
be revised following
reconsideration of issues
raised in response to the
study, and route design and
specifications amended
where appropriate.

e6
ut
ro

Wider public consultation is
also envisaged.

Figure 3. Potential Nidderdale Greenway and
existing NCN Source: Sustrans

NCN route 67
Nidderdale Greenway
Harrogate - Ripley

Legend
Potential Nidderdale Greenway

National Cycle Network
OnRoad
OnRoad (Reclassified)
TrafficFree

Former railway
Former railway

5

0

2.5

5

10 Kilometers
Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020
Contains data from OS Zoomstack, Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2019

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/8

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

2. Planning related issues
Harrogate Borough Council published
the Harrogate District Local Plan as
Draft in 2018. This shows the line
of the disused railway as protected
under TI 2: Protection of Transport
Sites and Route policy:-

Included within the investment
strategies or plans produced by
Highways England, as the strategic
highway authority, North Yorkshire
County Council, as the local highway
authority, or by any other body or
organisation contributing towards
the creation of a sustainable and
improved transport system for the
district, and for which there is an
agreed preferred route or site;
Along the route of a former railway
line; in particular the sections of the
Harrogate – Ripon - Northallerton line
6

•

A place where environmental
limits are widely respected and
concerted effort is being made to
reduce carbon emissions while
Landscape
seeking opportunities to increase
carbon storage;

A cycle or pedestrian route identified
by the local highway authority or the
Aim (L1)
district council and
included within an
Increase understanding of AONB special qualities
approved plan or strategy.”
• Made up of a resilient landscape
Objectives
renowned for its high windswept
1. identifying
Implement and and
monitor a PR campaign targeted at the AONB’s key audiences
The importance of
moors,
ancient
2. Monitor landscape change by publishing data
in an annual
reportwoodlands,
protecting sites and
routes where
3. Revise and update the 2004 Landscape Character Assessment of the AONB to create a vibrant
livestock-grazed
pasture, flower
portrait that
of what
makes Nidderdale’s landscape distinctive, different and nationally important
there is robust evidence
they
rich
historicwith
country
4. Secure International Dark Sky Reserve status
for meadows,
Nidderdale in conjunction
the Yorkshire
could be critical in developing
Dales National Park Authority
houses and parkland filled with
infrastructure to widen transport
veteran trees;
Aim (L2)
choice is set out Maintain
in paragraph
14 of
and enhance the AONBs natural beauty
the National Planning Policy.
• Home to a greater abundance and
Objectives
diversity of wildlife compared to
1. Work with Defra to ensure the new Environmental Land Management scheme delivers a
positive outcome for natural beauty
the 2019 State of Nidderdale’s
Nidderdale AONB
2019-2024
2. Increase
active management of the AONB’s woodland to improve the landscape and wildlife
Nature Report Summary;
Management Planvalue of semi-natural ancient woodland and plantations on ancient woodland sites
3. Underground overhead power lines where they cause harm to open landscapes, the setting of
Nidderdale AONB’sheritage
Management
Plan of the historic
• Aenvironment
welcoming destination for
assets and features
4. Safeguard
tranquility of the AONB
is a high-level strategy
thatthe
provides
people seeking opportunities for
a framework for action
designed
to
recreation;
Aim (L3)
Oppose
proposals
for major development and applications for smaller scale development that
protect the AONB’s
special
quality.
A the
place
people
can area where
conflict with the purposes of designation• within
AONBwhere
and outside
the designated
The vision set outthisinwould
the affect
Planland
is for
within it
experience tranquillity and
Niddderdale AONB to be:
improve their health and
Objectives
1.
Work
with
applicants
to
ensure
development
proposals are consistent with AONB objectives
• A vibrant working landscape
wellbeing;
2. Contribute to the evolution of planning policy affecting the AONB
where rural communities,
3. Work with community organisationsSpecifically
to adapt planninginpolicy
to localto
circumstances
relation
land managers and other
‘Understanding and Enjoyment’
rural businesses are working
(one of six key areas in the Plan),
collaboratively together to protect
supporting the development of the
natural beauty;
Greenway is explicitly mentioned

(Figure 4). A focus over the next five
years making significant progress
towards this vision.

Understanding and Enjoyment
Aim (UE1)
Create more opportunities for people to enjoy
the AONB
Objectives
1. Gather comprehensive, reliable and up-to-date
information on the condition of rights of way and
prioritise route maintenance
2. Support work by partner organisations and others
to develop the Nidderdale Greenway
3. Improve the condition of the Nidderdale Way
4. Provide environmental advice to organisers of
large events
5. Work with health organisations to develop plans
for environment-based therapies and social
prescribing
Aim (UE2)
Figure 4. Table Source: Nidderdale AONB 2019Reduce the impact of vehicular use of Unsurfaced
2024 Management Plan
Unclassified Roads where this is having an adverse
impact on conservation of the natural and
cultural heritage of the AONB and its enjoyment
Public
/ Permissive Rights of Way
by the public

Issues
Objectives
Stakeholder
engagement so far has
1. Seek to prevent illegal vehicular use on public
highlighted
desire, where possible,
footpaths the
and bridleways
2. Carry out an environmental assessment of all
for the route to cater for horse-riders
Unsurfaced and Unclassified Roads
as3.well
as an
those
walking.
Publish
actioncycling
plan for alland
Unsurfaced
and
Unclassified Roads currently used by
This does not mean that braided
recreational vehicles
sections of the route cannot be
Management make
Plan 2019 - 2024 | 19
considered when circumstances
them more appropriate.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/9

- Binding Margin -

Page 141

Policy TI2: Protection of Transport
Sites and Routes states:
“New sites and routes which have the
potential to contribute towards the
revision of a sustainable and improved
transport system will be safeguarded
where there is a reasonable prospect
of them accommodating new
transport infrastructure before 2035.
This will apply when a scheme is:

and the Harrogate to Wetherby and
Harrogate to Pateley Bridge lines that
lie within the Harrogate district;

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Ecology
Ecology is part of Sustrans’ traffic-free
routes and greenways design guide.
Despite the environmental benefits
of creating traffic-free routes, their
construction can remove or damage
natural habitat, often in important
locations. Failure to follow correct
procedure can be a legal offence and
have detrimental effects on nature
conservation.

Page 142

- Binding Margin -

Agreements with landowners are
assumed to be on the basis of creating
permissive rights of way wherever
possible. When the path follows the
line of an existing PRoW then the
bridleway section of the Greenway can
run alongside the PRoW or incorporate
it with a new permissive agreement.

habitats, species and conservation on
a landscape scale. Whilst policies are
enacted through the planning process,
the legislation is statutory and applies
at all times, whether or not a project
requires planning permission.
Where avoidance of adverse impacts
on important ecological features is
not possible, approval of mitigation
and compensation measures will be
required for the work to go ahead. A
planning application would set out
these measures in detail and require
robust survey information.
Planning policy also stipulates
ecological enhancements to
be proposed as part of new

developments wherever practical.
The latest update to the forthcoming
Environment Bill specifies a mandatory
10% biodiversity net gain to be
maintained for a period of at least
30 years. These are ecological
improvements beyond those required
to compensate for damage.
The route proposed in this study
passes nearby a range of nature
conservation sites of international and
national importance, and is likely to
provide suitable habitat to support
a range of protected species. An
indication of the route in relation to
some of these sites is shown in the
map below.

Potential Nidderdale Greenway
Special Areas of Conservation (England) © Natural England
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (England) © Natural England
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (England) © Natural England

As yet, a preliminary ecological
impact assessment has not been
carried out by Sustrans for the route
proposal in this study. This is an early
stage priority in the next phase of
development and will be required to
inform the design process.
There will also be a requirement
to adhere to legislation relating to
designated nature conservation sites,
7

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020
Contains data from OS Zoomstack, Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and
database right 2019

Figure 5. Some of the designated and protected
NYCCsites
– 20

6. Nidderdale
Greenway
Source: Sustrans
AugustFigure
2021Executive
Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/10

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

3. Background to route design
Nidderdale Greenway:
Harrogate to Ripley

Page 143

It is proposed to maintain the same

Figure 7. Hollybank Lane on the way to Ripley

Figure 9. Riverside section east of the Ripon
Road

Ripley to Pateley Bridge
and Wath
This report sets out the preliminary
details of the proposed route. This is
based upon extending the successful
greenway currently running between
Harrogate and Ripley, and will follow
a mixture of disused railway track,
existing public rights of way and new
links to form a continuous, trafficfree village-to-village route with easy
gradients.
The route is described in sections
from Pateley Bridge (with an extension
to Wath) because it is envisaged
that the most likely next stage of
Greenway development will begin
there. It’s also Nidderdale’s principal
settlement and small market town

Figure 10. Approaching the Nidd Viaduct

Table 1. Route sections
Wath and Pateley Bridge route

2.49 kms

Pateley Bridge and Glasshouses

1.72 kms

Glasshouses and Dacre Banks

4.46 kms

Dacre Banks and Darley

2.56 kms

Darley and Birstwith
Birstwith and Hampsthwaite
Figure 8. Ripley towards the Nidd Viaduct

8

Hampsthwaite and Ripley
Total length of Greenway from Wath to Ripley

4.9 kms
1.9 kms
2.89 kms
20.92 kms

through which both the Way of the
Roses coast2coast cycle route and the
Nidderdale Way long distance walking
route pass.
Throughout a number of options
were reviewed and the arrangements
proposed in this study will no doubt
be revised and refined through further
discussion and negotiation with
landowners and other stakeholders,
but overall are considered to represent
the optimum routing.
During the course of the preparation
of this report the project team has met
as many of the landowners along the
route as possible. There has been
widespread support for the route
in general. The project team has
endeavoured to reflect many of the
points of view expressed and to select
the most satisfactory option where
possible.
Within its Paths for Everyone report,
Sustrans sets out its quality standard
and the underlying design principles
for the National Cycle Network
which are explained in more detail in
Appendix 1. The Business Case for
this scheme is included in Chapter 6,
page 30.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/11

- Binding Margin -

This route was completed in 2013 and
has proven very popular with walkers
and cyclists alike, especially on peak
days, in fine weather, but for the most
part it is a tranquil experience with
people passing in ones and twos.
Its more rural section, from the Nidd
Viaduct to Ripley consists of a 2.0m
wide tarmac path (Figures 7 to 10).

overall design and specifications
for extending the Greenway, but
take opportunities to widen the path
where possible and appropriate to
comfortable accommodate all users.

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

4. Detailed description of each section of the route

Wath

The route is described in sections from Wath to Ripley. This is so that the reader of this report can see a vision of the overall
complete route (Figure 11). The order of construction would depend upon local issues, on land agreements, and on funding
requirements. For example it has been suggested that Pateley Bridge to Glasshouses might be the best initial section to open on
account of the popularity of the existing riverside walk.
Pateley Bridge

Page 144

- Binding Margin -

Glasshouses

Dacre Banks

Ripley

Darley

Birstwith

Hampsthwaite

N

1000 metres

Figure 11. Plan of Proposed Route
9

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/12

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Wath to Pateley Bridge –
2.5km
This section largely follows the
existing Nidderdale Way which runs
on the formation of the original
reservoir railway for much of its
distance. It is worth noting that the
whole of the old railway route down
to Ripley is reserved for transport use
in the local plans. We have followed
this route where it is the best option
but there are sections down the valley

where riverside paths, for example,
provide a more attractive route.
Starting from the Sportsman’s Arms in
Wath, the railway route is occupied by
the old station house, so we need to
make a new link to the railway a little
closer to the river.
A long length of the Nidderdale Way
then follows the low causeway of the
railway route. This is a most attractive
section. Approaching Pateley Bridge
the public path leaves the old railway
in the nearby field and runs along

the riverside and then as a narrow
flood bank. This could be widened
or the greenway path could be built
just inside the bank. Finally the path
passes the Millennium Bridge and
joins the car park access road to reach
Pateley Bridge via The Sidings.

Figure 14. View of riverside path

- Binding Margin -

Page 145

Wath
Figure 13. Views of existing narrow floodbank
and fence
Figure 15.

N

Pateley
Bridge
0

Metres

500

10 Figure 12. Plan of Proposed Route

Figure 16. Sketch section through widened flood bank, with options of building the Greenway behind
the bank

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/13

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Pateley Bridge to Glasshouses – 2km
Whilst most of this section of route is clearly defined first along the line of the old
railway and then along the very fine walled lane along the side of Glasshouses
Dam, (this includes the ornamental drive below Castlestead), we have had to
consider a number of options past the Railway Cottages.
N
Pateley
Bridge

0

Metres

500

Page 146

Figure 18. Views behind Cottages looking down the line of the path

Glasshouses
Figure 17. Plan of Proposed Route

The first part of the old railway now
carries Nidd Walk, and the road to the
public car park on the station site.
The railway formation then becomes
the private access road to the Railway
Cottages for a distance of about
100m.
One option would be to divert the
greenway onto the existing riverside
path running behind Riverside
11

Figure 19. Sketch section

Cottages (Figures 18 and 19). This is
already well screened from the houses
by the existing fencing.
This option would require the creation
of a new ramp from the car park
(Figure 20), as the long length of
walled path constructed at the time
of the railway is too narrow for shared
use.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Figure 20. Sketch
plan of ramp
Nidderdale
Greenway Extension/14

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale
July 2021 Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

A second option would be to construct
a bypass on the hillside in front of the
cottages (Figure 21). Here the path
would need to be carefully screened
by timber fencing and/or planting to
minimise loss of privacy (Figure 22).

Figure 21. View in front of Cottages looking
down the line of the path

Page 147

Which of these alternatives was
adopted would depend upon local
interests and the availability of funding
as the bridge to the showground
would be the most costly. For the
time being we recommend the bypass
to the hillside in front of the Railway
Cottages.
The Greenway can now re-join the old
railway as it runs through the grounds
of the Harefield Hall Hotel (Figure 24).
It would be best to keep the Greenway
separate from the riverside for this
section as it is a popular promenade
with the public. At the far end of the
railway section a new link is required
to meet up with the Reservoir Lane,
and this could be arranged as shown
in Figure 25 below.

Figure 24. Old railway through Hotel grounds

Figure 22. Sketch cross section showing path and screening to railway
cottages

A third option would be to bridge
over the river just downstream of
the cottages and run a path along
the edge of the showground area
(see Figure 23). This would have the
advantage of linking the showground
and its various activities, including
the Bewerley Park Outdoor Centre, to
the planned Greenway, but the added
need for road safety measures at the
main road and into the town centre.
12

Figure 25. Sketch of ramp from railway and link
to Reservoir

Figure 23. View of existing Millennium Bridge
which could be replicated for the showground
link

The Reservoir Lane (Figure 24) is a
particularly memorable highlight of
the whole route. Descriptive panels to
explain the history and the workings of
the watercourse in this area would be
interesting.
26. View of the Reservoir
NYCC – 20 AugustFigure
2021Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/15

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Glasshouses to Dacre Banks
– 4.06km

Glasshouses

N

This magnificent section of the
Greenway falls into 3 sections. It
begins by following the riverside, then
moves onto the old railway via a new
bridge span and then runs along the
existing access road from Lead Wath
Forestry to the B6451 road at Dacre
Banks.
While work is still under way, cyclists
may have to walk along the path past
the redevelopment of the Glasshouses
Mill (Figure 25) but developers are
supportive of the shared use route
aligning through the completed site.

0

Metres

Page 148

Figure 27. (above) Artist’s impression of
Glasshouses Mill redevelopment;
Figure 28. (right) Plan view of Glasshouses Mill
redevelopment.
Source: https://www.newby.co.uk/
developments/glasshouses-mill
Potential route through development is
indicated by dashed line (illustrative only, not yet
discussed in detail with developers)

Dacre
Banks
Figure 29. Plan of Proposed Route

13

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/16

500

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

The next riverside section is
particularly attractive. An additional
3m strip of the field edge is required
to make the Greenway route as
suggested in Figure 31. There is a
never ending stream of pleasure in
walking and cycling along this river
with a rich variety of views and the
sound of the water never far away.
From the perspective of the farmers
too this may well be a much more
attractive route for the public, on the
boundary of their fields, rather than
following the line of the old railway.

After one more section of riverside
field edge, the next detail is the link
up to the old railway approach arches
(Figure 33) where a new bridge span
is required to replace the missing river
span.

Figure 30. View of riverside path

The Greenway should pass through
the side arch so that one can
appreciate the fabulous detailing
of this slew arch and then ramp up
alongside the old railway boundary at
1:20 to reach the railway levels.

Page 149

A new steel span approximately 25m
long is required (Figure 34). This
should be 2.5m wide. The steel beams
would be seated on simple concrete
slabs cast against the existing massive
masonry abutments.
Figure 33. Three views of masonry bridge
(right)

Figure 31. Sketch through typical riverside
path section

At one point the riverside path
climbs steeply and here a ramp
needs to be cut across the side
of the bank in order to secure the
1:20 gradient the Greenway needs
to provide for wheelchair users
(Figure 32).
14

Cut ramp down side of bank to give
1:20 gradient to the riverside
2 metre wide path
with wide grass verge
to riverbank and new
field fence

Figure 32. View of bank with overlay showing
arrangement of ramp

Figure 34. SketchNYCC
of link and–proposed
bridge 202120 August

Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/17

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Glasshouses to Dacre Banks
– 4.06km - continued

Across the last Harewell field the
railway is lost, and the Greenway could
move to the nearby field edge (Figures
37 and 38) to minimise disturbance to
livestock. This section could be fenced
off if this is required. Figure 39 shows
a gating and sheep grid arrangement
to prevent livestock straying onto the
path.

Past Harewell Hall the railway is used
by farm traffic (Figure 35) and it would
probably be best to construct the
Greenway as a parallel path to the
agricultural track (Figure 36).

Figure 37. View along field edge

Figure 35. View through the Harewell Cutting

Page 150

Figure 38. View along field edge

Figure 36. Sketch of parallel path

15

Figure 39. Sketch plan
of gate
NYCC

– 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/18

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

The railway now crosses a masonry
arch (Figure 40) which will require new
balustrades and the path continues
along the former sidings.
The section at Lead Wath needs to be
carefully detailed in order to minimise
annoyance and inconvenience to
the resident and works. We suggest
that the existing public footpaths are
diverted as shown in the sketch plan
(Figure 41). The existing track to the
timber works would then no longer
be a public right of way and could be
gated off if this was required.

Figure 40. View of arched bridge

From Lead Wath to Dacre Banks
one can conveniently follow the
existing public footpath which follows
the existing attractive access road
(Figure 42). The Greenway project
could tarmac this to minimise future
maintenance. Alternatively the
Greenway could follow the course of
the parallel railway which runs on a
low embankment here.

Figure 42. Views of Lead Wath road

Page 151

In Dacre Banks we recommend further
traffic calming to reduce traffic speeds
for the 200m of main road through to
the Royal Oak Inn (Figure 43).
This could be designed to encourage
the easy flow of cyclists.

Figure 43. View of existing traffic calming on
road

Figure 41. Sketch of diversion of public paths onto the proposed Greenway route

16

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/19

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Dacre Banks to Darley – 2.56km
This section runs along the old railway past Low Hall and then through the wood
of the same name. It then comes out onto open grassland with one of the most
memorable vistas of the whole route. Approaching the Pyefield House area, the
Greenway moves to the riverbank so as to minimise the interference with the farm.
Dacre
Banks

Page 152

The link from the Royal Oak Inn to
reach the railway is an interesting
challenge, as the public footpath
climbs a bit right across the centre of
an open field. We suggest following
the public footpath route as far as
the field, but then diverting the public
footpath (which cuts diagonally across
the open field) to run in a defile along
the field edge (Figure 45). Ideally this
would be excavated deep enough to
link conveniently to the floor of the
railway cutting (Figures 46 and 47),
and would ensure privacy to the the
adjacent private garden.

Figure 45. View of field edge

Figure 46. View of railway cutting

N

0

Metres

500

Darley
Figure 44. Plan of proposed route
17

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/20

Figure 47. Sketch of path in defile along field edge

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

The railway cutting makes for an
attractive detail along this route. At its
southern end one could fence off the
edge of the field (Figure 49) to keep
the public separate from livestock.

The next section runs on the railway
track as far as historic Low Hall. Here
it has been suggested that the farm
track is slightly moved away from the
cottage (Figure 50) so as to extend
its garden and planting screen (Figure
51).
Figure 50. View of cottage

Figure 48. View of field

Page 153

Figure 51. Sketch showing a possible arrangement so as to enhance the privacy
of the existing cottage

Figure 49. Suggested field edge path

This whole section is a public footpath
which runs past the farmyard (Figure
52) to reach a most attractive section
of route through woodland (Figure 53).
This section is one of those where the
track surface is almost good enough
for Greenway use without further
works.

18

Figure 52. View past the farmyard

53. Executive
View on woodland
section
NYCC – 20 AugustFigure
2021Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/21

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Dacre Banks to Darley – 2.56km continued
Pyefield House is very close to the
railway and public use of the old
railway track would be intrusive.
Fortunately, the riverside path (Figure
54) offers a most attractive alternative.

Figure 54. View of railway

Page 154

The most satisfactory arrangement
would be to stay on the railway to near
the high point of the existing riverside
path (Figure 57). The existing arched
bridge under the railway (Figure
54) would allow farm access to the
riverside fields and the existing public
path could be moved onto the railway
path to keep people well clear of the
farming operation. Once past the arch
the path could ramp down on the side
of the embankment away from the
house until it reached the natural high
point of the land from where it could
slip down to the riverside.
The alternative riverside route would
involve more extensive earthworks so
as to maintain nothing steeper than
1:20 gradient suitable for wheelchairs.

Figure 55. View of riverside path

Figure 57. Sketch plan of options between railway level and riverside

19

Figure 56. View of riverside

The final section beside the river would
require an additional 3m wide strip
along the field edge to provide for the
Greenway route (Figure 58). Part way
along, the side stream is crossed by
a narrow footbridge (Figure 59). This
would need to be replaced by a new
bridge (Figure 60) at the higher field
edge level. Note that there would have

Figure 58. Sketch section of proposed path

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/22

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

been no advantage staying on the
railway route because it has lost its
bridge.
Finally, to reach Station Road a new
path would be needed along the
field edge so as to widen the existing
narrow path (Figure 62).
Figure 61. View to existing path to Station
House

Figure 59. View of existing foot bridge

Page 155
Figure 60. View of similar bridge at Fleet
Marston

20

Figure 62. Sketch of link path

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/23

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Darley to Birstwith – 4.9km
This is a particularly fascinating
section which makes use of an original
road alignment through the riverside
edge of Wilsons Plantation as well a
significant section of the old railway.
It also includes the Ross Toll Bridge
(Figure 63) and passes close to the
historic ‘New’ Bridge (Figure 64).
Figure 63. Ross Toll Bridge
Cut back wall and insert wicket gate at
start of path from Station Road

Page 156

To start with the path needs to pass
to the south of the railway properties
(Figure 66). Although this means going
uphill a little it is no hardship because
this takes you closer to the Darley Post
Office, general store and café, which
is an important village resource and
needs to be well supported.

Figure 65. Sketch section

2 metre wide path with 1.5 metre
grass verge and new field fence to
bypass the old station area
Figure 64. New Bridge

Figure 66. View of field edge with montage of suggested path Source: John Grimshaw

N

0

Metres

500

Fig. 66

Darley
Birstwith
Figure 67. Plan of proposed route
21

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/24

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

There are probably three general solutions to this pinch point.
The Council might want to construct a rough retaining wall of massive rock to
prevent further erosion and the eventual loss of the road, or we could construct 30
metres or so of board walk, or we could follow the probable line of the road up the
slope and bypass the road on a short section of retained path. These are illustrated
in Figure 72 below. Clearly to follow over the top of the rock revetment would be
the best arrangement if this was possible.

From here join the railway route for
the next 1.5kms (Figure 68). Care is
needed in the detailing to ensure that
this section provides complete farm
access to fields either side and fencing
should be provided as required (Figure
65).
At the river crossing, where the bridge
span is missing, run along the field
edge and riverside (Figure 71) to reach
the woodland boundary.

Page 157

By following the next woodland
section one can avoid the need for a
new river bridge. For most of the way
the line of an old road is a well-defined
level between the Darley Road and the
River Nidd. At one point the line of the
old road is marked by a line of ancient
beech trees as the road climbed to
avoid the steep bank eroded by the
river.

Appendix 1July 2021

Figure 68. View of the railway

Figure 72. Sketch
through option at pinch
point
Figure 69. View of field edge

Figure 70. View of typical section

Figure 73. Sketch through
typical section of riverside

Figure 71. View of diversion at river bend
22

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/25

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Darley to Birstwith – 4.9km continued
Cyclists can join the road from Nidd
House Farm, whilst walkers can follow
the existing riverside footpath through
to the Birstwith Bridge.

Ramp up to the Ross Toll Bridge
and make a link on the edge of the
field past the Toll House to reach the
railway formation.
Now follow a lovely section of railway
route which is well used by the public,
followed by another private section this last would need to be fenced off
from the adjacent field.

Figure 74. View of railway section with well used
path

Page 158

At the end link along the field edge
to the existing green lane and
bridleway. Care is needed to ensure
the whole field is carefully fenced
against livestock, and that there are
appropriate gates.

Figure 77. View of path from bridge
Figure 75. View of railway towards Nidd House
Farm

Figure 78. View of road south of river bridge
Figure 76. View of Green Lane

23

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/26

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Birstwith to Hampsthwaite – 1.9km continued
Although the proposed riverside route
appears to be a small detour, it does
take you to Hampsthwaite with its
renowned café, and follows for the
most part an existing PRoW whilst
avoiding a section of the old railway.
Past the Kerry’s factory we need a new
bridge over the millstream and a series
of careful detailing to gain sufficient
space for a path outside the factory
boundary.

At the end of the fencing continue to
the end of the spit of land, ramp up
and bridge the outfall of the millrace
(Figure 81) to quite a high level on the
hillside beyond.
Figure 81. View of millrace near the planned
bridge
Figure 79. View of boundary

Page 159

Birstwith

Figure 82. Sketch section showing cutting down to Millrace Bridge

The next 500 metres of riverside path are most attractive but will require careful
construction to get a good path through.
N

0

Metres

500

Hampsthwaite

Figure 80. Map of section with views of riverside path

Figure 83. Views of woodland section
24

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/27

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

A new bridge will be required over the
Bracken Brook.
Visitors will almost certainly want to
walk through the churchyard of St.
Thomas à Becket church to see the
splendid marble sculpted monument
to Amy Woodeford-Finden, as well
as the much rebuilt church originally
conceived as a penance by the brother
in law of one of the three knights
who murdered the Archbishop at
Canterbury Cathedral.

Page 160

Figure 84. Sketch of section of hillside approaching bridge on the downstream
side

The last section of riverside path
into Hampsthwaite is much needed
because currently the Nidderdale Way
is routed along the road, which is
neither pleasant nor safe.

Figure 87. View between church and riverside

The through route can pass between
the churchyard and the riverside where
about 10 metres of new construction
will need to be supported on gabions
or other revetment (Figures 87 & 88).

Figure 85. View of field edge

Figure 86. Sketch of field edge path
25

Figure 88. Sketch ofNYCC
path at narrowest
section
– 20 August

2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/28

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Hampsthwaite to Ripley – 3km
Ripley

Most of this route is already in place.
One could follow the road up to Clint
(walkers to use the footpath) or much
better follow the bridle path from the
corner of Clint Bank Lane. This lovely
route will need some work to improve
drainage so as to provide a good allyear path for users.

Page 161
Figure 89. View of existing bridleway

N

Below: four views of the existing Ripley
Castle Path showing 2.0 metre wide
sealed surface with adjacent verge

Figure 90. Hollybank Lane on the way to Ripley
26

Hampsthwaite
0

Figure 94. Plan of proposed route

Figure 91. Riverside section east of the Ripon
Road

Figure 92. Ripley towards the Nidd Viaduct

Metres

Figure 93. Approaching the Nidd Viaduct

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/29

500

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

5. Route delivery and
preliminary costings

Route delivery
This report sets out the optimum route for extending the Harrogate to Ripley path as a greenway all
the way through to Pateley Bridge and Wath. The next phase of the project requires the completion
of working agreements with landowners all along the route, successful planning applications
probably best done section by section, and the securing of funds to allow the route to be built either
all at once, or in phases.

Wath and Pateley Bridge route

2.5km

Pateley Bridge and Glasshouses

1.7km

Glasshouses and Dacre Banks

4.46km

Dacre Banks and Darley

2.6km

Darley and Birstwith

4.9km

Birstwith and Hampsthwaite

1.9km

Hampsthwaite and Ripley

2.9km

Page 162

- Binding Margin -

Table 2. Summary of route sections and distances

Total length of Greenway from Wath to Ripley

Preliminary cost estimates

20.92km

Table 3. Table of distances (shown in km) and types of
routes
Section of route

Disused
railway

Wath to Pateley Bridge

It may be possible to find an approach to delivery which is based on local supporters being more
closely associated with their own local project, to manage it, negotiate with landowners, raise funds
and to promote it, which is likely to result in lower costs than are allowed for here.

The following preliminary cost estimates are based on aiming to construct a path to a similar
standard as that existing between the Nidd Viaduct and Ripley and on through towards Clint. This
2.0m wide path (increasing up to 3m where possible and appropriate) with a metre wide soft verge
seems to be suitable for the informal use as a path for everyone. As far as possible gradients will be
kept to 1:20 so that those in wheelchairs can readily use the route.
No real estimate is included for tree planting (or other ecological enhancement), soft measures,
landscape sculpture, seats or even additional links to the route. The estimates here are for creation
of the core route all through. Costs (and arrangements) associated with future maintenance are also
not included.

Railway used as
farm access
1.13

Riverside
path

Existing track

0.91

0.54

Glasshouses to Dacre Banks

0.40

1.00

1.16

Dacre Banks to Darley

0.50

1.00

0.86

Darley to Birstwith

1.44

0.92

0.97

0.20

0.70

0.10

Hampsthwaite to Ripley
Total
27

2.88

4.05

4.6

New
alignment

Development
site

Existing
route

0.45

Pateley Bridge to Glasshouses

Birstwith to Hampsthwaite

Public road

Total
2.49

0.62

0.40

0.16

1.50

0.20

0.10

0.10

0.10

2.56

1.02

0.35

4.90

1.10

1.90

0.64

0.64

3.06

2.81

1.81

1.72
0.10

0.1

4.46

1.61

2.89

1.61

20.92

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/30

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Table 4. Preliminary construction cost estimates for Wath to Ripley section
Item

Item description

Unit

Cost per
unit

allow

Quantity

Cost

Notes

As required

£50,000

Sections: Wath to Ripley (5 rembankment ramps);
Darley to Birstwith (farm access points, retaining
wall / boardwalk)

Earthworks

2

New traffic-free tarmac route

lm

£126.5

13,340

£1,687,510

3

Fencing

lm

£60

7000

£420,000

Allowance for cost estimate: approx half of new
route length (7km)

4

Drainage

lm

£40

5000

£200,000

Allowance for cost estimate: 5km

5

Bridges

item

varies

5

£400,000

Construction only

6

Ancillary items (i.e. seats, gates etc.)

allow

As required

£100,000

7

Highways works

allow

2,810m

£200,000

8

Planning, ecology, EA licences

allow

£20,000

1

£20,000

9

Resurfacing works

lm

£65

2,120

£137,800

10

Signing and information

As required

£22,500

11

SUBTOTAL (interventions)

12

Design and Preparation

% (interventions)

10

1

£323,781

Includes some allowance for negotiating with
landowners, but no land assembly costs or land
agents’ fees.

13

Project Management

% (interventions)

15

1

£485,672

Covers the tendering of work, its supervision and
related administration, and other construction
related project management.

14

SUBTOTAL (delivery)

15

Contingency

16

GRAND TOTAL excl. VAT

allow
%

Construction (2-3m wide, average cost used)

Signage for full route

£3,237,810.00

£4,047,263
% (delivery)

10

1

£404,726

See note below regarding Optimism Bias

£4,451,989

Land assembly costs and legal fees have not been included at this stage. All figures are exclusive of VAT.

NOTE: HM Treasury guidance (2018) on the appraisal and evaluation of projects
defines optimism bias as “the proven tendency for project appraisers to be too
optimistic about key project parameters such as capital costs”. Correspondingly
Sustrans recommends that prior to any bids for capital funding being made,
project partner’s review all up to date and relevant evidence of any previous
28

underestimation from similar interventions, and agree an appropriate level of
adjustment to cost estimates. The recommended level of optimum bias for low
complexity projects is 10%, 20% for medium and 40% for high.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/31

- Binding Margin -

Page 163

1

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

This project can be delivered in phases. For example the section from Pateley
Bridge to Darley could be delivered independently to the wider route. Preliminary
construction costs for this shorter section are estimated as follows:

Table 5. Preliminary construction cost estimates for Pateley Bridge to Darley section

Page 164

- Binding Margin -

Item

Item description

Unit

Cost per
unit

allow

Quantity

Cost

As required

£30,000

Notes

1

Earthworks

2

New traffic-free tarmac route

lm

£126.50

5,820

£736,230

Construction (2-3m wide, average cost used)

3

Fencing

lm

£60

3000

£180,000

Allowance for cost estimate: approx half of new route
length (3km)

4

Drainage

lm

£40

2000

£80,000

Allowance for cost estimate: 2km

5

Bridges

item

varies

2

£216,250

Construction only

6

Ancillary items (i.e. seats, gates
etc.)

allow

As required

£60,000

7

Highways works

allow

700m

£80,000

8

Planning, ecology, EA licences

allow

1

£20,000

9

Resurfacing works

2,120

£137,800

10

Signing and information

As required

£12,000

11

SUBTOTAL (interventions)

12

Design and Preparation

% (interventions)

10

1

£155,228

Includes some allowance for negotiating with landowners, but no land assembly costs (or land agents
fees).

13

Project Management

% (interventions)

15

1

£232,842

Covers the tendering of work, its supervision and
related administration, and other construction related
project management.

14

SUBTOTAL (delivery)

15

Contingency

16

GRAND TOTAL excl. VAT

lm

£65

allow

Signage for full route

£1,552,280

£1,940,350
% (delivery)

10

1

£194,035

See note at the bottom of Table 4 regarding Optimism
Bias

£2,134,385

Land assembly costs and legal fees have not been included at this stage. All figures are exclusive of VAT.
29

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/32

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

6. Business case - green tourism

Tourism can contribute to the
economy through direct spending,
indirect spending and social value determined by a ‘willingness to pay’
calculation. Cycle tourism represents
a growing and valuable tourist market,
particularly in rural areas, and can
provide new incentives for people to
visit an area and help support local
trade and businesses . Long distance
cycle routes, which are predominantly
rural, can generate as much as £30
million per year to the local economy;
enough to sustain over 600 full time
equivalent jobs.
Leisure and tourist cyclists have
different transport and spending

30

patterns; tourists will normally
spend more and may require
facilities such as accommodation,
transport and parking. Research by
Sustrans indicates that, on average,
homebased leisure cyclists each
spend £9.20 per day and overnight
tourists spend significantly more at
£22.90 per day. Therefore, despite
overnight trips making up less
than 1% of the overall volume,
their economic contribution is
approximately 20% of the total value
of cycle tourism.
See Appendix 2 for example cases
and further information on Benefit
Cost Ratio (BCR).

“The extension of the Nidderdale
Greenway through Ripley has
brought more all-year-round trade
to the village without creating any
additional demand for parking .
The people who arrive in the village
via the Greenway spend thousands
of pounds every year in our shops,
tearoom and pub. For some of
those businesses it has meant
the difference between closure
and survival. Let the Greenway
bring more business to the local
village shops that you value, and
provide safer roads for everyone.
Those who live near the Greenway
will walk, jog and push the pram
in the safe environment that it
provides. You will be surprised by
the number of people who will use
it to cycle to school and work. The
Nidderdale Greenway enhances
the safety, the amenity and the
sustainability of every community
that is linked to it.”
Sir Thomas Ingilby

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/33

- Binding Margin -

Page 165

The proposed route is a safe walking
and cycling path that will link Ripley to
Pateley Bridge and Wath via trafficfree routes and quiet roads. Currently,
there are no facilities suitable for
family cycling and leisure riding,
and local businesses are missing
out on this strong potential market.
As proposed design has inclusivity
at its core, it is expected that the
range of users will include people
of all abilities. Family day trips in the
local area are expected to utilise the
proposed route.

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

7. Next steps
Nidderdale Greenway Extension
Steering Group

If local authority partners agree
that development of the Greenway
extension should be pursued further,
then there is still much work to do.
We recommend the setting up of
a Steering Group to oversee the
key delivery stages - ecological
assessment, public consultation,
access agreements, detailed design,
planning permission, funding
applications, tendering and phased
construction. On completion the
Steering Group may wish to create
a Nidderdale Greenway Trust to
act as guardian of the project and
holder of the permissive rights of way
agreements.

Page 166

- Binding Margin -

This study provides a
recommendation for what Sustrans
believes to be the most deliverable
alignment for the Greenway between
Clint and Wath.

31

Bringing together people representing
different interest groups but with
local knowledge and a willingness
to work together for a common aim
harnesses much volunteered talent,
energy and time. The Steering Group
is encouraged to take ‘ownership’ of
the project and help drive it forward.

Representation is a matter for
Nidderdale Plus membership
organisations, but should draw on
the talent and commitment of special
interest groups including:
•

Harrogate and District Cycle
Action

•

Harrogate Wheel Easy (leisure
cycling club)

•

Pateley Bridge Walkers Are
Welcome

•

Open Country

•

Bewerley Park Riding School

•

Bewerley Park Centre of Outdoor
Education

•

Nidderdale High School

The Steering Group will require
secretarial support services and
a convenor to act as project coordinator and route agreement
negotiator. Local authority officers
or Sustrans are best placed to fill the
project co-ordinator’s role.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/34

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

8. Future funding
While extending the Greenway further
up Nidderdale and into the AONB is
likely to encourage some utility cycling
and walking between communities
and businesses that can access the
route between Harrogate and Pateley
Bridge, its main usage will be for
recreation / leisure and cycle tourism
(for longer journeys).

This emphasis on investing in
infrastructure for shorter modal shift
type journeys is likely to be a feature
of any local government and linked
public body funding.
The Coronavirus pandemic is
squeezing local government funding
further.
However, this is a good sustainable
transport / active travel / green tourism
scheme, with a strong narrative and
good BCR.
32

Opportunities for funding further
project development and the actual
delivery of the route are likely to arise
from a combination of the following:
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Harrogate Borough Council
North Yorkshire County Council
through their Harrogate Transport
Improvements Programme that is
in development (following on from
the recent congestion study)
North Yorkshire & York Local
Enterprise Partnership
Funding linked to the Nidderdale
AONB Management Plan
implementation
Public health funding
The National Lottery and Health
Lottery
Local businesses and other
donations
Future government funding
specifically for cycling –
this may end up being
devolution based depending on
the model used
Anticipated UK Government
strategic regional funds
S106 Agreement contributions
Community Infrastructure Levy
contributions
Other small grants schemes.

This report shows that an extension
to the Nidderdale Greenway running
partly, but not exclusively, on former
sections of the old railway formation
is possible and would be beneficial for
a whole range of people on foot, bike,
horseback or using a wheelchair or
mobility scooter.
Phase 1 of the route is in place
between Harrogate, Ripley and Clint
and can be visited by those not
familiar with the Greenway concept.
A visit will enable those interested
to see the design, construction and
maintenance standards applied to the
scheme, and particularly to assess the
surface treatment, fencing, signing,
access controls, wildlife habitat and
overall quality of experience.

to sustain many small businesses
(especially local food shops and
cafés so important to local village life)
without putting additional pressures
on the local road network. It will also
be a boon for families, enabling young
people to explore the Dale and gain
cycling confidence away from busy
roads.
Without the extension of the
Greenway, active car free access
through Nidderdale will remain
impossible for most visitors and
residents.

We firmly believe that extending the
Greenway to Pateley Bridge and
beyond to Wath will be very popular
with Nidderdale residents and visitors
from elsewhere in Yorkshire and
beyond.
Whilst levels of use in the more rural
areas beyond Ripley will inevitably be
lower than those experienced closer
towards Harrogate, it will be very
good for the local economy by helping

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/35

- Binding Margin -

Page 167

Very encouragingly, the government’s
new plan Gear change: a bold vision
for cycling and walking specifically
refers to improving the National
Cycle Network, stating that it will be
extended but ‘where it can be done
in accordance with our new design
standards, especially where it can be
most useful for everyday journeys.’

9. Conclusion

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Appendix 1: NCN Design Principles

Page 168

- Binding Margin -

The National Cycle Network design principles set out key elements that make the Network distinctive and need
to be considered during design of new and improved routes forming part of the Network. Where the Network
is not traffic-free it should either be on a quiet-way section of road or be fully separated from the carriageway.
For a National Cycle Network route on a quiet-way section of road traffic speed and flows should be sufficiently
low with good visibility to comply with design guidance for comfortable sharing of the carriageway. Signs and
markings should highlight the Network.

National Cycle
Network routes shall:
• be designed in
accordance with
current best practice
design guidance;

Principle 1: Traffic-free
or quiet-way
•

• be designed in
collaboration with
the local community;
• provide convenient
links to key
destinations,
connecting
cities, towns and
countryside;
• meet the following
nine design
principles:

33

•

Where the Network is not
traffic-free it should either be
on a quiet-way section of road
or be fully separated from the
adjacent carriageway.
For a National Cycle Network
route on a quiet-way section
of road the traffic speed and
flows should be sufficiently
low with good visibility to
comply with design guidance
for comfortable sharing of
the carriageway. Signs and
markings should highlight the
Network.

Principle 2: Sufficient
width to accommodate
all users
•

•

Width of a route should
be based on the level of
anticipated usage, allowing for
growth.
Physical separation between
users should be considered
where there is sufficient
width and a higher potential
for conflict between different
users.

Principle 3: Designed to
minimise maintenance

Principle 4: Signed
clearly and consistently

•

A maintenance plan should be
put in place in the development
process.

•

Signage should be a mix of
signs, surface markings and
wayfinding measures.

•

Construction quality should
be maximised to minimise
maintenance.

•

Every junction or decision point
should be signed.

•

•

New planting should be kept
well clear of the path.

•

Sufficient tree work should
be undertaken as part of
construction to minimise future
issues.

Signage should be part of a
network-wide signing strategy
directing users to and from the
Network to trip generators such
as places of interest, hospitals,
universities, colleges.

•

Signage should be used to
increase route legibility and
branding of routes.

•

Signage should help to
reinforce responsible behaviour
by all users.

•

Routes should be managed
in a way that enhances
biodiversity.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/36

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

- Binding Margin -

Page 169
Principle 5: Smooth
surface that is well
drained

Principle 6: Fully
accessible to all
legitimate users

•

Path surfaces should be
suitable for all users.

•

•

Path surfaces should be
maintained in a condition that
is free of undulations, rutting
and potholes.

•

•

34

Path surfaces should be free
draining and verges finished
to avoid water ponding at the
edges of the path.
In, or close to, built-up areas
a Network route should have
a sealed surface to maximise
the accessibility.

All routes should
accommodate a cycle design
vehicle 2.8 metres long x 1.2
metres wide.

•

Any barriers should have a
clear width of 1.5 metres.

•

Gradients should be
minimised and as gentle as
possible.

•

The surface should be
maintained in a condition
that makes it passable by all
users.

Principle 7: Feel like a
safe place to be
•

Route alignments should
avoid creating places that are
enclosed or not overlooked.

•

Consideration should be given
as to whether lighting should
be provided.

Principle 8: Enable all
users to cross roads
safely

Principle 9: Be
attractive and
interesting

•

Road crossings should be in
accordance with current best
practice guidance.

•

Network routes should be
attractive places to be in and
pass along.

•

Approaches to road crossings
should be designed to
facilitate slow approach
speeds to a crossing.

•

Landscaping, planting artwork
and interpretation boards
should be used to create
interest.

•

All grade separated crossings
should provide step-free
access.

•

Seating should be provided at
regular intervals along a route.

•

Opportunities should be
taken to enhance ecological
features.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/37

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Most business cases seek to
generate a BCR (Benefit Cost
Ratio) to justify spend. The UK has
developed a tool known as AMAT
(Analysis of Monetarised Costs and
Benefits) that can generate a BCR
for cycling and walking schemes
without overly onerous calculations
and is WebTAG compliant. This
summary sets out to explain the
economic appraisal of this proposed
scheme. It provides details of the
individual revenue components as
well as presenting the investment
as a package. The main aims and
ambitions of the project are set out
in the Introduction and responds to
regional and national cycling agenda.

To use the AMAT tool requires
data regarding predicting cycle
numbers. This can be difficult and
time consuming, especially when the
route is new and no baseline data is
available.

The AMAT outputs include
information on benefits that can be
attributed to a project including those
associated with:
• Congestion Benefits
• Infrastructure Development
• Accident Savings
• Local Air Quality Improvement
• Noise Reduction
• Greenhouse Gas reduction
• Reduced risk of premature death
• Absenteeism reduction
• Journey ambience improvement
• Indirect taxation (can be negative
for cycling)

The levels of use required to achieve
a ‘Good’ rating are then given an
achievability narrative and routes
compared against similar past
schemes to examine the probability
of achieving those levels. Routes are
examined against the Sustrans report
Improving Access for Local Journeys
(IALJ) available online and other
similar projects in the area of interest.

Page 170

- Binding Margin -

Appendix 2. Business case

35

Instead Sustrans has developed a
method, which was successfully
applied to recent Department for
Transport (DfT) funding bids that
seeks to provide comparable
estimates. The numbers of predicted
walkers and cyclists are used for the
AMAT analysis, for a targeted Benefit
Cost Ratio close to 2.0. This BCR
figure is regarded as ‘Good value for
money’ by the DfT.

NOTE: BCRs are generated that cover
a 30 year period from completion of
the project. ‘New Cyclists Required’
refers to average use per day over

and above current use.
In the case of extending the
Nidderdale Greenway to Wath we
have generated a BCR of 2.94 (see
Figure 95) using our preliminary total
cost of £4,452,000 exc. VAT.
This does at this stage include
a 10% contingency and the
corresponding allowances for Design
and Preparation and Contractors’
Preliminaries. Under this scenario, the
BCR score is achieved if 295 Cyclists
per day and 375 walkers per day
use the route. This method reflects a
holistic approach where the project
is led by the relevant local authority
and key stakeholders, whilst ensuring
high standards of delivery across an
agreed timescale, with projects risks
closely managed and mitigated as
they arise.
As the project develops further, and
there is greater understanding and
certainty about the nature and extent
of the capital costs required, the level
of optimism bias is likely to reduce
and may result in a lower overall
project cost (and an even higher BCR
value).

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/38

Appendix 1July 2021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Appendix 2. Business case continued

Figure 95. AMAT analysis for Wath to Ripley - BCR result: Sustrans cost estimate of £4,452,000

Indirect Taxation
Government costs
Private contribution

-111.78
2766.93
0.00

PVB
PVC

8108.04
2760.78

BCR

2.94

Benefits by type:
Mode Shift
1215.44
Health
5464.00
Journey Quality 1434.76

15.0%
67.3%
17.7%

Benefits by type

Mode Shift

Health

Journey Quality

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/39

- Binding Margin -

Page 171
36

Analysis of Monetised Costs and Benefits (in £'000s)
Congestion benefit
1109.33
Infrastructure
6.15
160.20
Accident
5.79
Local Air Quality
11.26
Noise
34.49
Greenhouse Gases
Reduced risk of premature death
4328.69
1135.31
Absenteeism
Journey Ambience
1434.76

Appendix
July12021

A Nidderdale Greenway: Extending the Harrogate and Ripley path to Pateley Bridge and Wath

Appendix 2. Business case continued
Example case studies:

This 2.6km route was delivered by the
Department for Transport’s Linking
Communities 2012-13 programme.
The scheme provides a traffic free
alternative for cyclists travelling
between Knowsley Business Park and
the existing networks around Kirkby
and Knowsley. The number of cycle
trips on the network has increased
126% following the scheme, leading
to a benefit cost ratio of 5.2 to 1.

Page 172

- Binding Margin -

Gellings Greenway, Kirkby

37

Hockley Viaduct, Winchester
This 4.3km route was delivered by the
Department for Transport’s Linking
Communities 2012-13 programme.
The scheme provides a new shared
use path from Winchester city centre
to South Winchester Park and Ride.
The route now carries over 50,000
cycle trips per year, compared to just
over 4,000 previously.
This had led to the equivalent of over
17,000 car trips being taken off the
road and a benefit cost ratio of 3.9
to 1. The route also attracts a high
number of recreational cyclists, with
an estimated £382,500 being spent
per year by tourists and day-visitors,
supporting 5.8 direct and 3.9 indirect
jobs.

References
1) Sustrans/University of Central
Lancashire (2007), The Economic
Impact of Cycle Tourism in North East
of England.
2) Sustrans (1999), Cycle Tourism
Information Pack, TT21.
3) Sustrans (2013) Sustrans Tourism
report (unpublished)
4) https://transformscotland.org.uk/
wp/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/TheValue-of-Cycle-Tourism-full-report.pdf

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/40

Appendix 1

Page 173

www.sustrans.org.uk
© Sustrans (June, 2020)
Registered Charity No. 326550

(England and Wales)

SC039263 (Scotland)
VAT Registration No. 416740656

For more information regarding this report, please contact:
leeds@sustrans.org.uk
0113 245 0006
Sustrans Ltd
Leeds Bridge House
Hunslet Rd
Leeds
LS10 1JN

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/41

APPENDIX 2
Initial equality impact assessment screening form
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’)
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate
or proportionate.
Directorate
Service area
Proposal being screened

Business and Environmental Services
Highways and Transportation
Proposal for NYCC involvement in a proposed
extension of the Nidderdale Greenway
Officer(s) carrying out screening
Allan McVeigh
What are you proposing to do?
Have an oversight role on a proposed extension
to the Nidderdale Greenway
Why are you proposing this? What
NYCC involvement on a project steering group is
are the desired outcomes?
considered beneficial from a sustainable transport
perspective.
Greater utility and recreational
cycling in the Dales.
Does the proposal involve a
From a strategic perspective, the implications are
significant commitment or removal
limited to officer involvement on the proposed
of resources? Please give details.
steering group, though it is likely that there will be
resource impacts on ecology and public rights of
way teams.
Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed
characteristics?
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions:
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected
characteristics?
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as
important?
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates
to?
If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant adverse
impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be
carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep
for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic

Yes

Don’t know/No
info available

No










Age
Disability
Sex (Gender)
Race
Sexual orientation
Gender reassignment
Religion or belief
Pregnancy or maternity
Marriage or civil partnership
NYCC additional characteristic
People in rural areas



Page 174

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/42

APPENDIX 2
People on a low income
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
Does the proposal relate to an area
where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g.
disabled people’s access to public
transport)? Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant
effect on how other organisations
operate? (e.g. partners, funding
criteria, etc.). Do any of these
organisations support people with
protected characteristics? Please
explain why you have reached this
conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)

Reason for decision
Signed (Assistant Director or
equivalent)
Date



No

No

EIA not
 Continue to
relevant or
full EIA:
proportionate:
No adverse impact on any of the protected
characteristics.
Barrie Mason
09/08/21

August 2021- Executive Members
Page 175NYCC – 20Nidderdale
Greenway Extension/43

APPENDIX 3

Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 176

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal
Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

Nidderdale Greenway Extension
Role in the governance arrangements for a proposed extension to the
Nidderdale Greenway
BES
Highways and Transportation
Allan McVeigh

05/08/21

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/44

APPENDIX 3

Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not
progressed.
Establishing a steering group to oversee the development of the route is considered the next step in progressing the project. For a project of this
nature, this would be the most appropriate way forward, to do otherwise risks the project progressing in a disjointed or incoherent manner.

What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?

Page 177

Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible.
The proposal is for limited support for the project, so there should not be a material impact on Council budgets, with the project progressing based on
successful bids for funding.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/45

APPENDIX 3

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

Page 178

Minimise greenhouse
gas emissions e.g.
reducing emissions from
travel, increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

Emissions
from travel

*

Emissions
from
constructio
n
Emissions
from
running of
buildings
Other

*

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

Phase 1 is the creation of a steering group and
so does not involve physical construction at this
point.

*

*

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing
use of single use plastic
Reduce water consumption

*

Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

*

*

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/46

APPENDIX 3

N.B. There may be short term
negative impact and longer term
positive impact. Please include all
potential impacts over the lifetime
of a project and provide an
explanation.

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?

Positive impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
No impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)
Negative impact
(Place a X in the box below where
relevant)

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

*

Enhance conservation and wildlife

*

Page 179

Ensure resilience to the effects of
climate change e.g. reducing flood
risk, mitigating effects of drier, hotter
summers

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and special
qualities of North Yorkshire’s
landscape

*

Other (please state below)

*

Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/47

APPENDIX 3
Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those
standards.
N/A

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.

At this stage, establishing a steering group will have no climate change impact, though there will be expected benefits following construction and potential
modal shift.

Page 180

Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:
Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

Allan McVeigh
Head of Network Strategy
Highways and Transportation
BES
Allan McVeigh
05/08/21

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason
Date: 09/08/21

NYCC – 20 August 2021- Executive Members
Nidderdale Greenway Extension/48

Agenda Item 10
North Yorkshire County Council
Business and Environmental Services
Executive Members
20 August 2021
Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22
Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To enable the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services (BES), in
consultation with County Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access
to consider requests for amendments to the Winter Maintenance Service.

2.0

Background

2.1

In accordance with the County Council procedure for winter maintenance, requests
for additions or reductions to the Winter Maintenance service are considered by the
Corporate Director – BES in consultation with County Councillor Don Mackenzie,
Executive Member for Access prior to the commencement of winter operations.

2.2

Requests for amendments to the winter gritting routes for the 2021-22 season have
been compiled and are presented in Appendix A. Requests have been received for
Area 1 – Brompton on Swale (Richmond); Area 2 - Thirsk (Hambleton), Area 5
(Skipton), Area 6 (Boroughbridge/Harrogate). No requests have been received for
Area 3 (Whitby/Scarborough), Area 4 - Kirby Misperton (Ryedale) or Area 7 –
(Selby).

3.0

Proposed Action

3.1

Amend treatment routes where approved by the Corporate Director, BES in
consultation with Cllr Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access.

4.0

Equalities Implications

4.1

Consideration has been given to the potential for any adverse equality impacts
arising from the recommendation. It is the view of officers that the recommendation
does not have an adverse impact on any of the protected characteristics identified in
the Equalities Act 2010 and a copy of the completed decision that “Equalities Impact
Assessment is not required” form is included in Appendix B.

5.0

Financial Implications

5.1

Any additional costs of increased gritting will need to be met within the existing winter
service budget and winter reserve funds. Currently there are no routes upgrade
requests that are supported by officers. Any cost implication would be difficult to
calculate until it was known which route upgrades had been supported by the
Corporate Director in consultation with the Executive Member for access; furthermore
any cost implications would also be dependent on treatments which are in turn
dictated by the prevailing weather conditions, which vary each winter season. If there
are no route upgrade requests supported there will be no additional costs.
–20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 181NYCC
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /1

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no legal implications with these proposals.

7.0

Climate Change Impact Assessment

7.1

If officer recommendations are taken then the status quo is maintained and there
would be no environmental / climate change impact. If any of the route requests are
supported / approved then there would be an increase in vehicle travel / emissions to
deliver those changes if routes could not be optimised to eliminate this effect as well
as an increase in salt usage distributed on the network. The Climate Change Impact
Assessment form is shown in Appendix C

8.0

Recommendation

8.1

It is recommended that the Corporate Director, BES in consultation with County
Councillor Don Mackenzie, Executive Member for Access consider the attached
requests for amendments to the current service in line with the County Council’s
Policy and uniformity of service across the County.

BARRIE MASON
Assistant Director – Highways & Transportation

Author of Report: Nigel Smith, Head of Highway Operations

Background Documents: None

Page 182

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /2

APPENDIX A
Winter Gritting Route Request for 2021-22 season

1

Resident
Braithwaite Lane
East Witton

Change Requested

Page 183

Requests that Braithwaite Lane which
links East Witton with Coverham be
considered for an upgrade and also for
ploughing by contractors

Officer Comments

Current Priority: 3

Member
Approved

Item

1

Requested by (and
contact details)

Officer
Recommend

Area

Area 1.

No

Number of Grit Bins: 2
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 4200 metres
The upgrade would benefit approximately
50 plus residential properties in the village
and a small number of properties and
farms outside of the village.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is due to the
fact that the current level of treatment is in
line with the County Councils policy and is
consistent with the approach elsewhere in
the County.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /3

APPENDIX A

Page 184
Area 1
Item 1

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /4

APPENDIX A

1

2

Moulton Parish
Meeting

Requests that the road heading north
westwards from Moulton to Scotch
Corner (R1) and the road which leads
eastwards from the village to Dalton
Gates ( R2) be considered for an
upgrade.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins (R1): 4
Number Of Grit Heaps (R1): 0
Length Of Upgrade (R1): 4100 metres
Number Of Grit Bins (R2): 1
Number Of Grit Heaps (R2): 4
Length Of Upgrade (R2): 6000 metres

Page 185

The road which leads to Scotch Corner
was constructed as part of the works to
upgrade the adjacent A1 to motorway
status.
The upgrade of the road would benefit
approximately 30 plus properties in the
village and a small number of properties
and farms as well as a care home outside
of the village.
The upgrade of the road towards Dalton
Gates would benefit a small number of
properties and farms.
Recommendation
That the priority remains as is. The village
already has a Priority 2 Route which links
into the Priority 1 network.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /5

APPENDIX A

Page 186
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Area
1 of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /6
Review
Item 2

APPENDIX A

1

3

Resident
Newbiggin
(Bishopdale)

Requests that the village of Newbiggin
in Bishopdale be considered for an
upgrade.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 1
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 750 metres
Newbiggin has approximately 40 plus
residential properties and a number of
farms.

Recommendation

Page 187

The priority of the route remains the same
due to the fact that the current level of
treatment is in line with the County
Councils policy and is consistent with the
approach elsewhere in the County

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /7

APPENDIX A

Area 1
Item 3

Page 188
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /8

APPENDIX A

1

4

Preston Under Scar
Parish Council

Requests that the cul de sac road
known as West End in Preston Under
Scar be considered for an upgrade.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 2
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 150 metres
The road has approximately 30 plus
residential properties.

Recommendation

Page 189

That the priority remains as is. The village
already has a Priority 2 Route which links
into the Priority 1 network.
The road in question is also level

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /9

APPENDIX A

Area 1
Item 4

Page 190
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /10

APPENDIX A

1

5

Richmond Resident

Requests that Cross Lanes in Richmond
be considered for an upgrade.
During last winter there was an incident
when a land ambulance was unable to
negotiate the road and the air
ambulance had to be called. The road is
also a local bus route.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 2
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 600 metres
Cross Lanes has a moderately steep
gradient and has approximately 130 plus
residential properties either along it or in
the cul de sac roads to either side along
with a major electricity substation.

Page 191

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is with local
contractors treating the road when
circumstances dictate.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /11

APPENDIX A

Page 192
Area 1
Item
NYCC
–205August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /12

APPENDIX A

1

6

Richmond Resident

Requests that Whashton Road in
Richmond be considered for an upgrade
as far as the vehicular access to the
racecourse.

Current Priority: 2

No

This is said to be a busy section of road
and is right at the top of the hill providing
access to a new residential housing
estate and the popular dog walkers car
park at the racecourse.

Length Of Upgrade: 320 metres

The route is also used by pedestrians
who need to cross the road to access
the racecourse.

Recommendation

Number Of Grit Bins: 0
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0

Whashton Road has a moderately steep
gradient and serves approximately 19
residential properties.

That the priority remains as is.

Page 193
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /13

APPENDIX A

Area 1
Item 6

Page 194
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /14

APPENDIX A

1

7

Resident
Oak Tree Avenue
Scotton

Requests that Hunton Road in Scotton
be considered for an upgrade as many
locals are often stranded during winter
conditions and cannot leave Oak Tree
Avenue.

Current Priority: 2

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 1
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 1500 metres

Hunton Road has a moderately steep
gradient over much of its length with short
sections with a steeper gradient.

Page 195

Oak Tree Avenue is a cul de sac leading
from Hunton Road which has
approximately 70 plus residential
properties.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is. The
junction of Oak Tree Avenue with Hunton
Road has an existing grit bin to assist local
residents.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /15

APPENDIX A

Area 1
Item 7

Page 196
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /16

APPENDIX A

1

8

West Witton Parish
Council

Requests that Chantry Bank (known
locally as Kaygram) in West Witton is
considered for an upgrade as it is
considered to be dangerous for all users
in winter conditions.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 2
Number Of Grit Heaps: 5

Length Of Upgrade: 450 metres

Page 197

Chantry Bank is a cul de sac road with a
moderate gradient and serves
approximately 20 residential properties. It
also provides access to the ‘Chantry
Holiday Park’ which has approximately
150 plus caravans and lodges and it is
understood that the site is open
throughout the year.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is. The road
is well served by existing grit bins and grit
heaps.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /17

APPENDIX A

Page 198
Area 1
Item 8

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /18

APPENDIX A

1

9

West Witton Parish
Council

Requests that Grassgill Lane in West
Witton is considered for an upgrade
between the village and Melmerby as
the section known as ‘Witton Steeps’ is
particularly difficult in winter conditions.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 1
Number Of Grit Heaps: 34
Length Of Upgrade: 3800 metres
The section of road known as ‘Witton
Steeps’ has a severe gradient and several
hairpin bends. The road serves
approximately 40 plus residential
properties in the two villages.

Page 199

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is. The road
is well served by existing grit bins and grit
heaps. .

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /19

APPENDIX A

Area 1
Item 9

Page 200
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /20

APPENDIX A

1

10

Richmond Town
Council

Requests that the section of Whitefields
Drive adjacent to its junction with the
A6108 Darlington Road is made Priority
1 due to the gradient.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 1
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 50 metres
Whitefields Drive is a cul de sac forming
the only vehicular access to a residential
estate with approximately 210 properties
all arranged in cul de sac formations.

Page 201

An approximate 50 metres length of the
road as it approaches its junction with the
A6108 Darlington Road has a moderate
uphill gradient.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is. An
assessment has however been made to
see if an additional grit bin can be
provided having regard to the County
Council’s Policy relating to this and this
has shown that an extra bin could be
provided. As the existing bin is at the top
of the slope, it is suggested that the new
bin is located at the bottom.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /21

APPENDIX A

Page 202
Area 1
Item 10

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /22

APPENDIX A

1

11

Richmond Town
Council

Requests that Millgate and Riverside
Road be made Priority 1 as they form an
emergency route from the Market Place
when traffic entering cannot negotiate
the route to the upper part of the Market
Place.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 4
Number Of Grit Heaps: 0
Length Of Upgrade: 650 metres
The roads are narrow with a moderate
downhill gradient on Millgate. A section of
this road is subject to a One Way flow of
traffic with the permitted direction of flow
away from the Market Place.

Page 203

Riverside Road is the only vehicular
access from the public car park adjacent
to the waterfalls and has a moderate uphill
gradient on its immediate approach to its
junction with Bridge Street.
The roads serve approximately 40
properties.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is due to the
fact the current level of treatment is in line
with the County Councils policy and is
consistent with the approach elsewhere in
the County.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /23

APPENDIX A

Page 204
Area 1
Item 11

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /24

APPENDIX A

1

12

Richmond Town
Council

Requests that Penn Road (R1) and
Prior Avenue (R2) are upgraded due to
the steep downhill gradients as each of
these roads approach their junction with
Quakers Lane. Drivers are said to
struggle to stop at these junctions in
wintery conditions.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins (R1): 3
Number Of Grit Heaps (R1): 0
Length Of Upgrade (R1): 160 metres
Number Of Grit Bins (R2): 4
Number Of Grit Heaps (R2): 0
Length Of Upgrade (R2): 130 metres

Page 205

The roads are both separate cul de sacs
with each forming the only vehicular
access to a small residential estate with
approximately 40 plus properties at each
location.
Both roads have a steep gradient which
falls towards the respective junctions with
Quakers Lane which is also a Priority 3
road.

Recommendation
That the priority remains as is.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /25

APPENDIX A

Page 206
Area 1
Item 12

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /26

APPENDIX A

1

13

Marske & New Forest
Parish Meeting

Requests that the Clapgate Bank route
out of Marske to Richmond is upgraded
due to the many gradients on the route
and areas of surface water run off
across the carriageway.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 0
Number Of Grit Heaps: 38
Length Of Upgrade: 6500 metres.
The road serves only a handful of
properties once out of the village. A
developed section of the road on the
outskirts of Richmond already has a
Priority 2 classification.
Recommendation

Page 207

That the priority remains as is. The village
already has a Priority 2 Route which links
into the A6108 to the east which is part
Priority 1 network and leads to Richmond.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /27

APPENDIX A

Page 208
Area 1
Item 13

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /28

APPENDIX A

1

14

Bellerby Parish
Council

Requests that the following roads in
Bellerby are upgraded:
Church Street (R1) - Becomes an ‘ice
rink’ at certain times.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins (R1): 2
Number Of Grit Heaps (R1): 0
Length Of Upgrade (R1): 200 metres

Moor Road (R2) - Again becomes an
‘ice rink’ at certain times and the local
bus service cannot access the village
Bus Stop. The bus then waits on a bend
on the adjacent A6108 causing issues
for through traffic.

Number Of Grit Bins (R2): 3
Number Of Grit Heaps (R2): 3
Length Of Upgrade (R2): 1300 metres

Page 209

Church Street is a residential street
serving approximately 30 properties and
the Village Hall.
Moor Road serves approximately 70
properties in the village and two further
out.

Recommendation
The priority stays the same as it is within a
short distance of a P1 route

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /29

APPENDIX A

Page 210
Area 1
Item 14

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /30

APPENDIX A

1

15

Marrick Parish Council

Requests that the road into Hurst is
upgraded to Priority 1 as it is the only road
into and out of the village. Residents are
said to have been unable to leave the
village for days at a time during last winter
and the road conditions were very
dangerous.

Current Priority: 3

No

Number Of Grit Bins: 0
Number Of Grit Heaps: 26
Length Of Upgrade: 4600 metres
The main part of the village has
approximately 10 properties but
approximately 20 extra properties would
benefit from the priority of the road from the
village being upgraded.

Recommendation

Page 211

That the priority remains as is due to the
fact the current level of treatment is in line
with the County Councils policy and is
consistent with the approach elsewhere in
the County.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /31

APPENDIX A

Page 212
Area 1
Item 15

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /32

APPENDIX A

1

Resident, Norby Estate

Change Requested

Via CSR 453549 Norby Estate,
Norby, Thirsk Gritting route Strong
request to be considered for gritting
route - steep hill, no salt bin nearby
(customer going to speak with
parish/town council)..

Officer Comments

Currently a Priority 3 route,
Category 4A

Member
Approved

Item

2

Requested by (and contact details)

Officer
Recommend

Area

Area 2.

N

Page 213

Treatment as Priority 3 is
appropriate to its alignment to the
network hierarchy and consistent
with the approach elsewhere
within the County.
It should be noted that a grit bin
will be placed on the Norby Estate
and also Percy Drive ( the road
serving the estate to the north of
Norby Estate) as these locations
have been assessed and meet
the criteria required for the
provision of a grit bin.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /33

APPENDIX A

Area 2
Item 1

Page 214
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /34

APPENDIX A

2

2
(Clerk to) Alne Parish Council
clerk@alneparishcouncil.uk

Further to an issue in the village
regarding the reinstatement of a
finger post sign it has been
established that the primary route
through the village is by way of
Monk Green, This was always the
Parish Council’s understanding of
the situation.
With this in mind please would you
be able to add Monk Green to the
gritting schedule.

Currently a Priority 3 route,
Category 4B

N

The route that is currently treated
through Alne as a Priority 2 route
is the C98 and runs passed the
road (Jack Hole) that serves the
school.

Page 215

The request to treat Monk Green
(U1671) would be in addition to
the Priority 2 route that runs along
the C98 as it is considered that
the gritting of the existing route to
the school would still be
necessary.
Given that there is already a route
through Alne and the higher
classification of road is being
treated then it is considered that
the current arrangements are
appropriate and no changes
should be made.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /35

APPENDIX A

Area 2
Item 2

Page 216
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /36

APPENDIX A
2

3

County Councillor Heather Moorhouse

Extract of email 17.03.21

Cllr.Heather.Moorhouse@northyorks.gov.uk “His other complaint is in regard to
the lack of winter maintenance
beyond Gt Ayton Station, and why
for some reason it was removed
several years ago. This has been
compounded by his neighbour
falling on the icy road outside his
house, and which unfortunately
has resulted in him having major
brain surgery. In fact I understand
that his 6hour operation is being
carried out today.

Page 217

I have raised this issue previously
particularly in regard to the safety
of the children on the school bus,
but unfortunately I was not
successful in achieving the
reinstatement of the service, but
was assured that when the other
priority routes were carried out,
there was a possibility it would be
done.

Currently a Priority 2 route upto
Ayton Station, (Priority 3 route
beyond which is the subject of
the request) - Category 4B
Ayton Station is an appropriate
place for the gritter to turn
around safely. Limited
population density beyond Ayton
Station and treatment as Priority
3 is consistent with the approach
elsewhere within the County.
There are also concerns in
relation to the gritters passing
through the area on Dikes Lane
where the properties are close to
the carriageway which is only
single lane particular in
challenging conditions.

N

A gentleman has alleged that this
part of road has had no gritting
service this winter at all, which as
you can imagine on higher ground
it was pretty dangerous, not just
cars but for residents who wished
to walk into the village as many
do. On this particularly stretch of
road no footway is available, so

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /37

APPENDIX A
the road is their only option to walk
on.
He also complained that he saw a
g one of our gritters going up the
single track road to Little Ayton,
which in his opinion would not be
as dangerous as Dykes Lane, and
why was such a priority made.”

Page 218
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /38

APPENDIX A

Area 2
Item 3

Page 219
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /39

APPENDIX A

2

4

Issues raised directly with Highway
Officer for the area when he was
carrying out inspections

The section between Over Silton
and West lane (C156- highlighted
on attached plan) is the preferable
choice. That would require the P2
to go up into the village, turn round
and head back down to West lane
and carry on its original route up
into Nether Silton.

Currently a Priority 3 route Category 4B

N

Treatment as Priority 3 is
appropriate to its alignment to the
network hierarchy and consistent
with the approach elsewhere
within the County. A Priority 2
route previously passed through
Over Silton but was amended to
its present route a number of
years ago at the request of the
Parish Council.

Page 220

Accommodating this request
would add an additional 2.2km
(comprising of 1.1km treat and
1.1km dry run) to an existing
route.
A request that included the route
all the way to the A19 to join near
Hollins Farm was previously
considered prior to the 2011-2012
and 2016-2017, 2018-2019
season but was not approved.
Whilst it is agreed that this shorter
route could be accommodated and
would give Over Silton access to a
P2 route. However, based on the
rationale above it would be
inappropriate to support this
request.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /40

APPENDIX A

Page 221

Area 2
Item 4

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /41

APPENDIX A

2

5
Verbal request
No email supplied

Via CSR 453549 - Seave Green to Urra Chop Gate
has just been snow ploughed up the incline and
around the 90 degree bend at the top. Request grit
piles placed for vehicles now. Customer requests
road is upgraded to P2 next year. Customer also
contacting local parish council for bin placement..

Currently a Priority 3 route. Category
4b

N

To treat this road would be inconsistent
with the approach elsewhere in the
County.

Area 2
Item 5

Page 222
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /42

APPENDIX A

2

6

Extract from email dated 25.01.21
kilburncouncil@gmail.com

Clerk and Responsible
Officer to Kilburn Parish
Council

Page 223

“Another point they would like to mention is that
Low Town Bank (known as White Horse Bank)
needs to be included in the gritting programme,
as whenever there is an accident on the A170
Sutton Bank, numerous vehicles use this
narrow, twisting road as a 'cut-through'. In the
last week a local resident has had to help dig
several people out (2 camper vans! - one
delivery truck and 2 MPV-type vehicles) who
have lost control of their vehicles (even in low
gear) coming down this road, one vehicle had
spun and was wedged between both sides of
the road as whenever there is ice/snow it is
impassable. “

Currently a Priority 3 route.
Category 4b

N

To treat this road would be
inconsistent with the approach
elsewhere in the County.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /43

APPENDIX A

Area 2
Item 6

Page 224
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /44

APPENDIX A

Area 3. No formal requests received for gritting route changes this year.
Area 4. No formal requests received for gritting route changes this year.

1

Page 225

Local resident supported by
Cllr Heseltine

Change Requested

Regent Road, Skipton






The accident which occurred on
the evening of Sunday 3rd
January; I'm sure the police will
have details as they attended.
Regent Road is also a bus route,
and, when the Building Society
staff begin to return to the office,
this will be the busiest road on
|Regent and the most hazardous.
Last Saturday I parked outside my
house to unload some shopping. I
secured the handbrake. As I got
out of the car, with my wife still
inside, the car began to slide
down the hill. Fortunately, it came
to a halt after a few yards. This
could have had serious
consequences for my wife from

Officer Comments

Unclassified Category Urban 4b

Member
Approved

Item

5

Requested by (and
contact details)

Officer
Recommend

Area

Area 5.

N

Whilst this proposal is supported by
County Cllr. Heseltine, the route in
question does not fit the description of a
Priority One or Two route, namely it is
not considered to be an “important”
road. Upgrading this road will set a
precedent that would make similar
requests difficult to reject.
Much of this same estate is treated
under Priority Route 321B, however,
Regent Road is not included in the
treatment lengths.
Therefore, I propose that Regent Road
is added to this Priority Three route to
be included in treatments when
conditions dictate.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /45

APPENDIX A
any oncoming traffic and any
pedestrian who might have been
walking on the road (the
pavements have been a no go
area of late).
The fact is that Regent Road is
dangerous in bad weather and you have
a duty to keep residents and car drivers
safe. Regent residents wishing to travel
to work are faced with a hazardous task. I
would imagine some people will be
genuinely fearful for their safety

Additional length of 419m
NB this is not an upgrade as such – P3
routes form the remainder of the
adopted highway network where they
have not been designated as either
Priority 1 or 2 for the purposes of winter
maintenance and as such this is an
administrative exercise, hence the
officer recommendation is ‘No’ but the
routes needs to be part of any P3
treatments undertaken in future
seasons

Page 226
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /46

APPENDIX A

Page 227

Area 5
Item 1

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /47

APPENDIX A

5

2

Local resident

Symology Enquiry
B6265 Hebden Road, Grassington to Hebden
There are several times when SK1 is delayed on
the A59 or towards Greenhow due to excess ice or
snow and vehicles blocking the route etc.

The rationale behind the request from
the enquirer is the suggestion that in
severe weather events, resources are
often directed to the A59 (Route SK1) to
deal with drifting over Kexgill to
Blubberhouses, with a resulting delay in
the treatment of the B6265, Grassington
to Hebden.

No

Page 228

Would it be possible for SK2 to extend its route from
Grassington bus stop (Colvend car park) by 1.2
Route SK2 also enters Grassington at its
miles to Hebden.
mid-point along the B6160, Skipton to
the Area 1 boundary north of Cray.
We carry school children form Grassington area to
Skipton and bring children back to Wharfedale
The request is to move the Grassington
School - 250 children in total.
to Hebden length (2.74km) of route SK1
There are times when we are unable to get up the
onto route SK2.
slight incline from Hebden to Grassington and or
unable to safely decend into the village via a steep
Not once during the winter season 20/21
hill (High Cross).
did we fail to treat the entirety of SK2, by
I understand that SK2 would have sufficient salt
the 7am deadline.
supplies to add this short journey.
Later in the 2020/21 season, RIS
This is the only stretch of road sometimes that is not procured the services of local farmer
safe to use and we have to cancel our routes when which enabled, in those severe weather
all the other operators are running on treated roads. events, a more rapid treatment of SK2
I wonder if you could respond to my email with your whilst SK1 was being dealt with east of
thoughts, I have sent emails before , last year, with
Bolton Bridge Rbt.
no response
A continuation of this arrangement with
NYH will ensure resilience during those
prolonged severe weather events,
however this is an operational matter and
does not require an upgrade of the route.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /48

APPENDIX A

Page 229

Area 5
Item 2

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /49

APPENDIX A

5

3

Local resident

Symology Enquiry

Unclassified Category Rural 4b

White Hill Lane

White Hill Lane is a single lane width
rural road, serving several properties
and access to farmland.
It is well served by salt heaps, it is part of
Priority 3 treatment route 319, and there
are Priority One and Priority Two
alternative routes around this road.

A lady called to request possibility of
White Hill Lane to be added to gritting
route advised will not be looked at until
Aug /Sept to be possibly added to route
for winter end of 2021

No

Page 230

Upgrading this road will set a precedent
that would make similar requests difficult
to reject and would be inconsistent with
the approach elsewhere in the County
that would require a change in Policy.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /50

APPENDIX A

Area 5
Item 3

Page 231
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /51

APPENDIX A

5

4

Local resident

Symology Enquiry

Unclassified Category Urban 4b

Raikeswood Drive, Skipton

Raikeswood Drive in its entirety does not
fit the description of a Priority One or
Two route, namely it is not considered to
be an “important” road.
However, the northern end of this road
(124m) is included in Priority 2 route
SK12, presumably because it forms part
of a high usage route and/or public
transport routes.
Some of this estate is also treated under
Priority Route 321B, including the small
cul-de-sac leg of Raikeswood Drive, but
the remaining length (260m) is not
included in the treatment lengths.

Called to enquire if the full length of
Raikeswood Drive can get added to
gritting route advised will not get looked
at until Aug/sept time.

No

Page 232

Rakeswood Drive is also serviced by 2
grit bins.
Upgrading this road will set a precedent
that would make similar requests difficult
to reject.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /52

APPENDIX A

Area 5
Item 4

Page 233
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /53

APPENDIX A

5

5

Local resident

Symology Enquiry

Unclassified Category Rural 4b

Lowkber Lane, Cold Cotes

Lowkber Lane is a single lane width rural
road, serving several properties and
accesses to farmland.
It is well served by salt heaps, it is
already part of Priority 3 treatment route
304, and there are Priority One and
Priority Two alternative routes around
this road.

called to enquire if road through Cold
Cotes could be added to gritting route

No

Page 234

Upgrading this road will set a precedent
that would make similar requests difficult
to reject and would be inconsistent with
the approach elsewhere in the County
that would require a change in Policy.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /54

APPENDIX A

Area 5
Item 5

Page 235
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /55

APPENDIX A
5

6

Local resident

Gooselands Hill to Out Gang Lane & Out Gang Lane to
Windbank Farm (B6160), Arncliffe & Hawkswick
Thanks for taking the time for our conversation this
morning and for explaining the current position to me
that our village road is essentially Priority 3 but does
not feature in any of the current gritting routes, under
any circumstances. We agreed I would put my main
points to you in an email and that you would take two
courses of action:
1) Follow a process to change the gritting route to
include Hawkswick village as a priority 2 road

Page 236

2) Investigate the potential for a grit bin /
replenished salt pile in the village
We moved to Hawkswick in early 2019 and the issue of
gritting was raised at the annual village meeting where
we were advised that gritting could take place but only
where resources permitted and/or in very adverse
weather conditions (i.e. priority 2). In the time we have
been here, the road has never been gritted and we
have had some severe ice and snow, particularly
January/February 2021. For example, I was unable to
get out of the village for 5 consecutive days recently
because of ice on the roads.
My main focus, and reason for contacting you, is to
ensure that everyone, particularly the elderly and
vulnerable in the village, can be accessed in an
emergency or can leave the village in bad weather, e.g.
ice/snow.
We also have key-workers such as teachers in the
village and it is important for them to remain mobile
wherever possible. As contributors through our council

Unclassified Category Rural 4b
Gooselands Hill to Out Gang Lane & Out Gang Lane to
Windbank Farm (B6160) comprises a narrow, single
lane width rural road, serving several properties and
accesses to farmland.
The narrow nature of this route would mean a risk
assessment would be required to assess the suitability
of using HGV gritters along this road, for inclusion in
the Priority 2 route SK15, during the return journey from
Halton Gill, via Arncliffe.
The enquirer does point out that HGV traffic and large
farm machinery uses the route without difficulty.
Ploughs mounted to salt-spreading vehicles, however,
would undoubtedly create a greater hazard.
The route, if considered, would not add any additional
driving distance or time, but will add a salt-spread
length of 4.99km (2.75m – 3m width)
It is already part of Priority 3 treatment route 311, and
there is a Priority Two alternative route around this
road, although residents of Hawkswick must use the
road, or Out Gang Lane itself, also part of the Priority 3
route 311.
Upgrading this road will set a precedent that would
make similar requests difficult to reject and would be
inconsistent with the approach elsewhere in the County
that would require a change in Policy.
Consideration will be given to the provision of salt piles
or bins in Hawkswick and on Outgang Lane.

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /56

No

APPENDIX A
tax payments we should be given due consideration in
this regard. One of our main frustrations is that we
regularly see the gritters on the top road (south of the
river Skirfare) travelling up the dale to Halton Gill and
then doing exactly the same journey in reverse,
completely ignoring the Hawkswick road.

Page 237

It would not be unreasonable in my view for the vehicle
to take a slightly different return route from Halton Gill
by turning to the left just before Arncliffe Bridge and
taking in Hawkswick village with a return to the main
B6160 road down Wind Bank at Skirfare Bridge. You
confirmed this road is fully adopted and is as wide as
the road to Halton Gill, in fact the Refuse Collection
vehicle of a similar size uses this same route every
week without issue. We have also had delivery vehicles
of all shapes and sizes from Myers, Merritt & Fryers
etc., including a large cement mixer! There would be
negligible increased costs/time to take this route, just
slightly more salt I guess, although I do accept a proper
Risk Assessment would. need to be carried out before
any changes could be agreed. I would also emphasise
that there is no expectation to have Outgang Lane
gritted as it is too narrow I hope this helps and look
forward to hearing from you with some positive news.
Kind regards,

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /57

APPENDIX A

Area 5
Item 6

Page 238
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /58

APPENDIX A
5

7

Managing Director
Of local Business

Giggleswick
1. Stackhouse Lane
2. Raines Road - Church Street Bankwell Road.

No

Page 239

I have serious concerns about the
standard of winter roads service in
Giggleswick - where both my business
and home are located, and where I am
also a parish councillor.

The originator’s view that the service
levels have deteriorated in not supported.
The service levels are unchanged and
continue to be delivered in line with the
approved policy.

The standard of winter roads service has
been deteriorating here for a number of
years now - and last winter reached a
dangerously low level. At times even the
main (Category 1) road connecting
Giggleswick and Settle to the A65 was
not gritted for several icey days.

With regard to existing provision, there
are P2 routes in Giggleswick with part of
Raines Road and the full length of
Brackenber Lane and Station Road into
Settle all part of the P2 network.

Unlike neighbouring Settle, there are
currently no Level 2 gritting routes at all in
Giggleswick. As a consequence, the main
roads through the village were again
dangerously icey for many days last
winter. Walking along Church Street, I
slipped and hurt my back badly. I know of
others who were also similarly injured.
When the local roads are not gritted they
are not only dangerous for driving, they
are also very dangerous for walking.

The routes on the current P1 and P2
networks are appropriate for the network
in this area and the addition of the roads
requested is not supported.

Last winter the parish council took up the
opportunity of participating in a
community gritting scheme, and

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /59

APPENDIX A
purchased a hand spreader. But it is very
hard manual work, trying to spread grit
any distance at all from a grit bin - and is
just not a practical or sustainable solution.
I understand that the winter roads service
is reviewed each August. In anticipation
of this, can I please respectfully request
an improved service for Giggleswick. Not
only does the village host growing local
businesses that need safe roads access
in the winter, there are also three schools
in the village, plus the recently reopened
Castleberg Hospital.

Page 240

Cont’d…
Specifically, can I please request that
very careful consideration be given to
adding two Category 2 (before 10.00am)
routes to the winter roads service in
Giggleswick.
The following two gritting routes would be
a huge improvement.
1. Stackhouse Lane
2. Raines Road - Church Street Bankwell Road.
Many thanks for your time and kind
consideration to this matter. Thus far, the
parish council raising similar concerns
has received only the same standard
reply letter twice(!)

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /60

APPENDIX A

Page 241
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /61

APPENDIX A

1

Parish Council
Proper Officer (Clerk/Responsible
Financial Officer)
To Tockwith with Wilstrop Parish
Council

Change Requested

A number of developments
completed and in and around
Tockwith village have increased
traffic therefore requested that
Tockwith Lane & Bilton Lane
added to winter gritting route.

Officer Comments

Development occurs across the
county but no reason this area in
particular needs priority gritting,
both lanes are Cat 4b and does
not meet winter policy to be
changed.

Member
Approved

Item

6

Requested by (and contact details)

Officer
Recommend

Area

Area 6.

NO

Page 242

W: www.tockwith.gov.uk

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /62

APPENDIX A

Area 6
Item 1

Page 243
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /63

APPENDIX A
6

2

Local resident:

Middlesmoor Bank, Pateley
Bridge, Harrogate to be included
in gritting route as icy conditions
impact vehicles ability to climb the
hill.

No past historic incidents to suggest a regular
occurrence, village access road already on P2
route with salt heaps so treatment appropriate for
category of road.

NO

Page 244
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /64

APPENDIX A

6

3

Councillor Geoff Webber
Fieldway, Bilton became
<Cllr.Geoff.Webber@northyorks.gov.uk impassable for all vehicles and
is on a bus route

No historic incidents only one
during last winter, already P2
gritting route which is appropriate
for a Cat 4b residential street.

NO

Page 245
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /65

APPENDIX A

6

4

Local resident

Requested that the current footpath gritting regime is
expanded particularly to include all cycleways and the
busier footways outside town centres. I accept there is
already a good town centre shopping street footpath
service but nothing is being done outside the centres,
even after several days of icy conditions. For instance
Slingsby Walk, a busy footway and cycleways

Cost and resource is prohibitive.
This would need a county wide
decision, would set precedent
that is not reasonably practicable
and goes against current winter
policy.

NO

Page 246
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /66

APPENDIX A

6

5

Local
resident

A dairy farmer at Fewston just of the A59
on Cobby Syke Road, Harrogate. Milk is
collected every other day. In the last snow
they had to tow the tanker from Bents
Quarry to the farm. Can we include Cobby
Sykes as a P2

The area team can address concerns at the
operational level but we have a number of request
from those on P3 routes each year and resource,
time and cost will not allow us to upgrade these to
P2s, nor would this be commensurate with such
routes’ position in the network hierarchy.

NO

Page 247
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /67

APPENDIX A

6

6

Clerk to the Council
Dacre Parish Council
dacreclerk@gmail.com

Access road to Heyshaw Village is
on a gradient from the village to Dike
Lane, Harrogate and becomes
impassable when very icy or snowy.
There is a dairy farm here too

Number of P3s in similar situation –
changing these would impact on
resource and time to complete existing
P2s. would set a precedent for other
villages within the county.

NO

Page 248
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /68

APPENDIX A
6

7

Several
local
residents

Request that gritting be extended to
include Sheepcote Lane, Darley.
There are several houses on
Sheepcote Lane, which has a steep
incline. Neither Crake Lane or Walker
Lane are gritted so those on Sheepcote
Lane are effectively trapped

While this route is not on a P1 or P2 route there
are grit heaps and grit bins where the gradient is
steep. There is no other grounds for upgrading this
lane. Extending nearby pre-existing P1 or P2
routes would be put unreasonable time and cost
onto these gritting routes and would not be
commensurate with either network hierarchy or the
approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 249
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /69

APPENDIX A
6

8

I live at the bottom of Old Barber.
Cllr.Geoff Webber
<Cllr.Geoff.Webber@northyorks.gov.uk
On behalf of a local resident
Every winter the hill is steep & slippery when there is any
sort of ice and snow causes mayhem. Salt bins empty very
quickly and we are often left without any to even do it
ourselves.
It is also left down to a few of us as there are many elderly
residents who are frail and should not be attempting
this. Drivers losing control on snow and ice.

No more of a
priority that
other areas in
similar
locations.
Already have
salt bins and
heap
provision.

NO

Area 6
Item 8

Page 250
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /70

APPENDIX A
6

9

Local resident

Customer would like to request for Mill Lane and
Chapel Hill, Harrogate to be added to the snow
plough / grit route. They say there’s a local
farmer (contractor) down the road with a snow
plough however they are sent to Harrogate. All
local residents in and around Chapel Hill are
stuck. .

No more of a priority that other remote areas
in similar locations. Upgrading this route
would not be commensurate with either
network hierarchy or the approach taken
elsewhere. Also there are grit heaps provided

NO

Page 251
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /71

APPENDIX A
6

10

Local resident

Snowden Carr Road, Low Snowden Request to be considered for snow
ploughing/gritting. cars got stuck in
snow

No more of a priority that other remote areas in
similar locations. Also there are grit heaps provided.
Plus upgrading this route would not be
commensurate with either network hierarchy or the
approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 252
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /72

APPENDIX A
6

11

Local resident

I have noted the road from Beamsley - Lanshaw Bank,
over the top to Langbar - Currer Lane, and down to
Middleton Ilkley - Hardings Lane, has not been gritted
over the last couple of weeks.
Please can you add this to your list?

The route is currently part of a Priority
2 route and this is commensurate with
the network hierarchy and the
approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 253
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /73

APPENDIX A
6

12

Local resident

East Park Road, Spofforth.
Request for road to be gritted.

Local residential road and forms part of the Priority 3
network. This is commensurate with the network hierarchy
and the approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 254
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /74

APPENDIX A

6

13

Resident

Lack of gritting on Kent Road, Harrogate
and surrounding roads. Cars were
abandoned in last snow events

This is a local residential road and upgrading it would
not be commensurate with either network hierarchy or
the approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 255
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /75

APPENDIX A
6

14

Local resident

Sherwood Drive, Harrogate be
gritted as it is difficult to get down
road when icy or snowy

This is a Cat 4b residential roads. Upgrading it would
not be commensurate with either network hierarchy or
the approach taken elsewhere.

NO

Page 256
Area 7. No formal requests received for gritting route changes this year.
NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /76

APPENDIX B
Initial equality impact assessment screening form
(As of October 2015 this form replaces ‘Record of decision not to carry out an EIA’)
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be
appropriate or proportionate.
Directorate
Business and Environmental Services
Service area
Highways & Transportation
Proposal being screened
Winter Gritting Routes for 2021-22 season
Officer(s) carrying out screening
Nigel Smith
What are you proposing to do?
Annual review of the Council’s winter
maintenance service – in particular the gritting
routes used across the County.
Why are you proposing this? What
are the desired outcomes?

Each year a review of the winter maintenance
service is undertaken. Requests for
amendments to the gritting routes are
considered. Requests might come from
customers, Parishes or from Councillors. The
main driver is to ensure that Councillors can
consider requests for amendments to the current
service in the context of the County Council’s
Policy and the need to ensure uniformity of
service across the County.
Does the proposal involve a
No. Only a very small number of amendments
significant commitment or removal
are considered, which could if agreed be catered
of resources? Please give details.
for within the existing winter service budget and
winter reserve funds.
Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed
characteristics?
No
If Councillors agreed to requests for amendments, the result would be an enhancement of
service in a small number of sites.
If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant
adverse impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA
should be carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your
Equality rep for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic
Age
Disability
Sex (Gender)
Race
Sexual orientation
Gender reassignment
Religion or belief
Pregnancy or maternity
Marriage or civil partnership
NYCC additional characteristic
People in rural areas
People on a low income

Yes

No

Don’t know/No
info available

√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√

–20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Page 257NYCC
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /77

APPENDIX B
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
Does the proposal relate to an area
where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g.
disabled people’s access to public
transport)? Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant
effect on how other organisations
operate? (e.g. partners, funding
criteria, etc.). Do any of these
organisations support people with
protected characteristics? Please
explain why you have reached this
conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)

Reason for decision

Signed (Assistant Director or
equivalent)
Date

√
No

No

EIA not
√
Continue to
relevant or
full EIA:
proportionate:
Any decision that resulted in the changes
requested being enacted would bring about an
increase in service level. No change to the
existing winter gritting arrangements as
recommended by officers would bring no disbenefits i.e. no drop in level of existing service
would result. As such, with either decision there
is no significant adverse impact as defined
above therefore EIA not relevant.
Barrie Mason
10/08/2021

Page 258

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /78

APPENDIX C
Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk
Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment

Page 259

However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal
Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

AMENDMENT TO WINTER GRITTING ROUTE REQUESTS
Consideration of route upgrade requests from public, parish / town councils
and other bodies
BES
H&T / Highway Ops
Nigel Smith
Nigel Smith – Head of highway Operations
July 2021

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /79

APPENDIX C

Climate change impact assessment
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify
projects which will have positive effects.
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision
making process and should be written in Plain English.
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 260

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:
Planning Permission
Environmental Impact Assessment
Strategic Environmental Assessment
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below.
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.

Title of proposal
Brief description of proposal
Directorate
Service area
Lead officer
Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the impact assessment
Date impact assessment started

AMENDMENT TO WINTER GRITTING ROUTE REQUESTS
Consideration of route upgrade requests from public, parish / town councils
and other bodies
BES
H&T / Highway Ops
Nigel Smith
Nigel Smith – Head of highway Operations
July 2021

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /80

APPENDIX C

Options appraisal
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative options were not
progressed.

No – this is a binary consideration as to whether route upgrades will be supported or not in relation to our current winter service policy and need

What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?

Page 261

Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible.

Officer recommendations are not to approve any of the route requests but if any approved by Corporate Director in consultation with Executive Member for
access then it would increase the cost of delivering the winter service

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /81

Page 262

Minimise greenhouse
gas emissions e.g.
reducing emissions from
travel, increasing energy
efficiencies etc.

Emissions
from travel

X

Emissions
from
construction
Emissions
from
running of
buildings
Other

X

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse,
recycle and compost e.g. reducing use

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

Negative impact

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

No impact

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

N.B. There may be short term negative
impact and longer term positive
impact. Please include all potential
impacts over the lifetime of a project
and provide an explanation.

Positive impact

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

APPENDIX C
Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

No increase in emissions due to travel if
recommendations of officers not to approve
route requests are followed.

X

X

X

of single use plastic

Reduce water consumption

X

Minimise pollution (including air,
land, water, light and noise)

X

No increase in air pollution due to additional
gritter journeys if recommendations of

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /82

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

Negative impact

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

No impact

(Place a X in the box below where relevant)

N.B. There may be short term negative
impact and longer term positive
impact. Please include all potential
impacts over the lifetime of a project
and provide an explanation.

Positive impact

How will this proposal impact on
the environment?

Explain why will it have this effect and over
what timescale?
Where possible/relevant please include:
 Changes over and above business as
usual
 Evidence or measurement of effect
 Figures for CO2e
 Links to relevant documents

APPENDIX C
Explain how you plan to Explain how you plan to
mitigate any negative improve any positive
impacts.
outcomes as far as
possible.

officers not to approve route requests are
followed.

Page 263

Ensure resilience to the effects of
climate change e.g. reducing flood risk,

X

mitigating effects of drier, hotter
summers

Enhance conservation and wildlife

X

Safeguard the distinctive
characteristics, features and special
qualities of North Yorkshire’s
landscape

X

Other (please state below)

n/a

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /83

APPENDIX C
Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal meets those
standards.

We are constantly reviewing delivery of winter service ensuing treatments are only undertaken when conditions dictate

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal
advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.

If officer recommendations are taken then the status quo is maintained and there would be no environmental / climate change impact. If any of the route
requests are supported / approved then there would be an increase in vehicle travel / emissions to deliver those changes if routes could not be optimised to
eliminate this effect as well as an increase in salt usage distributed on the network.

Page 264

Sign off section
This climate change impact assessment was completed by:
Name
Job title
Service area
Directorate
Signature
Completion date

Nigel Smith
Head of Highway Operations
Highway Operations / H&T
BES
N Smith
10 August 2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature):
Date:

NYCC –20 August 2021 – Executive Members
Review of Winter Gritting Routes 2021-22 /84

